R-459-2019
Contract # 168-2019

JAIL BED SERVICE AGREEMENT (MEN’S PROGRAM)

THIS JAIL BED SERVICE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made and entered into this

729 _day of fygvsst” | 2019 by and between LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN

COUNTY GOVERNMENT, , an urban county government of the Commonwealth of Kentucky

created pursuant to KRS chapter 67A, through its Division of Community Corrections,

(hereinafter referred to as "Facility,") and SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC., a Kentucky not-for-

profit corporation (hereinafter referred to as "Shepherd's House,"); and collectively, Shepherd's
House and Facility are hereinafter referred to as "Parties" and, individually, as "Party."

RECITALS
WHEREAS, the Facility desires to implement a twenty (20) bed substance abuse
treatment (SAP) program within the Fayette County Detention Center for male state offenders;

WHEREAS, the Facility solicited Requests for Proposals from public and private
organizations to provide this service through RFP 17-2019 — Substance Abuse Program (Male);

WHEREAS, the Shepherd’s House submitted a proposal which was deemed by the
Facility to be the best and most responsive proposal to implement the Substance Abuse Program.

WITNESSETH

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and their mutual promises and
covenants, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. This Agreement shall include the following additional documents, which are attached
hereto as exhibits and incorporated herein by reference as if fully stated:

a) Exhibit “A” — RFP #17-2019, consisting of 44 pages;
b) Exhibit “B” — Shepherd’s House Formal Response to RFP #17-2019
c) Exhibit “C” — Compensation
2 The Facility hereby retains the Shepherd’s House for a period of three (3) years
beginning the 1* day of September 2019, (“Effective Date™) and shall expire on the

31* day of August 2022, unless termination of this Agreement occurs under any of
the following termination provisions.



Services to be performed. Shepherd's House will provide the services set forth in

Exhibit A, which exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as though
fully set forth verbatim herein, more specifically described in pages 5-15.

Renewal and Termination.

a)

b)

d)

This Agreement shall be renewed automatically for succeeding terms of three (3)
years each unless either party gives written notice to the other at least ninety (90)

days prior to the expiration of any term of Facility’s or Shepherd’s House’s
intention not to renew.

Should the monetary amounts for this Agreement be altered by a change in the
funding appropriations from any applicable funding entity, or for any other
unforeseen reason, either Party may, in its sole discretion, elect to terminate this
Agreement upon not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other
Party at address designated herein. Upon termination under this provision,
neither Party shall have any further obligation under this Agreement except for
(i) obligations due and owing which arose prior to the date of termination and (ii)
obligations, promises, or covenants contained herein which expressly extend
beyond the Term of this Agreement.

In addition, either Party may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have
under the provisions of this Agreement, at law or in equity, terminate this
Agreement at any time and for any reason by giving thirty (30) days prior written
notice to the other Party to the address designated herein. Upon termination
under this provision, neither Party shall have any further obligation under this
Agreement except for (i) obligations due and owing which arose prior to the date
of termination and (ii) obligations, promises, or covenants contained herein
which expressly extend beyond the Term of this Agreement.

In the event that a Party is in default in the performance of a material obligation
under this Agreement, the Party not in default shall have the right to terminate
this Agreement upon not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the
breaching party at the address designated herein, which notice shall provide the
Party in default reasonable time to cure its default. Termination shall be effective
on the date specified in writing to the defaulting party by the non-defaulting
party and may be effective on the expiration of the cure period specified above or
within a reasonable period thereafter. A termination by the Party not in default
under this provision shall in no way constitute a waiver of any rights or remedies
available to it under this Agreement, at law or in equity.

(e) Shepherd’s House acknowledges that the Facility is a governmental entity, and

the Agreement validity is based upon the availability of public funding under the
2



5.

authority of its statutory mandate. In the event that public funds are unavailable
and not appropriated for the performance of the Facility’s obligations under this
Agreement, then this Agreement shall automatically expire without penalty to the
Facility thirty (30) days after written notice to Shepherd’s House of the
unavailability and non-appropriation of public funds. It is expressly agreed that
the Facility shall not activate this non-appropriation provision for its convenience
or to circumvent the requirements of this Agreement, but only as an emergency
fiscal measure during a substantial fiscal crisis, which affects generally its
governmental operations. In the event of a change in the Facility’s statutory
authority, mandate and mandated functions, by state and federal legislative or
regulatory action, which adversely affects the Facility’s authority to continue its
obligations under this Agreement, then this Agreement shall automatically
terminate without penalty to the Facility upon written notice to Shepherd’s
House of such limitation or change in the Facility’s legal authority.

Performance Standards.

a)

b)

Shepherd's House shall perform the Services set forth in this Agreement in a
timely manner, in accordance with best practices in accordance with this
Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations, including all security rules
and regulations promulgated by the Facility, and in accordance with the
administrative regulations and departmental policies of the Kentucky Department
of Corrections (KYDOC). Facility and KYDOC shall provide Shepherd's House
with a copy of the current rules and regulations and KYDOC administrative
directives and shall furnish Shepherd's House written notice of any and all
updates or amendments thereto in order to assure Shepherd's House's knowledge
and compliance therewith.

All employees of Shepherd's House who are providing Services under this
Agreement shall be subject to a security review and clearance check administered
by Facility. In the event an employee of Shepherd's House is not approved for
clearance into the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Division of
Community Corrections and upon written notice of the same from Facility to
Shepherd's House, Shepherd's House shall remove such employee immediately
and replace said employee with an alternate employee in a commercially
reasonable manner.

Compensation. Facility shall pay Shepherd's House the sum of SIXTY FIVE THOUSAND
SEVEN HUNDRED AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($65,700.00) for the Services provided.

Payments shall be made to Shepherd’s House in the amounts described and at the
times indicated in Exhibit C, which exhibit is attached hereto and incorporated by
reference as though fully set forth verbatim herein. Reasonable expenses, if any,
incurred by Shepherd's House while performing the Services set forth under this

3



Agreement shall be subject to the prior written approval of Facility and shall be, upon
approval, invoiced separately.

Notices. Any notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement
shall be in writing and sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt
requested. Notice shall be deemed to be given upon the date three (3) days after such
notice is deposited in the U.S. mail. Notices may also be delivered by courier,
electronic transmission, or by facsimile transmission and shall be deemed to be
delivered when received by the Party to whom such notice is directed with a
confirmed delivery function or notice. Notices shall be addressed as follows:

If to the Facility:

LFUCG Division of Community Corrections
Attention: Steve Haney, Director

600 Old Frankfort Circle

Lexington, Kentucky 40510

If to Shepherd's House:

Shepherd's House, Inc.

Attention: Jerod Thomas, President/CEQO
635 Maxwelton Court

Lexington, Kentucky 40508

Confidential and Proprietary Information. The Parties shall treat as confidential all
information relating to either Party's operations or the general business affairs or any
of the operations or general business affairs of the Party's parent or subsidiary
companies (if any) which the other Party may observe, or which may be disclosed
through the performance of this Agreement. Neither Party shall disclose any such
information to third-parties or use any such information for any purpose other than
the performance under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of the other
Party, which consent may be given or withheld in that Party’s sole and absolute
discretion. This Section 6 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

Indemnification and Hold Harmless.

(@) Itisunderstood and agreed by the parties Shepherd’s House hereby assumes
the entire responsibility and liability for any and all damages to persons or
property caused by or resulting from or arising out of any act or omission on the
part of Shepherd’s House or its employees, agents, servants, owners, principals,
licensees, assigns or subcontractors of any tier under or in connection with this
agreement and/or the provision of goods or services and the performance or
failure to perform any work required thereby.
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(b) Shepherd’s House shall indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend the
Facility and its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents, volunteers, and
successors in interest from and against all liability, damages, and losses, including
but not limited to, demands, claims, obligations, causes of action, judgments,
penalties, fines, liens, costs, expenses, interest, defense costs and reasonable
attorney’s fees that are in any way incidental to or connected with, or that arise or
are alleged to have arisen, directly or indirectly, from or by Shepherd’s House’s
performance or breach of the agreement and/or the provision of goods or
services provided that: (a) it is attributable to personal injury, bodily injury,
sickness, or death, or to injury to or destruction of property (including the loss of
use resulting therefrom), or to or from the negligent acts, errors or omissions or
willful misconduct of the Shepherd’s House; and (b) not caused solely by the
active negligence or willful misconduct of Facility.

(¢) Notwithstanding, the foregoing, with respect to any professional services
performed by Shepherd’s House hereunder (and to the fullest extent permitted by
law), Shepherd’s House shall indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend Facility
from and against any and all liability, damages and losses, including but not
limited to, demands, claims, obligations, causes of action, judgments, penalties,
fines, liens, costs, expenses, interest, defense costs and reasonable attorney’s fees,
for any damage due to death or injury to any person or injury to any property
(including the loss of use resulting therefrom) to the extent arising out of,
pertaining to or relating to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of
Shepherd’s House in the performance of this Agreement.

(d) In the event Facility is alleged to be liable based upon the above,
Shepherd’s House shall defend such allegations and shall bear all costs, fees and
expenses of such defense, including but not limited to, all reasonable attorneys’
fees and expenses, court costs, and expert witness fees and expenses, using
attorneys approved in writing by Facility, which approval shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

(¢) These provisions shall in no way be limited by any financial responsibility
or insurance requirements, and shall survive the termination of this agreement.

() Facility is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.
Shepherd’s House acknowledges and agrees that Facility is unable to provide
indemnity or otherwise save, hold harmless, or defend the Shepherd’s House in
any manner.



10.

11.

12.

Insurance. Each Party shall be solely responsible, at each Party's sole cost and
expense, for maintaining its own liability insurance, including any workers'
compensation insurance required under applicable law. Further, Shepherd's House
shall obtain and maintain at all times during the term of this Agreement, through
companies or agencies approved by and containing provisions satisfactory to the
Facility, such liability insurance as will protect Shepherd's House and the Facility
from any and all claims for personal injury, including death, and from claims for
property damage or loss thereof, which may arise or result from its provision of the
services described in the aforementioned Exhibit A or through the failure of
Shepherd's House to comply with any of the provisions of this Agreement; and, in
furtherance thereof, Shepherd's House shall include the Facility as a covered insured
under such policy or policies. Further, Shepherd's House shall produce proof of
insurance, by certificate or other suitable evidence that shall remain on file with the
Facility; and Shepherd's House shall notify the Facility of any change in coverage
within three (3) days after any such change becomes effective. The certificate must
include a provision requiring at least sixty (60) days’ notice before cancellation may
become effective; and such insurance shall be incorporated within this Agreement as
a part hereof,

Representations and Warranties.

a) Shepherd's House hereby represents, covenants, and warrants to Facility as a
material part of the consideration for Facility entering into this Agreement as
follows: (i) Shepherd's House is a non-profit corporation, duly organized and
validly existing under the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky; and (ii) the
execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized by all necessary corporate
action on behalf of Shepherd's House.

b) Shepherd's House affirmatively states that there are no actions, suits or
proceedings of any kind pending against Shepherd's House or, to the knowledge
of Shepherd's House , threatened against the Shepherd's House before or by any
court, governmental body or agency or other tribunal or authority which would, if
adversely determined, have a materially adverse effect on the authority or ability
of Shepherd's House to perform its obligations under this Agreement, or which
question the legality, validity or enforceability hereof or thereof.

¢) Facility hereby represents and warrants to Shepherd's House as follows: @A)
Facility is duly organized and wvalidly existing under the laws of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky; and (ii) the execution of this Agreement has been
duly authorized by all appropriate governmental entities on behalf of Facility.

Intellectual Property and Proprietary Information. Neither Party to this Agreement

shall be deemed to be granted any right, title, or interest in or to the trademarks, trade
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13.

names, service marks, copyrights, patents, or other intellectual property of the other
Party, or of any proprietary information of the other Party. Facility and Shepherd's
House expressly acknowledge and agree that, under this Agreement, neither Party is
granted the right to use, refer to, or incorporate into any materials; including, without
limitation, marketing materials; the name, logos, trademarks, or copyrights of the
other Party.

Miscellaneous.

a)
b)

c)

d)

g)

Time is of the essence of this Agreement.

This Agreement, together with all documents incorporated herein by reference, if
any, constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties. There are no terms,
conditions, or provisions, either oral or written, between the Parties other than
those contained in this Agreement.

No amendment to this Agreement shall be enforceable, unless in writing and
executed by the Parties.

Whenever the context may require, any pronouns used in this Agreement shall
include the corresponding masculine, feminine, or neutral forms, and the singular
form of nouns and pronouns shall include the plural and vice versa. Captions
contained in this Agreement are inserted only as a matter of convenience and in

no way define, limit, extend, or describe the scope of this Agreement or of any
provision herein.

This Agreement shall be executed in triplicate originals, but all of which shall
constitute one and the same agreement.

Any term or provision of this Agreement which now or hereafter is declared
contrary to any law, order, ordinance, requirement, ruling, or regulation of any
governmental authority, whether federal, state, or local, whether now in force or
enacted or promulgated in the future, or which is otherwise invalid, shall be
deemed stricken from this Agreement without impairing the validity of the
remainder of this Agreement.

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the law
of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. In the event of any proceedings regarding
this Agreement, the Parties agree that the venue shall be the Fayette County
Circuit Court or the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky,
Lexington Division. All parties expressly consent to personal jurisdiction and
venue in such Court for the limited and sole purpose of proceedings relating to



h)

i)

k)

D

this Agreement or any rights or obligations arising thereunder. Service of process
may be accomplished by following the procedures prescribed by law.

Neither Party shall be entitled to recover special damages in the nature of loss of
profits or consequential damages.

The Parties to this Agreement are acting as independent contractors and
independent employers. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create or be
construed as creating a partnership, joint venture, or agency relationship between
the Parties. Neither Party shall have the authority to bind the other Party in any
respect beyond the terms of this Agreement.

Shepherd's House shall perform all of the Services under this Agreement in
compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations, codes, or orders.

Any failure by either Party, at any time, to enforce or require the other Party's
compliance with any of the terms and conditions in any way, or the right of the
non-defaulting Party at any time to avail itself of any and all remedies it may
have for any breach of said terms and conditions, including, without limitation,
any right to terminate this Agreement, shall not constitute a waiver by such party

of its right to exercise any such or other right, power, or remedy or to demand

A
such compliance. The remedies of the Parties provided for in this Agreement

shall be cumulative with all other remedies that either Party may have against the
other Party at law or in equity.

All the covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be extended
to and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties.

m) The Shepherd’s House shall not assign or subcontract any portion of the

Agreement without the express written consent of Facility. Any purported
assignment or subcontract in violation hereof shall be void. It is expressly
acknowledged that Facility shall never be required or obligated to consent to any
request for assignment or subcontract; and further that such refusal to consent can
be for any or no reason, fully within the sole discretion of Facility.



SIGNATURE PAGE

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Parties by their duly authorized representatives, have executed
this Agreement in triplicate originals as of the day and year first above written.

“FACILITY"
"SHEPHERD'S HOUSE"
Lexington-Fayette Urban County

Government Shepherd's House, Inc.
A Kentucky not-for-profit corporation

BY: ML&EJ
. ()
Name: Linda Gorton, Mayor BY: \
- Narx{e: Jerod M. Thomas
Attest < ¢ VUn  Depd] President/CEO Shepherd’s House,

Urban @@ Council Clerk) Inc.
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” EXHIBIT A

Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Government
Request for Proposals

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government hereby requests proposals for RFP #17-2019
Substance Abuse Program (Male) to be provided in accordance with terms, conditions and
specifications established herein.

Sealed proposals will be received in the Division of Central Purchasing, Room 338, Government
Center, 200 East Main Street, Lexington, KY, 40507, until 2:00 PM, prevailing local time, on
May 1, 2019.

Proposals received after the date and time set for opening proposals will not be considered for
award of a contract and will be returned unopened to the Proposer. It is the sole responsibility of
the Proposer to assure that his/her proposal is received by the Division of Central Purchasing before
the date and time set for opening proposals.

Proposals must be sealed in an envelope and the envelope prominently marked:

RFP #17-2019 Substance Abuse Program (Male) If mailed, the envelope must be addressed to:

Todd Slatin — Purchasing Director
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
Room 338, Government Center

200 East Main Street

Lexington, KY 40507

Additional copies of this Request For Proposals are available from the Division of Central
Purchasing, Room 338 Government Center, 200 East Main Street, Lexington, KY 40507, (859)-
258-3320, at no charge.

Proposals, once submitted, may not be withdrawn for a period of ninety (90) calendar days.



The Proposer must submit one (1) master (hardcopy), (1) electronic version in PDF format
on a flashdrive or CD and five (5) duplicates (hardcopies) of their proposal for evaluation
purposes.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government reserves the right to reject any or all proposals,
and to waive technicalities and informalities when such waiver is determined by the Lexington-
Fayette Urban County Government to be in its best interest.

Signature of this proposal by the Proposer constitutes acceptance by the Proposer of terms,
conditions and requirements set forth herein.

Minor exceptions may not efiminate the proposal. Any exceptions to the specifications established
herein shall be listed in detail on a separate sheet and attached hereto. The Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Government shall determine whether any exception is minor.

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government encourages the participation of minority- and
women-owned businesses in Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government contracts. This
proposal is subject to Affirmative Action requirements attached hereto.

Please do not contact any LFUCG staff member or any other person involved in the selection
process other than the designated contact person(s) regarding the project contemplated
under this RFP while this RFP is open and a selection has not been finalized. Any attempt
to do so may result in disqualification of the firm’s submittal for consideration.

Laws and Regulations

All applicable state laws, municipal ordinances and regulations of all authorities having jurisdiction
over the project shall apply to the contract, and shall be deemed to be incorporated herein by
reference.

Equal Employment Opportunity

The Entity (regardless of whether construction contractor, non-construction contractor or supplier)
agrees to provide equal opportunity in employment for all qualified persons, to prohibit discrimination
in employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex or age, and to promote equal
employment through a positive, continuing program from itself and each of its subcontracting
agents. This program of equal employment opportunity shall apply to every aspect of its
employment policies and practices.

Kentucky Equal Employment Opportunity Act

The Kentucky Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1978 (KRS 45.560-45.640) requires that any
"county, city, town, school district, water district, hospital district, or other political subdivision of the
state shall include in directly or indirectly publicly funded contracts for supplies, materials, services,
or equipment hereinafter entered into the following provisions:

"During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin;



(2) The contractor will state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed
by or on behalf of the contractors that all qualified applicants will receive consideration
for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, or national origin;

(3) The contractor will post notices in conspicuous places, available to employees
and applicants for employment, setting forth the provision of the nondiscrimination
clauses required by this section; and

(4) The contractor will send a notice to each labor union or representative of workers
with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's
commitments under the nondiscrimination clauses."

The Act further provides:
"KRS 45.610. Hiring minorities -- Information required

(1) For the length of the contract, each contractor shall hire minorities from other
sources within the drawing area, should the union with which he has collective
bargaining agreements be unwilling to supply sufficient minorities to satisfy the agreed
upon goals and timetables.

(2) Each contractor shall, for the length of the contract, furnish such information as
required by KRS 45.560 to KRS 45.640 and by such rules, regulations and orders
issued pursuant thereto and will permit access to all books and records pertaining to
his employment practices and work sites by the contracting agency and the
department for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with KRS 45.560 to
45.640 and such rules, regulations and orders issued pursuant thereto.

KRS 45.620. Action against contractor -- Hiring of minority contractor or subcontractor

(1) If any contractor is found by the department to have engaged in an unlawful
practice under this chapter during the course of performing under a contract or
subcontract covered under KRS 45.560 to 45.640, the department shall so certify to
the contracting agency and such certification shall be binding upon the contracting
agency unless it is reversed in the course of judicial review.

(2) If the contractor is found to have committed an unlawful practice under KRS
45.560 to 45.640, the contracting agency may cancel or terminate the contract,
conditioned upon a program for future compliance approved by the contracting agency
and the department. The contracting agency may declare such a contractor ineligible
to bid on further contracts with that agency until such time as the contractor complies
in full with the requirements of KRS 45.560 to 45.640.

(3) The equal employment provisions of KRS 45.560 to 45.640 may be met in part by
a contractor by subcontracting to a minority contractor or subcontractor. For the
provisions of KRS 45.560 to 45.640, a minority contractor or subcontractor shall mean
a business that is owned and controlled by one or more persons disadvantaged by
racial or ethnic circumstances.

KRS 45.630 Termination of existing employee not required, when



Any provision of KRS 45.560 to 45.640 notwithstanding, no contractor shall be
required to terminate an existing employee upon proof that employee was employed
prior to the date of the contract.

KRS 45.640 Minimum skills

Nothing in KRS 45.560 to 45.640 shall require a contractor to hire anyone who fails to
demonstrate the minimum skills required to perform a particular job."

It is recommended that all of the provisions above quoted be included as special
conditions in each contract. In the case of a contract exceeding $250,000, the
contractor is required to furnish evidence that his workforce in Kentucky is
representative of the available work-force in the area from which he draws employees,
or to supply an Affirmative Action plan which will achieve such representation during
the life of the contract.

LFUCG Non-Appropriation Clause

Contractor acknowledges that the LFUCG is a governmental entity, and the contract validity is
based upon the availability of public funding under the authority of its statutory mandate.

In the event that public funds are unavailable and not appropriated for the performance of the
LFUCG's obligations under this contract, then this contract shall automatically expire without
penalty to the LFUCG thirty (30) days after written notice to Contractor of the unavailability and
non-appropriation of public funds. It is expressly agreed that the LFUCG shall not activate this
non-appropriation provision for its convenience or to circumvent the requirements of this contract,
but only as an emergency fiscal measure during a substantial fiscal crisis, which affects generally
its governmental operations.

In the event of a change in the LFUCG’s statutory authority, mandate and mandated functions, by
state and federal legislative or regulatory action, which adversely affects the LFUCG’s authority to
continue its obligations under this contract, then this contract shall automatically terminate without
penalty to the LFUCG upon written notice to Contractor of such limitation or change in the
LFUCG's legal authority.

Contention Process

Vendors who respond to this invitation have the right to file a notice of contention associated with the RFP
process or to file a notice of appeal of the recommendation made by the Director of Central Purchasing
resulting from this invitation.

Notice of contention with the RFP process must be filed within 3 business days of the bid/proposal opening
by (1) sending a written notice, including sufficient documentation to support contention, to the Director of
the Division of Central Purchasing or (2) submitting a written request for a meeting with the Director of
Central Purchasing to explain his/her contention with the RFP process. After consulting with the
Commissioner of Finance the Chief Administrative Officer and reviewing the documentation and/or hearing
the vendor, the Director of Central Purchasing shall promptly respond in writing findings as to the
compliance with RFP processes. If, based on this review, a RFP process irregularity is deemed to have
occurred the Director of Central Purchasing will consult with the Commissioner of Finance, the Chief
Administrative Officer and the Department of Law as to the appropriate remedy.



Notice of appeal of a RFP recommendation must be filed within 3 business days of the RFP
recommendation by (1) sending a written notice, including sufficient documentation to support appeal, to
the Director, Division of Central Purchasing or (2) submitting a written request for a meeting with the
Director of Central Purchasing to explain his appeal. After reviewing the documentation and/or hearing
the vendor and consulting with the Commissioner of Finance and the Chief Administrative Officer, the
Director of Central Purchasing shall in writing, affirm or withdraw the recommendation.

SELECTION CRITERIA:

Pricing (25 points)

Corporate Stability and Expertise (10 points)
Qualifications of the Proposer (35 points)
Quality of Response (30 points)

ol

Proposals shall contain the appropriate information necessary to evaluate based on these criteria.
A committee composed of government employees as well as representatives of relevant user
groups will evaluate the proposals.

Questions shall be submitted via lonWave at: https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net




Affirmative Action Plan

All vendors must submit as a part of the proposal package the following items to the Urban County
Government:

1. Affirmative Action Plan for his/her firm;
2. Current Work Force Analysis Form;

Failure to submit these items as required may result in disqualification of the submitter from award
of the contract. All submissions should be directed to:

Director, Division of Central Purchasing
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
200 East Main Street, 3rd Floor
Lexington, Kentucky 40507

All questions regarding this proposal must be directed to the Division of Central Purchasing, (859)-
258-3320.



AFFIDAVIT

Comes the Affiant, , and after being first duly
sworn, states under penalty of perjury as follows:

1. His/her name is and he/she is the individual
submitting the proposal or is the authorized representative
of , the entity submitting

the proposal (hereinafter referred to as "Proposer").

2. Proposer will pay all taxes and fees, which are owed to the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government at the time the proposal is submitted, prior to award of the contract and will maintain a
"current" status in regard to those taxes and fees during the life of the contract.

3. Proposer will obtain a Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government business license, if applicable,
prior to award of the contract.

4. Proposer has authorized the Division of Central Purchasing to verify the above-mentioned

information with the Division of Revenue and to disciose (o ihe Urban County Council that taxes and/oi
fees are delinquent or that a business license has not been obtained.

5. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of the campaign finance laws of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky within the past five (5) years and the award of a contract to the Proposer

will not violate any provision of the campaign finance laws of the Commonwealth.

6. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of Chapter 25 of the
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Code of Ordinances, known as "Ethics Act."

Continued on next page



7. Proposer acknowledges that "knowingly" for purposes of this Affidavit means, with respect to
conduct or to circumstances described by a statute or ordinance defining an offense, that a person is
aware or should have been aware that his conduct is of that nature or that the circumstance exists.

Further, Affiant sayeth naught.

STATE OF

COUNTY OF

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me

by onthisthe  day

of ,20

My Commission expires:

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE AT LARGE



EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT

Standard Title VI Assurance

The Lexington Fayette-Urban County Government, (hereinafter referred to as the "Recipient”) hereby agrees that as a
condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, it will comply with Title
VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 78Stat.252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 (hereinafter referred to as the “Act”), and all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, U.S. Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of
the Secretary, (49 CFR, Part 21) Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Program of the Department of Transportation —
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafter referred to as the “Regulations”) and other pertinent
directives, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age (over 40), religion,
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Recipient receives Federal financial
assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, including the Federal Highway Administration, and hereby gives
assurance that will promptly take any necessary measures to effectuate this agreement. This assurance is required by
subsection 21.7(a) (1) of the Regulations.

The Law

. Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (amended 1972) states that it is unlawful for an employer to discriminate in
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, age (40-70 years) or national origin.

. Executive Order No. 11246 on Nondiscrimination under Federal contract prohibits employment discrimination by
contractor and sub-contractor doing business with the Federal Government or recipients of Federal funds. This
order was later amended by Executive Order No. 11375 to prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

. Section 502 of the Rehabhilitation Act of 1972 states:

The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of physical or mental handicap.

Section 2012 of the Vietnam Era Veterans Readjustment Act of 1973 requires Affirmative Action on behalf of
disabled veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era by contractors having Federal contracts.

. Section 206(A) of Executive Order 12086, Consolidation of Contract Compliance Functions for Equal Employment
Opportunity, states:

The Secretary of Labor may investigate the employment practices of any Government
contractor or sub-contractor to determine whether or not the contractual provisions
specified in Section 202 of this order have been violated.

KRARKIARIRhARkkhhdkhkkkhkhhxk

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government practices Equal Opportunity in recruiting, hiring and promoting. It is the
Government's intent to affirmatively provide employment opportunities for those individuals who have previously not been
allowed to enter into the mainstream of society. Because of its importance to the local Government, this policy carries the
full endorsement of the Mayor, Commissioners, Directors and all supervisory personnel. In following this commitment to
Equal Employment Opportunity and because the Government is the benefactor of the Federal funds, it is both against the
Urban County Government policy and illegal for the Government to let contracts to companies which knowingly or
unknowingly practice discrimination in their employment practices. Violation of the above mentioned ordinances may cause
a contract to be canceled and the contractors may be declared ineligible for future consideration.

Please sign this statement in the appropriate space acknowledging that you have read and understand the provisions
contained herein. Return this document as part of your application packet.



Bidders

/We agree to comply with the Civil Rights Laws listed above that govern employment rights of minorities, women, Vietnam
veterans, handicapped and aged persons.

Signature Name of Business




WORKFORCE ANALYSIS FORM

Name of Organization:

Categories Total | White Hispani | Black or Native Asian America | Twoor | Tota
(Not cor African- | Hawaiian (Not n Indian more |
Hispani Latino America and Hispani or races
e n (Not Other cor Alaskan (Not
Latino) Hispanic Pacific Latino Native Hispani
or Latino | Islander (not .
(Not Hispanic Latino
Hispanic or Latino
or Latino

M|F| M|F | M| F | M|F| M|F| M| F|M|F |M[F

Administrators

Professionals

Superintendents

Supervisors

Foremen

Technicians

Protective

Para-

Office/Clerical

Skilled Craft

Service/Maintena

Total:

Prepared by: Date: / /

(Name and Title) Revised 2015-Dec-15



DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF CENTRAL PURCHASING
LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT
200 EAST MAIN STREET
LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40507

NOTICE OF REQUIREMENT FOR AFFIRMATIVE ACTION TO ENSURE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITIES AND DBE CONTRACT PARTICIPATION

Notice of requirement for Affirmative Action to ensure Equal Employment Opportunities and
Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (DBE) Contract participation. Disadvantaged Business
Enterprises (DBE) consists of Minority-Owned Business Enterprises (MBE) and Woman-
Owned Business Enterprises (WBE).

The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government has set a goal that not less than ten
percent (10%) of the total value of this Contract be subcontracted to Disadvantaged Business
Enterprises, which is made up of MBEs and WBEs. The Lexington Fayette Urban County
Government also has set a goal that not less than three percent (3%) of the total value of this
Contract be subcontracted to Veteran-owned Small Businesses. The goal for the utilization
of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises as well Veteran —owned Small Businesses as
subcontractors is a recommended goal. Contractor(s) who fail to meet such goal will be
expected to provide written explanations to the Director of the Division of Purchasing of
efforts they have made to accomplish the recommended goal, and the extent to which they
are successful in accomplishing the recommended goal will be a consideration in the
procurement process. Depending on the funding source, other DBE goals may apply.

For assistance in locating Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Subcontractors contact:

Sherita Miller, MPA, Division of Central Purchasing
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
200 East Main Street, 3rd Floor, Room 338
Lexington, Kentucky 40507
smiller@lexingtonky.gov




Firm Submitting Proposal:

Complete Address:

Street

Contact Name:

Telephone Number:

Email address:

City

Title:

Zip

Fax Number:




Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
MWDBE PARTICIPATION GOALS

A. GENERAL

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

The LFUCG request all potential contractors to make a concerted effort to include Minority-
Owned (MBE), Woman-Owned (WBE), Disadvantaged (DBE) Business Enterprises and
Veteran-Owned Small Businesses (VOSB) as subcontractors or suppliers in their bids.

Toward that end, the LFUCG has established 10% of total procurement costs as a Goal for
participation of Minority-Owned, Woman-Owned and Disadvantaged Businesses on this
contract.

It is therefore a request of each Bidder to include in its bid, the same goal (10%) for
MWDBE participation and other requirements as outlined in this section.

The LFUCG has also established a 3% of total procurement costs as a Goal for participation for of
Veteran-Owned Businesses.

It is therefore a request of each Bidder to include in its bid, the same goal (3%) for Veteran-
Owned participation and other requirements as outlined in this section.

PROCEDURES

)]

2)

3)

4)

The successful bidder will be required to report to the LFUCG, the dollar amounts of all
payments submitted to Minority-Owned, Woman-Owned or Veteran-Owned subcontractors and
suppliers for work done or materials purchased for this contract. (See Subcontractor Monthly
Payment Report)

Replacement of a Minority-Owned, Woman-Owned or Veteran-Owned subcontractor or
supplier listed in the original submittal must be requested in writing and must be accompanied
by documentation of Good Faith Efforts to replace the subcontractor / supplier with another
MWDBE Firm; this is subject to approval by the LFUCG. (See LFUCG MWDBE Substitution
Form)

For assistance in identifying qualified, certified businesses to solicit for potential contracting
opportunities, bidders may contact:

a) The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government, Division of Central Purchasing
(859-258-3320)

The LFUCG will make every effort to notify interested MWDBE and Veteran-Owned
subcontractors and suppliers of each Bid Package, including information on the scope of work,
the pre-bid meeting time and location, the bid date, and all other pertinent information
regarding the project.

DEFINITIONS



D

2)

3)

4)

3)

A Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE) is defined as a business which is certified as
being at least 51% owned, managed and controlled by persons of African American, Hispanic,
Asian, Pacific Islander, American Indian or Alaskan Native Heritage.

A Woman-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE) is defined as a business which is certified as
being at least 51% owned, managed and controlled by one or more women.

A Disadvantaged Business (DBE) is defined as a business which is certified as being at least
51% owned, managed and controlled by a person(s) that are economically and socially
disadvantaged.

A Veteran-Owned Small Business (VOSB) is defined as a business which is certified as
being at least 51% owned, managed and controlled by a veteran and/or a service disabled
veteran.

Good Faith Efforts are efforts that, given all relevant circumstances, a bidder or proposer
actively and aggressively seeking to meet the goals, can reasonably be expected to make. In
evaluating good faith efforts made toward achieving the goals, whether the bidder or
proposer has performed the efforts outlined in the Obligations of Bidder for Good Faith
Efforts outlined in this document will be considered, along with any other relevant factors.

OBLIGATION OF BIDDER FOR GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

)

2)
3)

4)

The bidder shall make a Good Faith Effort to achieve the Participation Goal for MWDBE
and Veteran-Owned subcontractors/suppliers. The failure to meet the goal shall not
necessarily be cause for disqualification of the bidder; however, bidders not meeting the
goal are required to furnish with their bids written documentation of their Good Faith
Efforts to do so.

Award of Contract shall be conditioned upon satisfaction of the requirements set forth herein.

The Form of Proposal includes a section entitled “MWDBE Participation Form”. The
applicable information must be completed and submitted as outlined below.

Failure to submit this information as requested may be cause for rejection of bid or delay
in contract award.

DOCUMENTATION REQUIRED FOR GOOD FAITH EFFORTS

D

2)

Bidders reaching the Goal are required to submit only the MWDBE Participation Form.” The
form must be fully completed including names and telephone number of participating
MWDBE firm(s); type of work to be performed; estimated value of the contract and value
expressed as a percentage of the total Lump Sum Bid Price. The form must be signed and
dated, and is to be submitted with the bid.

Bidders not reaching the Goal must submit the “MWDBE Participation Form”, the “Quote
Summary Form” and a written statement documenting their Good Faith Effort to do so. If bid
includes no MWDBE and/or Veteran participation, bidder shall enter “None” on the
subcontractor / supplier form). In addition, the bidder must submit written proof of their Good
Faith Efforts to meet the Participation Goal:

a. Advertised opportunities to participate in the contract in at least two (2) publications of
general circulation media; trade and professional association publications; small and minority



business or trade publications; and publications or trades targeting minority, women and
disadvantaged businesses not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the deadline for submission
of bids to allow MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses to participate.

b. Included documentation of advertising in the above publications with the bidders good faith
efforts package

¢. Attended LFUCG Central Purchasing Economic Inclusion Outreach event

d. Attended pre-bid meetings that were scheduled by LFUCG to inform MWDBEs and/or
Veteran-Owned businesses of subcontracting opportunities

¢. Sponsored Economic Inclusion event to provide networking opportunities for prime
contractors and MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses.

f. Requested a list of MWDBE and/or Veteran subcontractors or suppliers from LFUCG and
showed evidence of contacting the companies on the list(s).

g. Contacted organizations that work with MWDBE companies for assistance in finding
certified MWBDE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses to work on this project. Those
contacted and their responses should be a part of the bidder’s good faith efforts documentation.

d. Sent written notices, by certified mail, email or facsimile, to qualified, certified
MWDBESs and/or Veteran-Owned businesses soliciting their participation in the contract not
less than seven (7) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow them to participate
effectively.

e. Followed up initial solicitations by contacting MWDBEs and Veteran-Owned
Businesses to determine their level of interest.

j- Provided the interested MWBDE firm and/or Veteran-Owned business with adequate and
timely information about the plans, specifications, and requirements of the contract.

k. Selected portions of the work to be performed by MWDBE firms and/or Veteran-Owned
businesses in order to increase the likelihood of meeting the contract goals. This includes,
where appropriate, breaking out contract work items into economically feasible units to
facilitate MWDBE and Veteran participation, even when the prime contractor may otherwise
perform these work items with its own workforce

I. Negotiated in good faith with interested MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses not
rejecting them as unqualified without sound reasons based on a thorough investigation of their
capabilities. Any rejection should be so noted in writing with a description as to why an
agreement could not be reached.

m. Included documentation of quotations received from interested MWDBE firms and
Veteran-Owned businesses which were not used due to uncompetitive pricing or were rejected
as unacceptable and/or copies of responses from firms indicating that they would not be
submitting a bid.



n. Bidder has to submit sound reasons why the quotations were considered unacceptable. The
fact that the bidder has the ability and/or desire to perform the contract work with its own
forces will not be considered a sound reason for rejecting a MWDBE and/or Veteran-Owned
business’s quote. Nothing in this provision shall be construed to require the bidder to accept
unreasonable quotes in order to satisfy MWDBE and Veteran goals.

0. Made an effort to offer assistance to or refer interested MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned
businesses to obtain the necessary equipment, supplies, materials, insurance and/or bonding to
satisfy the work requirements of the bid proposal

p. Made efforts to expand the search for MWBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses beyond
the usual geographic boundaries.

g. Other--any other evidence that the bidder submits which may show that the bidder has made
reasonable good faith efforts to include MWDBE and Veteran participation.

Note: Failure to submit any of the documentation requested in this section may be cause
for rejection of bid. Bidders may include any other documentation deemed relevant to
this requirement which is subject to review by the MBE Liaison. Documentation of Good
Faith Efforts must be submitted with the Bid, if the participation Goal is not met.



S
Aoprunt MINORITY BUSINESS ENTERPRISE PROGRAM

Sherita Miller, MPA

Minority Business Enterprise Liaison

Division of Central Purchasing
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government
200 East Main Street

Lexington, KY 40507
smiller@lexingtonky.gov

859-258-3323

OUR MISSION: The mission of the Minority Business Enterprise Program is to facilitate the full participation of
minotity and women owned businesses in the procurement process and to promote economic inclusion as a
business imperative essential to the long term economic viability of Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government.

To that end the city council adopted and implemented Resolution 484-2017 — A Certified Minority, Women and
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise ten percent (10%) minimum goal and a three (3%) minimum goal for Certified
Veteran-Owned Small Businesses and Certified Service Disabled Veteran — Owned Businesses for government
contracts.

"The resolution states the following definitions shall be used for the purposes of reaching these goals (a full copy is
available in Central Putchasing):

Certified Disadvantaged Business Enterptise (DBE) — a business in which at least fifty-one percent (51%) is owned, managed
and controlled by a person(s) who is socially and economically disadvantaged as define by 49 CFR subpart 26.

Certified Minority Business Entetprise (MBE) — a business in which at least fifty-one percent (51%) is owned, managed and
controlled by an ethnic minority (i.e. African American, Asian American/ Pacific Islander, Hispanic Islander, Native American/ Native
Alaskan Indian) as defined in federal law or regulation as it may be amended from time-to-time.

Certified Women Business Entetptise (WBE) — a business in which at least fifty-one percent (51%) is owned, managed and
controlled by a woman.

Certified Veteran-Owned Small Business (VOSB) — a business in which at least fifty-one percent (51%) is owned, managed and
controlled by a veteran who served on active duty with the U.S. Army, Air Force, Navy, Marines or Coast Guar.

Certified Service Disabled Veteran Owned Small Business (SDVOSB) — a business in which at least fifty-one percent
(51%) is owned, managed and controlled by a disabled veteran who served on active duty with the U.S. Army, Air Force, Navy, Marines or
Coast Guard.

The term “Certified” shall mean the business is appropriately certified, licensed, verified, or validated by an organization
or entity recognized by the Division of Purchasing as having the appropriate credentials to make a determination as to
the status of the business.



We have compiled the list below to help you locate certified MBE, WBE and DBE certified businesses. Below isa

listing of contacts for LFUCG Certified MWDBESs and Veteran-Owned Small Businesses in

(https://lexingtonky.ionwave.net)

Business Development

Business Contact Email Address Phone
LFUCG Sherita Miller smiller@lexingtonky.gov 859-258-3323
Commerce Lexington — Minority Tyrone Tyra ttyra@commercelexington.com 859-226-1625

Tri-State Minority Supplier Diversity
Council

Susan Marston

smarston@tsmsdc.com

502-365-9762

Small Business Development Council

Shawn Rogers

shawn.rogers@uky.edu

859-257-7666

Business Council (WBENC)

UK SBDC
Community Ventures Corporation Phyllis Alcorn palcorn@cvky.org 859-231-0054
KY Transportation Cabinet (KYTC) Melvin Bynes Melvin.bynes2@ky.gov 502-564-3601
KYTC Pre-Qualification Shella Eagle Shella.Eagle@ky.gov 502-782-4815
Ohio River Valley Women’s Sheila Mixon smixon{orvwbe.org 513-487-6537

Kentucky MWBE Certification Program

Yvette Smith, Kentucky
Finance Cabinet

Yvette. Smith@@ky.gov

502-564-8099

National Women Business Owner’s
Council (NWBOC)

Janet Harris-Lange

Small Business Administration

Robert Coffey

janet@nwboc.org

800-675-5066

r_obertcoffey@sba.gov

502-582-5971

LaVoz de Kentucky

Andres Cruz

lavozdeky@yahoo.com

859-621-2106

The Key News Journal

Patrice Muhammad

production@keynewsjournal.com

859-685-8488
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LFUCG MWDBE PARTICIPATION FORM
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference #

The MWDBE and/or veteran subcontractors listed have agreed to participate on this Bid/RFP/Quote. If any
substitution is made or the total value of the wortk is changed prior to or after the job is in progress, it is
understood that those substitutions must be submitted to Central Purchasing for approval immediately. Failure
to submit a completed form may cause tejection of the bid.

| MWDBE Company, Name, MBE Work to be Petformed Total Dollat % Value of
Address, Phone, Email WBE or Value of the Total Contract
DBE Work
1.
2.
3,
4,

'The undersigned company representative submits the above list of MWDBE firms to be used in accomplishing the work
contained in this Bid/RFP/Quote. Any misrepresentation may result in the termination of the contract and/or be subject
to applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and false claims.

Company Company Representative

Date Title




LFUCG MWDBE SUBSTITUTION FORM
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference #

The substituted MWDBE and/or veteran subcontractors listed below have agreed to participate on this Bid/RFP/Quote.
These substitutions were made prior to or after the job was in progress. These substitutions were made for reasons stated
below and are now being submitted to Central Purchasing for approval. By the authorized signature of a representative of
our company, we understand that this information will be entered into our file for this project.

SUBSTITUTED MWDBE Formally Work to Be Reason for the Total Dollar % Value of Total
MWDBE Company Contracted/ Name, Performed Substitution Value of the Contract
Name, Address, Phone, Address, Phone, Work
Email Email
1.
2
3.
4.

The undersigned acknowledges that any misrepresentation may result in termination of the contract and/or be subject to
applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and false claims.

Company Company Representative

Date Title
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- MWDBE QUOTE SUMMARY FORM
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference #

The undersigned acknowledges that the minority and/or veteran subcontractors listed on this form did
submit a quote to participate on this project. Failure to submit this form may cause rejection of the bid.

Company Name Contact Person
Address/Phone/Email Bid Package / Bid Date
MWDBE Contact | Contact Date Services Method of Total dollars $$ | MBE * | Veteran
Company Addres| Person | Information | Contacted | to be Communication | Do Not Leave AA
(wotk phone, performed | (email, phone Blank HA
Email, cell) meeting, ad, (Attach AS
event etc) Documentation) | NA

Female

(MBE designation / AA=African American / HA= Hispanic American/AS = Asian American/Pacific Islander/
NA= Native Ametican)

The undersigned acknowledges that all information is accurate. Any misrepresentation may result in termination of the
contract and/ot be subject to applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and claims.

Company Company Representative

f)ate _ Title
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#w” L FUCG SUBCONTRACTOR MONTHLY PAYMENT REPORT

The LFUCG has a 10% goal plan adopted by city council to increase the participation of minority and women owned
businesses in the procurement process. The LFUCG also has a 3% goal plan adopted by cited council to increase the
participation of veteran owned businesses in the procurement process. In order to measure that goal LFUCG will track
spending with MWDBE and Veteran contractots on a monthly basis. By the signature below of an authorized company
representative, you certify that the information is correct, and that each of the representations set forth below is true. Any
misrepresentation may result in termination of the contract and/or prosecution under applicable Federal and State laws
concerning false statements and false claims. Please submit this form monthly to the Division of Central Purchasing/ 200
East Main Street / Room 338 / Lexington, KY 40507.

Bid/RFP/Quote #
Total Contract Amount Awarded to Prtime Contractor for this Project
Project Name/ Contract # Work Period/ From: To:
Company Name: Address:
Federal Tax ID: Contact Person:
Subcontractor Description | Total % of Total Purchase Scheduled | Scheduled
Yendor ID of Woik Subcontract | Total Amount Order number | Project REgject
(name, address, Amount Contract Paid for for Start Date | End Date
phone, email Awarded | this Period | subcontractor
to Prime work
for this (please attach
Project PO)

By the signature below of an authorized company representative, you certify that the information is correct, and that each
of the representations set forth below is true. Any mistepresentations may result in the termination of the contract and/or
prosecution under applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statements and false claims.

Company Company Representat_ive

Date Title



LFUCG STATEMENT OF GOOD FAITH EFFORTS
Bid/RFP/Quote #

By the signature below of an authorized company representative, we certify that we
have utilized the following Good Faith Efforts to obtain the maximum patticipation
by MWDBLE and Veteran-Owned business enterprises on the project and can supply
the appropriate documentation.

Advertised opportunities to participate in the contract in at least two (2)
publications of general circulation media; trade and professional association
publications; small and minority business or trade publications; and publications or
trades targeting minority, women and disadvantaged businesses not less than fifteen
(15) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow MWDBE firms and
Veteran-Owned businesses to participate.

Included documentation of advertising in the above publications with the
bidders good faith efforts package

Attended LFUCG Central Purchasing Economic Inclusion Qutreach event

Attended pre-bid meetings that were scheduled by LFUCG to inform
MWDBEs and/or Veteran-Owned Businesses of subcontracting opportunities

Sponsored Economic Inclusion event to provide networking opportunities
for prime contractors and MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses

Requested a list of MWDBE and/or Veteran subcontractors or suppliers from
LFUCG and showed evidence of contacting the companies on the list(s).

Contacted organizations that work with MWDBE companies for assistance
in finding certified MWBDE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses to work on this
project. Those contacted and their responses should be a part of the bidder’s good
faith efforts documentation.

Sent written notices, by certified mail, email or facsimile, to qualified,
certified MWDBE:s soliciting their participation in the contract not less than seven
(7) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow them to participate
effectively.

Followed up initial solicitations by contacting MWDBEs and Veteran-
Owned businesses to determine their level of interest.

Provided the interested MWBDE firm and/or Veteran-Owned business with
adequate and timely information about the plans, specifications, and requirements
of the contract.

Selected portions of the work to be performed by MWDBE firms and/or
Veteran-Owned businesses in order to increase the likelihood of meeting the
contract goals. This includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work items



into economically feasible units to facilitate MWDBE and Veteran participation,
even when the prime contractor may otherwise perform these work items with its
own workforce

Negotiated in good faith with interested MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned
businesses not rejecting them as unqualified without sound reasons based on a
thorough investigation of their capabilities. Any rejection should be so noted in
writing with a description as to why an agreement could not be reached.

Included documentation of quotations received from interested MWDBE
firms and Veteran-Owned businesses which were not used due to uncompetitive
pricing or were rejected as unacceptable and/or copies of responses from firms
indicating that they would not be submitting a bid.

Bidder has to submit sound reasons why the quotations were considered
unacceptable. The fact that the bidder has the ability and/or desire to perform the
contract work with its own forces will not be considered a sound reason for
rejecting a MWDBE and/or Veteran-Owned business’s quote. Nothing in this
provision shall be construed to require the bidder to accept unreasonable quotes in
order to satisfy MWDBE and Veteran goals.

Made an effort to offer assistance to or refer interested MWDBE firms and
Veteran-Owned businesses to obtain the necessary equipment, supplies, materials,
insurance and/or bonding to satisfy the work requirements of the bid proposal

Made efforts to expand the search for MWBE firms and Veteran-Owned
businesses beyond the usual geographic boundaries.

Other--any other evidence that the bidder submits which may show that the
bidder has made reasonable good faith efforts to include MWDBE and Veteran
participation.

NOTE: Failure to submit any of the documentation requested in this section may be
cause for rejection of bid. Bidders may include any other documentation deemed
relevant to this requirement which is subject to approval by the MBE Liaison.
Documentation of Good Faith Efforts must be submitted with the Bid, if the
participation Goal is not met.

The undersigned acknowledges that all information is accurate. Any misrepresentations may result
in termination of the contract and/or be subject to applicable Federal and State laws concerning
false statements and claims.

Company

Company Representative

Date

Title



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Each Respondent shall comply with all Federal, State & lLocal regulations
concerning this type of service or good.

The Respondent agrees to comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations
governing safe and healthful working conditions, including the Occupational Health
and Safety Act of 1970, 29 U.S.C. 650 et. seq., as amended, and KRS Chapter
338. The Respondent also agrees to notify the LFUCG in writing immediately upon
detection of any unsafe and/or unhealthful working conditions at the job site. The
Respondent agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the LFUCG harmless from all
penalties, fines or other expenses arising out of the alleged violation of said laws.

Failure to submit ALL forms and information required in this RFP may be grounds
for disqualification.

Addenda: All addenda and lonWave Q&A, if any, shall be considered in making
the proposal, and such addenda shall be made a part of this RFP. Before
submitting a proposal, it is incumbent upon each proposer to be informed as to
whether any addenda have been issued, and the failure to cover in the bid any
such addenda may result in disqualification of that proposal.

Proposal Reservations: LFUCG reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to
award in whole or part, and to waive minor immaterial defects in proposals. LFUCG
may consider any alternative proposal that meets its basic needs.

Liability: LFUCG is not responsible for any cost incurred by a Respondent in the
preparation of proposals.

Changes/Alterations: Respondent may change or withdraw a proposal at any time
prior to the opening; however, no oral modifications will be allowed. Only letters, or
other formal written requests for modifications or corrections of a previously
submitted proposal which is addressed in the same manner as the proposal, and
received by LFUCG prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals, will
be accepted. The proposal, when opened, will then be corrected in accordance
with such written request(s), provided that the written request is contained in a
sealed envelope which is plainly marked “modifications of proposal”.

Clarification of Submittal: LFUCG reserves the right to obtain clarification of any
point in a bid or to obtain additional information from a Respondent.

Bribery Clause: By his/her signature on the bid, Respondent certifies that no
employee of his/hers, any affiliate or Subcontractor, has bribed or attempted to
bribe an officer or employee of the LFUCG.



10.

1.

12.

Additional Information: While not necessary, the Respondent may include any
product brochures, software documentation, sample reports, or other
documentation that may assist LFUCG in better understanding and evaluating the
Respondent’s response. Additional documentation shall not serve as a substitute
for other documentation which is required by this RFP to be submitted with the
proposal,

Ambiguity, Conflict or other Errors in RFP: If a Respondent discovers any
ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in the RFP, it shall
immediately notify LFUCG of such error in writing and request modification or
clarification of the document if allowable by the LFUCG.

Agreement to Bid Terms: In submitting this proposal, the Respondent agrees that
it has carefully examined the specifications and all provisions relating to the work
to be done attached hereto and made part of this proposal. By acceptance of a
Contract under this RFP, proposer states that it understands the meaning, intent
and requirements of the RFP and agrees to the same. The successful Respondent
shall warrant that it is familiar with and understands all provisions herein and shall
warrant that it can comply with them. No additional compensation to Respondent
shall be authorized for services or expenses reasonably covered under these
provisions that the proposer omits from its Proposal.

Cancellation: If the services to be performed hereunder by the Respondent are not
performed in an acceptable manner to the LFUCG, the LFUCG may cancel this
contract for cause by providing written notice to the proposer, giving at least thirty
(30) days notice of the proposed cancellation and the reasons for same. During
that time period, the proposer may seek to bring the performance of services
hereunder to a level that is acceptable to the LFUCG, and the LFUCG may rescind
the cancellation if such action is in its best interest.

A. Termination for Cause

(1) LFUCG may terminate a contract because of the contractor’s failure
to perform its contractual duties

(2)  If a contractor is determined to be in default, LFUCG shall notify the
contractor of the determination in writing, and may include a specified
date by which the contractor shall cure the identified deficiencies.
LFUCG may proceed with termination if the contractor fails to cure the
deficiencies within the specified time.

(3) A default in performance by a contractor for which a contract may be
terminated shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to:
(a) Failure to perform the contract according to its terms, conditions
and specifications;
(b) Failure to make delivery within the time specified or according



13.

14.

15.

to a delivery schedule fixed by the contract;

(c) Late payment or nonpayment of bills for labor, materials,
supplies, or equipment furnished in connection with a contract
for construction services as evidenced by mechanics’ liens filed
pursuant to the provisions of KRS Chapter 376, or letters of
indebtedness received from creditors by the purchasing
agency;

(d) Failure to diligently advance the work under a contract for
construction services;

(e) The filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against the contractor;
or

()  Actions that endanger the health, safely or welfare of the
LFUCG or its citizens.

B. At Will Termination

Notwithstanding the above provisions, the LFUCG may terminate this contract at
will in accordance with the law upon providing thirty (30) days written notice of that
intent, Payment for services or goods received prior to termination shall be made
by the LFUCG provided these goods or services were provided in a manner
acceptable to the LFUCG. Payment for those goods and services shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

Assignment of Contract: The contractor shall not assign or subcontract any portion
of the Contract without the express written consent of LFUCG. Any purported
assignment or subcontract in violation hereof shall be void. It is expressly
acknowledged that LFUCG shall never be required or obligated to consent to any
request for assignment or subcontract; and further that such refusal to consent can
be for any or no reason, fully within the sole discretion of LFUCG.

No Waiver: No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power
or privilege hereunder, nor any single or partial exercise thereof, nor the exercise
of any other right, remedy, power or privilege shall operate as a waiver hereof or
thereof. No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power or
privilege under or in respect of this Contract shall affect the rights, remedies,
powers or privileges of LFUCG hereunder or shall operate as a waiver thereof.

Authority to do Business: The Respondent must be a duly organized and
authorized to do business under the laws of Kentucky. Respondent must be in
good standing and have full legal capacity to provide the services specified under
this Contract. The Respondent must have all necessary right and lawful authority
to enter into this Contract for the full term hereof and that proper corporate or other
action has been duly taken authorizing the Respondent to enter into this Contract.
The Respondent will provide LFUCG with a copy of a corporate resolution
authorizing this action and a letter from an attorney confirming that the proposer is
authorized to do business in the State of Kentucky if requested. All proposals must
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17.

18.

19.

20.

be signed by a duly authorized officer, agent or employee of the Respondent.

Governing Law: This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. In the event of any proceedings
regarding this Contract, the Parties agree that the venue shall be the Fayette
County Circuit Court or the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky,
Lexington Division. All parties expressly consent to personal jurisdiction and venue
in such Court for the limited and sole purpose of proceedings relating to this
Contract or any rights or obligations arising thereunder. Service of process may be
accomplished by following the procedures prescribed by law.

Ability to Meet Obligations: Respondent affirmatively states that there are no
actions, suits or proceedings of any kind pending against Respondent or, to the
knowledge of the Respondent, threatened against the Respondent before or by
any court, governmental body or agency or other tribunal or authority which would,
if adversely determined, have a materially adverse effect on the authority or ability
of Respondent to perform its obligations under this Contract, or which question the
legality, validity or enforceability hereof or thereof.

Contractor understands and agrees that its employees, agents, or subcontractors
are not employees of LFUCG for any purpose whatsoever. Contractor is an
independent contractor at all times during the performance of the services
specified.

If any term or provision of this Contract shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable,
the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and such term or provision
shall be deemed stricken.

Contractor [or Vendor or Vendor's Employees] will not appropriate or make use of
the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (LFUCG) name or any of
its trade or service marks or property (including but not limited to any logo or seal),
in any promotion, endorsement, advertisement, testimonial or similar use without
the prior written consent of the government. If such consent is granted LFUCG
reserves the unilateral right, in its sole discretion, to immediately terminate and
revoke such use for any reason whatsoever. Contractor agrees that it shall cease
and desist from any unauthorized use immediately upon being notified by LFUCG.

Signature Date



RISK MANAGEMENT PROVISIONS
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION

(1)

3)

(4)

It is understood and agreed by the parties that Consultant hereby assumes the entire
responsibility and liability for any and all damages to persons or property caused by or
resulting from or arising out of any act or omission on the part of Consultant or its
employees, agents, servants, owners, principals, licensees, assigns or subcontractors
of any tier (hereinafter “Consultant”) under or in connection with this agreement and/or
the provision of goods or services and the performance or failure to perform any work
required thereby.

Consultant shall indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend the Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Government and its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents,
volunteers, and successors in interest (hereinafter “LFUCG”) from and against all
liability, damages, and losses, including but not limited to, demands, claims, obligations,
causes of action, judgments, penalties, fines, liens, costs, expenses, interest, defense
costs and reasonable attorney’s fees that are in any way incidental to or connected with,
or that arise or are alleged to have arisen, directly or indirectly, from or by Consultant's
performance or breach of the agreement and/or the provision of goods or services
provided that: (a) it is attributable to personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, or death, or
to injury to or destruction of property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom), or to
or from the negligent acts, errors or omissions or willful misconduct of the Consultant;
and (b) not caused solely by the active negligence or willful misconduct of LFUCG.

Nolwithstanding, the foregolng, with respect to any professional services performed by
Consultant hereunder (and to the fullest extent permitted by law), Consultant shall
indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend LFUCG from and against any and all liability,
damages and losses, including but not limited to, demands, claims, obligations, causes
of action, judgments, penalties, fines, liens, costs, expenses, interest, defense costs and
reasonable attorney’s fees, for any damage due to death or injury to any person or injury
to any property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom) to the extent arising out of,
pertaining to or relating to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of
Consultant in the performance of this agreement.

In the event LFUCG is alleged to be liable based upon the above, Consultant shall
defend such allegations and shall bear all costs, fees and expenses of such defense,
including but not limited to, all reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, court costs,
and expert witness fees and expenses, using attorneys approved in writing by LFUCG,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

These provisions shall in no way be limited by any financial responsibility or insurance
requirements, and shall survive the termination of this agreement.

LFUCG is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. CONSULTANT
acknowledges and agrees that LFUCG is unable to provide indemnity or otherwise save,
hold harmless, or defend the CONSULTANT in any manner.

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CONSULTANT understands and agrees that it shall, prior to final acceptance of its proposal and
the commencement of any work or services, demonstrate the ability to assure compliance with the
above Indemnity provisions and these other risk management provisions.



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

YOUR ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO THE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS BELOW, AAND
YOU MAY NEED TO CONFER WITH YOUR INSURANCE AGENTS, BROKERS, OR
CARRIERS TO DETERMINE IN ADVANCE OF SUBMISSION OF A RESPONSE THE
AVAILABILITY OF THE INSURANCE COVERAGES AND ENDORSEMENTS REQUIRED
HEREIN. IF YOU FAIL TO COMPLY WITH THE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS BELOW, YOU
MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FROM AWARD OF THE CONTRACT.

Required Insurance Coverage

CONSULTANT shall procure and maintain for the duration of this contract the following or
equivalent insurance policies at no less than the limits shown below and cause its
subcontractors to maintain similar insurance with limits acceptable to LFUCG in order to protect
LFUCG against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work or services hereunder by CONSULTANT. The cost
of such insurance shall be included in any bid:

Coverage Limits

General Liability $1 million per occurrence, $2 million aggregate
(Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01) or $2 million combined single limit
Commercial Automobile Liability combined single, $1 million per occurrence

(Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001)

Professional Liability $1 million per occurrence
Worker's Compensation Statutory
Employer’s Liability $100,000.00

The policies above shall contain the following conditions:

a. All Certificates of Insurance forms used by the insurance carrier shall be properly filed and
approved by the Department of Insurance for the Commonwealth of Kentucky. LFUCG shall
be named as an additional insured in the General Liability Policy and Commercial
Automobile Liability Policy using the Kentucky DOI approved forms.

b. The General Liability Policy shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance retained by
LFUCG.

c. The General Liability Policy shall include a Products and Completed Operations
endorsement or Premises and Operations Liability endorsement and a Products Liability
endorsement unless they are deemed not to apply by LFUCG.

d. The General Liability Policy shall have a Professional Liability endorsement (including Errors
and Omissions) for any services performed pursuant to the contract, and/or a separate
Professional Liability Policy shall be obtained unless it is deemed not to apply by LFUCG.

e. The Professional Liability policy shall be maintained for a minimum of three years beyond
the completion date of the project, to the extent commercially available. If not commercially
available, CONSULTANT shall notify LFUCG and obtain similar insurance that is
commercially available and acceptable to LFUCG.



f. LFUCG shall be provided at least 30 days advance written notice via certified mail, return
receipt requested, in the event any of the required policies are canceled or non-renewed.

g. Said coverage shall be written by insurers acceptable to LFUCG and shall be in a form
acceptable to LFUCG. Insurance placed with insurers with a rating classification of no less
than Excellent (A or A-) and a financial size category of no less than VIlI, as defined by the
most current Best's Key Rating Guide shall be deemed automatically acceptable.

Renewals

After insurance has been approved by LFUCG, evidence of renewal of an expiring policy must be
submitted to LFUCG, and may be submitted on a manually signed renewal endorsement form. If
the policy or carrier has changed, however, new evidence of coverage must be submitted in
accordance with these Insurance Requirements.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Programs

IF_ YOU INTEND TO SUBMIT A SELF-INSURANCE PLAN IT MUST BE FORWARDED TO
LEXINGTON-FAYETTE URBAN COUNTY GOVERNMENT, DIVISION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT, 200 EAST MAIN STREET, LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40507 NO LATER THAN
A MINIMUM OF FIVE (5) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE RESPONSE DATE. Self-insurance
programs, deductibles, and self-insured retentions in insurance policies are subject to separate
approval by Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government's Division of Risk Management, upon
review of evidence of CONSULTANT's financial capacity to respond to claims. Any such
programs or retentions must provide LFUCG with at least the same protection from liability and
defense of suits as would be afforded by first-dollar insurance coverage. If CONSULTANT
satisfies any portion of the insurance requirements through deductibles, self-insurance programs,
or self-insured retentions, CONSULTANT agrees to provide Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government, Division of Risk Management, the following data prior to the final acceptance of bid
and the commencement of any work:

a. Latest audited financial statement, including auditor's notes.

b. Any records of any self-insured trust fund plan or policy and related accounting
statements.

C. Actuarial funding reports or retained losses.

d. Risk Management Manual or a description of the self-insurance and risk

Mmanagement program.
e. A claim loss run summary for the previous five (5) years.

f. Self-Insured Associations will be considered.

Safety and Loss Control

CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local safety standards related to
the performance of its works or services under this Agreement and take necessary action to
protect the life, health and safety and property of all of its personnel on the job site, the public, and
LFUCG.

Verification of Coverage




CONSULTANT agrees to furnish LFUCG with all applicable Certificates of Insurance signed by a
person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf prior to final award, and if
requested, shall provide LFUCG copies of all insurance policies, including all endorsements.

Right to Review, Audit and Inspect

CONSULANT understands and agrees that LFUCG may review, audit and inspect any and all of
its records and operations to insure compliance with these Insurance Requirements.

DEFAULT

CONSULTANT understands and agrees that the failure to comply with any of these insurance,
safety, or loss control provisions shall constitute default and that LFUCG may elect at its option
any single remedy or penalty or any combination of remedies and penalties, as available,
including but not limited to purchasing insurance and charging CONSULTANT for any such
insurance premiums purchased, or suspending or terminating the work.

00471865



RFP 17-2019
Substance Abuse Program (Males)

GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS:

A. The responsibility for getting the proposal to the Purchasing Office on
or before the stated time and date shall be solely and strictly the
responsibility of the Vendor. The Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government shall in no way be responsible for delays caused by the
United States Postal Service or a delay caused by any other
occurrence, or any other method of delivery. The Vendor shall be
responsible for reading very carefully and understanding completely the
requirements in the specifications. Proposals shall not be accepted after
the time specified for receipt. The official clock is the date/time machine
located in the Division of Central Purchasing.

B. The Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government reserves the right to
postpone the date for receipts and opening of proposals and shall make
a reasonable effort to give at least seven (7) calendar days notice of any
such postponement to each prospective Vendor.

C. Vendors warrant by virtue of proposing that the proposal shall be good
for an evaluation period of ninety (90) calendar days from the date
of RFP opening unless otherwise stated. Vendors shall not be allowed
to withdraw or modify their proposal after the opening time and date.

PROPOSAL OBJECTIVES:

The objective of this Request for Proposals (RFP) is to solicit and obtain responses
from qualified vendors who are qualified substance abuse treatment providers to
provide a substance abuse treatment (SAP) program that would operate within the
Fayette County Detention Center for male state offenders. The Division intends to
operate a twenty (20) bed male program.

Performance Bond Required

Upon award of a contract, the vendor must provide to the Division a
performance bond equal to $100,000. Vendors shall provide, with the proposal, a
letter of commitment from a surety to provide this performance bond upon
contract execution. Failure to submit the letter of commitment for the




performance bond may resulit in the rejection of their proposal.

Term of Contract

The contract resulting from this RFP will be for a period of 3 years with
automatic renewal up to three additional years. The option to renew is at the
sole discretion of the Division. The resulting contract from this RFP may be
canceled by either party thirty (30) days after delivery by canceling party with
written notice of intent to cancel to the other contracting party. This contract
may be canceled by the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government if it is
determined that the vendor has failed to perform under the terms of this
agreement, such cancellation to be effective upon receipt of written notice of
cancellation by the submitter.

Administration Requirements

The following terms shall apply to this RFP and to any subsequent
contract. Submission of a proposal in response to this RFP indicates
acceptance of all the following terms:

1) Contract means the written agreement resulting from this RFP
executed by the Division and the vendor.

2) Division means Division of Community Corrections.

3) Inmate or offender means Division detainee.

4) May or should means a requirement having a significant degree of
importance to the objectives of this RFP.

5) Must, shall, will or mandatory means a requirement that must be met in
order for a proposal to receive consideration.

6) Vendor means an individual or a vendor that submits, or
intends to submit, a proposal in response to this RFP.

Rejection of Proposals/Negotiations

The Division, at its sole discretion, reserves the right to accept or reject, in
part or whole, any or all proposals submitted. Division reserves the right
to negotiate with the selected vendor as to the terms, conditions, services,
rates, commissions, or other pertinent contractual matters. Any negotiated
terms are contingent upon approval of the Director or his designee. The
Division may also choose to reject all proposals and re-issue this RFP, if it is
determined to be in the best interest of Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government.




Failure to Comply

The vendor’s failure to supply any information requested in this RFP may be
cause for rejection of their proposal as non-responsive. The Division reserves the
right to request additional information if clarification is needed. Both the request
and the response must be in writing.

Proposal Presentation Costs

Expenses incurred in preparation of the proposal responses, conference
attendance, site visits, or any other reason or function for the vendor to respond
to this RFP must be the responsibility of the vendor.

Disclosure of Proposal Content

Upon award of contract, the contents of all proposals will be placed in the public
domain and will be open to inspection by interested parties. Pursuant to the
Public Records Act, the Division cannot guarantee or assume any responsibility
for the confidentiality of proposals.

Disposition of Proposals
All proposals become the property of the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government and will not be returned to the vendor.

Gratuities

It is unlawful to offer, promise, or give anything of value or benefit to a Division
employee with the intent to influence that employee’s acts, opinion, judgment or
exercise of discretion with respect to that employee’s duties.

Reporting of Anti-Competitive Practices

When for any reason collusion or other anti-competitive practices are suspected
among any vendors, a written notice of any of the relevant facts must be
transmitted to the Division of Community Corrections for review.

Completeness of the RFP

The vendor is responsible for verifying completeness of the RFP document
received by checking for obvious errors, the correct number of pages, or for
missing portions of text. The table of contents may be used as an aid in verification
of completeness. The vendor must make the Division aware of any ambiguity,
inconsistency, or material error which may be discovered herein.




Exceptions
The vendor must specifically state, in writing, any exceptions it is taking to the

provisions and requirements of this RFP. The Division reserves the right to accept
or reject any exception taken by the vendor to the provisions and requirement of
this RFP.

Inmate/Offender Demographics
The majority of inmates are from the Lexington and the surrounding area, with a
small percentage of state and federal prisoners.

Insurance Requirements

See enclosed INSURANCE PROVISIONS. Vendor’s insurance must be effective for
the entire term of the contract. A certificate of insurance, or a copy thereof, will
be required prior to the awarding of a contract to a vendor. A “Certificate of
Insurability” shall accompany your proposal or it may be disqualified.

Non-Discrimination Requirements

The Division is an equal opportunity employer. The vendor must comply with all
applicable federal, state, and local laws and regulations including the Division’s
equal opportunity requirements. The vendor will not discriminate against any
sub-contractor, employee, or applicant for employment because of age, race,
color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex/gender, sexual orientation, mental
disability, physical disability, medical condition, political beliefs, organizational
affiliations, or marital status in the recruitment, selection for training including
apprenticeship, hiring, employment, utilization, promotion, layoff, rates of pay or
other forms of compensation.

Security Clearance Requirements

All of the vendors' employees, agents, and representatives, wishing to enter the
Division’s detention facility must first receive a security clearance prior to
entrance. The vendor should allow at least three weeks prior to intended entrance
for the security clearance process. Requests for security clearances will be done so
by contacting the Division of Community Corrections. The Division reserves the
right to refuse entrance to any person(s) not in possession of a security
identification badge or to confiscate any security identification badge issued at
its discretion.




Prohibition of Sexual Contact

The vendor shall prohibit sexual contact between inmates and the vendor's
employees, agents, representatives and/or members of its Board of Directors
during the term of the contract.

Prohibition of Financial Relationship

The vendor shall prohibit any financial relationship between inmates and the
vendor's employees, agents, representatives and/or members of its Board of
Directors during the term of the contract.

Conflict of Interest/Nepotism

The vendor shall comply with all conflict of interest and nepotism laws, statutes,
and regulations applicable to non-profit corporations or similar organizations.
The vendor shall not obtain insurance policies from any member of its Board of
Directors. By prohibiting specific relationships, it is not the intent of the parties to
authorize other relationships, which are in violation of laws, statutes, or
regulations.

Confidentiality Requirements

The vendor agrees to comply with and to require its employees, and agents to
comply with all applicable state or federal statutes or regulations respecting
confidentiality, including but not limited to, the identity of persons served under
the contract, their records, or services provided them and assures that:

All applications and records concerning an individual made or kept by the vendor
or any public officer or agency in connection with the administration of or related
to services provided under the contract will be confidential and will not be open
to examination for any purpose not directly connected with the administration
of such service.

No person will publish, disclose, permit or cause to be published or disclosed, any
list of persons receiving services. The vendor agrees to inform all employees,
agents and partners of the above provisions and to further inform them that any
person knowingly and intentionally disclosing such information other than as
authorized by law may be guilty of a misdemeanor.

Disclaimers

Pursuant to the Open Records Act, the Division cannot guarantee or assume any
responsibility for the confidentiality of proposals, or any proprietary or “trade
secret” information that is submitted by an interested vendor in response to this



RFP. Upon execution of the contract, said contract and any attachments thereto
become a public record of the Commonwealth of Kentucky, as do the contents of
all proposals submitted in response to this RFP.

KRS 61.870 “Open Records” define public record as any writing containing
information relating to the conduct of the public business. The Open Records Act
provides that public records must be disclosed upon written request, and that
any citizen has a right to inspect any public record, unless the document is
exempted from the disclosure requirements. The Division cannot represent or
guarantee that any information submitted in response to the RFP will be
confidential. If the Division receives a request for any document submitted in
response to this RFP by an outside party, the Division will not assert any privileges
that may exist on behalf of the person or business submitting the proposal. It
is the responsibility of the person or business entity submitting the proposal to
assert any applicable privileges or reasons why the document should not be
produced and to clearly identify such documents as “confidential.” Simply stating
that the information is confidential or stamping it as confidential is not
acceptable. Vendor must state specifically what information is confidential and
on what basis they claim the information to be confidential.

The Division reserves the right to waive minor irregularities in proposals,
provided that such action is in the best interest of the Division. However, any
such waiver must not modify any remaining proposal requirements or excuse the
vendor from full compliance with the proposal specifications and other contract
requirements if the vendor is awarded the contract.

The Division reserves the right to withdraw this RFP at any time for any reason
and to issue such clarifications, modifications and/or amendments as it deems
necessary. Receipt of proposal materials by the Division, or submission of a proposal
to the Division, offers no rights upon the vendor or obligates the Division in any
manner.

Qualifications of the Proposer:

The program must comply with Commonwealth SAP policy guidelines
(corrections.ky.gov), Kentucky Jail Standards, and Kentucky Department of
Corrections Policy and Procedures particularly 13.8

The program requires a SAP Program Director, and a minimum of one SAP staff per
every twenty (20)-inmate participants.



1. SAP Program Director must meet requirements for licensure as specified in
908 KAR1:370
a. Bachelor’s degree in social or behavioral services, criminal justice, or a
related field
= RN, MSW, CADC, or LPCC
= CADC and LPCC will have to be 2 years post certification
b. Minimum of six (6) years of related experience with at least two (2)
years in management or leadership role; or an equivalent combination
of education, training, and experience
2. SAP Clinical staff must have a Bachelor Degree or equivalent years of clinical
experience

All program staff must meet the minimum criteria and be approved by the Kentucky
Department of Corrections prior to hiring; required to comply with Kentucky
Department of Corrections training. Required to attend jail provider meetings.

Each proposer must submit a certified copy of a current financial report of the
company.

Each proposer shall submit a list of three (3) references, including the name of the
institution, their address, phone number, and a contact person.

Scope of Work:
Qualified substance abuse treatment providers will administer a therapeutic
community model, as approved by the Commonwealth, which must include but is
not limited to:

1. Hazelden: A New Direction--Cognitive behavioral counseling

2. 12 step intervention
3. Relapse prevention

Successful proposal should outline treatment programs and must include but not be
limited to the following:
1. Cognitive behavioral counseling, spiritual based twelve step intervention, and

relapse prevention programming
2. Outline daily hours of operation



Provide a monthly performance report in a form and with content reported dictated
by the Commonwealth. The report submitted to both the Division of Community
Corrections and the Commonwealth.

Inmate success based upon successful completion of respective program phases
based on classroom testing, consistent behavioral change, and active participation.

Responsibilities of the Division
The Division will provide:
1. Drug test program for all participants

a. Every inmate will be drug tested upon entry in to the program

b. Random drug tests of at least 10% of the inmate participants monthly
2. Separate living areas, classrooms, and recreation time from GP inmates.
3. Clothing identifying the offenders as SAP participants.

Performance Monitoring and Compliance
a. The Division shall have the right to audit, when it so determines, the activities

of the vendor to insure contract compliance. The Division may elect to use
a qualified independent auditor or a management firm for this purpose. If
so, the Division will select a third party for audit purposes.

b. At the end of the contract period the vendor will work with Division staff to
facilitate a smooth transition of uninterrupted treatment with the
replacement vendor.

PROPOSAL RESPONSE PREPARATION

A. Proposal Format

a. Vendors must submit proposals that are complete, thorough and accurate.
Vendors must explain, in detail their responses to technical requirements in
technical terms as well as layman’s terms to ensure that the vendor’s
response can be understood by technical staff as well as staff that are
unfamiliar with telephone applications and terminology.

b. A response to a requirement which refers the evaluator to an exhibit or
another section of the report rather than directly answering the question as
presented must be deemed unresponsive to the question. Brochures and
other similar material may be attached to the proposal and referenced as an
exhibit, but must not be used by the evaluation team in determining the
extent to which the proposal is responsive or complete.




c. The vendor must provide a response for each and every qualification,
request for information and requirement listed in this RFP. Each response
must include a statement that the vendor acknowledges the requirement,
how the vendor will accomplish or meet the requirement, and specific
performance measures to monitor vendor performance concerning the
requirement if a contract is awarded.

d. The proposal and any clarification to the proposal must be signed by an
officer of the vendor’s firm or a designated agent empowered by the vendor
to act on its behalf.

B. Letter of Transmittal

The proposal must be accompanied by a Letter of Transmittal signed by a person
who is authorized to commit the vendor to execute and perform the work included
in the proposal.

C. Appendices/Exhibits

This is left to the vendor’s discretion, but in no way must appendices substitute
for a thorough response. Appendices must include materials that will be helpful
in describing the equipment and services being proposed.

EVALUATION OF PROPOSALS

A. Proposal Evaluation Committee

The evaluation will be performed by a Proposal Evaluation Committee. The
Committee may require vendors to provide written clarifications of their
proposal. The selection must be based upon the judgment of the evaluation
committee from its review of the documentation provided in the proposal and
any clarifications thereto.

B. Process Overview

a. Proposals will first be examined to eliminate those that are clearly non-
responsive to the stated requirements. Vendors must exercise care in
reviewing the proposal format portion of the RFP.

b. The detailed evaluation may result in one or more finalists. Presentations
and demonstrations by the top three vendors will be requested. Finalists
will be accorded fair and equal treatment with respect to any opportunity
for discussion and revision of proposals and such revisions may be permitted
after submissions and prior to award for the purpose of obtaining best and



final offers. Presentations will be limited to 45 minutes.

c. It is highly recommended that each finalist provide its own audiovisual
support package, if planning to make an automated presentation. The
Division will provide power strips and a viewing screen.

d. The Proposal Evaluation Committee submits its recommendation to the
Director for review and approval to move forward with the negotiations of a
contract with the recommended vendor.

e. The contract is presented to Council for approval and signed by the Mayor.

C. Proposal Evaluation Factors

Proposals will be evaluated by a Proposal Evaluation Committee and may be
examined by other agencies and/or consultants of the Division. Any response
that takes exception to any mandatory items in this proposal process may be
rejected and not considered.

D. Contract Development and Award of Contract

a. The content of the RFP, RFP Addenda, the vendor’s response and any
correspondence relating to the requirements of the RFP will become an
integral part of the contract for services, but may be modified by the
provisions of the contract.

b. A proposal in response to an RFP is an offer to contract with the Division
based upon the terms, conditions, scope of work and specifications
contained in this RFP. By submission of proposals pursuant to this RFP,
vendors acknowledge that they are amenable to the inclusion in a contract
of any information provided either in response to this RFP or during the
selection process and that they are able to perform the work as required in
the specifications. Further, all vendors, by submitting proposals, agree that
they have read and understand all the terms and conditions and will abide
by the terms and conditions thereof.

c. No contract is binding upon the Division until it is approved by the Director
or his designee and fully executed by both parties. Said Director or designee
has the sole prerogative to accept or reject contract recommendations made
by the Division. Conduct of pre-execution contract negotiations by the
Division with a vendor is not an implicit or explicit guarantee that a
contract will be executed.

d. If the selected vendor fails to sign and return the Contract within fifteen
days of receipt thereof, the Division may annul the award and award the
contract to the next highest ranked vendor. The Division retains the right to




make any subsequent award.

e. The Division shall have the right to use all system ideas, or adaptations of
those ideas contained in any proposal received in response to this RFP.
Selection or rejection of the proposal must not affect this right.

E. Selection Criteria

The RFP Evaluation Committee will conduct a comprehensive evaluation of all
submitted proposals. Each category is assigned a maximum point value. The
categories will be scores as follows:

a. Pricing (25) - Pricing consistent with the requirements specified in the RFP

b. Corporate Stability and Expertise (10) — Each vendor will be evaluated in terms
of the financial stability of the vendor based on the audited financial report
submitted; evaluated on their prior experience providing a substance abuse
program in a correctional setting.

c. Qualifications of the Proposer (35 pts) — Each vendor will be evaluated to
determine the vendor’s qualifications to provide the required staffing and
programming.

d. Quality of Response (30 pts) — each response will be evaluated to determine
the vendor understanding of the project and its ability to perform and meet
each technical specification. Each item must be discussed clearly and
succinctly.

The Final Recommendation - The Proposal Evaluation Committee’s final
recommendation will be based on all the factors mentioned in this RFP.
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Qualifications of the Shepherd’s House

The Shepherd's House, Inc. is a long-term transitional-living recovery treatment program that
has been serving clients with addiction issues, in Lexington, KY, since 1989. Over the past 30
years our curriculum and evidenced-based approach to serving clients in after-care recovery
has remained unchanged.

In recent years, the Shepherds House has expanded its programming and scope of services
beyond its traditional transitional-living model to include working with correctional facilities.
Shepherds House has been successfully operating and managing SAP and 10P programs for the
Boyle County Detention Center for the past four years.

The Shepherd’s House is a licensed Behavioral Health Services Organization; a licensed Alcohol
and Other Drug Entity Residential Program and a licensed Alcohol and Other Drug Entity
Intensive Outpatient Program. (Attachments: 1.1, 1.2, 1.3). The Shepherd’s House presently
offers a variety of services to over 100 men and women in Fayette and Boyle counties. The
following is a brief description of our current programs:

Sober Living and Long-Term Treatment:

The Shepherd’s House transitional-living program is designed to be a 12 to 18-month residential
drug and alcohol treatment program for men 18 years of age and older. A highly structured
program, it promotes personal responsibility and accountability for those seeking sustained
abstinence from mood and mind-altering substances. Those who are admitted are asked to
commit 12-18 months to this program. This program has four phases of transitional-living
beginning with 24-hour care and services in Phase One and progressing to Phase Four graduate
housing where men can live in a safe, sober environment.

The Shepherd’s House maintains a knowledgeable and compassionate staff of treatment
professionals who provides its clients with the personal attention and services required to
achieve long-term abstinence and recovery. This is done by addressing the physical,
psychological, social, and spiritual realms critical for the foundation of a long-term, healthy
lifestyle. Additionally, staff provides individual, group, and family counseling, vocational
training, and job placement assistance when necessary to promote the client’s employability.

At the Shepherd's House we endeavor to assist residents to gain life skills that empower them
to take responsibility for their own lives. We strive to create an atmosphere that is conducive to
recovery and to establish a life-changing fellowship that will ultimately lead to successful
recovery, reunification with families, and re-entry into the work-force and the community. We
are committed to the philosophy that the needs of individuals in recovery are best met through
a healthy reliance on a peer support group, twelve-step programs, and the concept of caring
and sharing. In so doing, we create a framework for our clients to live substance-free lives as
productive members of society.



Substance Abuse Program at the Boyle County Detention Center:

The Shepherd’s House SAP program at Boyle County Detention Center is a drug and alcohol
treatment center licensed through the Office of the Inspector General (0IG). Although the OIG
licenses detention center programs as Intensive Outpatient Treatment Centers, the SAP actually
provides an inpatient experience. The clients, in Boyle County, are adult males age 18 years of
age and older who are being treated for substance use disorder and/or poly-substance use
disorder. Eligible clients are referred to the SAP Program by the Department of Corrections,
The program supports a maximum of forty (40) clients. Residents receive intensive treatment
during the day and evening while serving their state prison sentences in the Boyle County
Detention Center.

Day Reporting / Intensive Outpatient Program in Danville, Kentucky:

The Shepherd’s House Day Reporting Program in Danville is a drug and alcoho! Intensive
Outpatient Treatment Center licensed through the Office of the Inspector General. The clients,
both male and female age 18 years and older, are being treated for substance use disorder
and/or poly-substance use disorder. Clients are referred to the 10P Program by the Boyle
County Jail, Boyle County Courts, and Mercer County Courts. The program supports a
maximum of sixty (60) clients. This is a two-county program because Boyle and Mercer
Counties share the use of the Boyle County Detention Center. Clients receive intensive
treatment during the day and evening in lieu of serving their county jail sentence. This
evidence-based program has lessened over-crowding issues in the jail, is thanging the lives of
the clients being served, and has saved a significant amount of taxpayer dollars that would have
otherwise been spent incarcerating these individuals.



History of The Shepherd’s House

In 1989, a vision and a dream became a reality and the Shepherd's House opened its doors to
recovering alcoholics and addicts. Although founded through the generosity and vision of The
Good Shepherd Episcopal Church of Lexington, the program is not affiliated with any
denomination or religion and is fully self-supporting through independent sources. The
Shepherd’s House is recognized as a program committed to providing quality services to men
and women in recovery from alcoholism and other drugs. We have a sustained focus on the
four-pointed star of hope model: hope for physical, psychological, spiritual, and social
recovery. The Shepherd's House, Inc. is a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization.

We are traditionally known as an after-care long-term transitional-living facility. This is unique
from the typical short-term (28 days or less) treatment center model used around the country.

Our program is rooted in the evidence-based belief that the longer an individual is supported in
early recovery, the better their chances of achieving long-term sobriety. In the past 30 years,
the Shepherd’s House has expanded its programs so we can deliver our services and unique
proven style of treatment to more people. The Shepherd’s House provides a structured, cost-
effective program that offers supportive services to men and women who are alcoholics and/or
have substance use disorder not alcohol-related (i.e., opiate use disorder, methamphetamine,
cocaine, etc.}.

Vision of The Shepherd’s House

The Shepherd's House is committed to providing quality rehabilitation services to men and
women who desire recovery. Our focus is to help clients maintain long-term sobriety, secure
gainful employment, re-integrate into their families, when it's safe to do so, and learn relapse
prevention. Individualized treatment plans are often necessary to meet a client’s unique needs.
It is our vision that all who are accepted into one of our programs will achieve long-term
recovery and become productive citizens in their community. Individual respect and the
encouragement to reach one's full potential, as a human being, is our foundation. Qur Board
and the staff of Shepherd's House continues to develop and improve our programs based on
feedback from clients, our evidence-based outcome studies, program partners, and client’s
individual success.



Mission of The Shepherd's House

At Shepherd's House we endeavor to assist clients in gaining living skills that empower them to
take responsibility for their lives. We strive to create an atmosphere that is conducive to
recovery and to establish a life-changing fellowship that will ultimately lead to a successful
recovery, reunification with families, and re-entry into their community. We believe the needs
of individuals in recovery are best met through a healthy rellance on a peer-support group, 12-
step programs, and the concept of caring and sharing. In so doing, we create a framework for a
life that can be lived substance-free by our clients who are now productive members of society.

Objectives of The Shepherd’s House

i

Assist clients in maintaining sustained abstinence from mood and mind-altering
substances.

Integrate evidence-based treatments that address the client’s physical, psychological,
spiritual, and social needs.

Provide individual, group and family counseling to address the psychosocial issues
related to the client’s addiction.

Require clients to begin taking personal responsibility and be held accountable for their
daily actions through consistent structure.

Assist clients in obtaining gainful employment.

Assist clients with obtaining a sponsor, home group, and recovery support system, and
becoming more active in their AA/NA community.

Teach clients skills designed for relapse prevention.

Create a thorough aftercare plan to allow clients to become more independent and self-
sufficient in meeting their own needs.



Services

The Shepherd’s House Men’s SAP program at the Fayette County Detention Center will be
licensed by the Office of the Inspector General as a drug and alcohol Intensive Outpatient
treatment center. Although the OIG licenses detention center programs as Intensive
Outpatient Treatment Centers, the SAP actually provides an inpatient experience. The clients
are adult males ages 18 years and older who are being treated for alcoholism, and/or substance
use disorder and/or poly-substance use disorder who are referred to the program by the
Department of Corrections. The program supports twenty (20) beds at a rate of $9.00 dollars a
day ($9.00 per diem), per client, which will be paid by the Department of Corrections. Male
residents will receive intensive treatment during the day while serving their state prison
sentences in the Fayette County Detention Center. Evening hours will be scheduled with
therapeutic and other activities will include 12-step recovery meetings and SMART recovery
meetings. The group dynamic is a therapeutic community model. A therapeutic community
model is an evidence-based participative, group-based and peer-supported approach to long-
term residential treatment,

The Shepherd’s House SAP provides evidence-based treatment, which involves the integration
of best practices with clinical expertise in the areas of patient characteristics, culture, and
preferences along with 12-step support programming. All clients participate in group and
individual therapy. The program uses cognitive behavioral therapy (CBT) which is a short-term,
goal-oriented psychotherapy treatment that takes a hands-on, practical approach to problem-
solving. The goal of CBT is to change patterns of thinking and behavior that are at the root of a
person's difficulties, thereby changing the way they feel and respond to personal challenges. In
order to maximize both mind and body recovery, all clients participate (to the extent they are
physically able) in our full wellness program which focuses on integral issues like diet, exercise,
meditation, and other healthy life skills,

The SAP program will feature an exceptional aftercare program that will include a one-year
post-discharge plan. In this stage of treatment, we will focus on relapse prevention and re-entry
into families and society. We will also provide referrals to other facilities and commupity-based
programs in each client’s home geographic area that will provide additional resources and
services like sober living and/or outpatient treatment. Whenever possible, each client will be
introduced to a local contact and support group in their home community before being
discharged. Of particular value to our clients is the fact the SAP Staff will work with the
Department of Corrections to assure the client has additional post-treatment support. SAP
staff will also work in tandem with the Department of Corrections to ensure the aftercare plan
is complementary to the guidelines of the individual's probation and/or parole requirements.



Programming: Therapeutic Community model

The Shepherd’s House Men’s SAP program at the Fayette County Detention Center will be a six-
month program which is structured in phases. Shepherd’s House will provide 35 hours of
evidence-based programming each week. Programming will begin at 8:00am and will end at
4:00pm, Monday through Friday. Clients will follow a daily schedule {Attachment: 6.1) that is
based on their current phase. Classes, activities, and groups will be in designated blacks of time.
There is an orientation phase followed by four additional phases. Orientation will last one

week. Phases 1,2 and 3 will typically last seven weeks, and Phase 4 (re-entry) will last for four
weeks. Clients will move from class to class and activity to activity throughout the day. Each
day will consist of core curriculum course work, secondary curriculum course work, 12-step
work, group therapy, process groups, activities, wellness activities, and accountability. Built into
the program, each client will have individualized treatment suggestions and meet with his
primary counselor weekly to discuss his treatment goals as well as his progress in the program.

Although the program hours run from 8:00am to 4:00pm, Monday through Friday, this does not
mean treatment stops in the evenings or on weekends. Our SAP program is based on the
Therapeutic Community (TC) model. Therapeutic communities have a recovery orientation,
focusing on the whole person and overall lifestyle changes, not simply abstinence from drug
use. Recovery is seen as a gradual, ongoing process of cognitive change through clinical
interventions. It is expected that it takes time for program participants to advance through the
phases of the program and personal goals are set along the way. Therapeutic Communities
encourage one another to look at their personal behavior to help them become more social and
to begin living in a right and healthy manner. Our Therapeutic Community is based on honesty,
taking responsibility, hard work, and a willingness to learn. As residents progress through the
phases of this program, they assume greater personal and social responsibilities in their
community. As clients progress in their recovery they assume leadership roles within the
Therapeutic Community. This is an evidence-based outcome determined by our other SAP
programs.

Our Therapeutic Community expects active participation in group living and other activities
which will lead to change and encourage clients to achieve their goals. By placing an emphasis
on socialization and group reflection, clients will take on some of the responsibility of their
peers' recovery. An additional benefit, of the Therapeutic Community, is that clients learn to
lean on one another and ask for help. This will aid the client when he is released and returns to
his family and/or community. His willingness to seek assistance will allow him to take advantage
of community-based services as well as 12 step programming in his area. Relapse prevention is
a big part of our treatment program, Increasing awareness of relapse triggers and building
personal coping skills will reduce the likelihood of relapse and recidivism. As these men move
towards completion of the Therapeutic Community program, the Shepherd’s House will aid
these men in connecting with formal after-care and self-help groups in their community,



Program elements include:

- Individual Treatment Planning
- Individual Therapy
Group Therapy
- Intake
Drug testing
URICA - University of Rhode Island Change Assessment
- CJKTOS - The Criminal Justice Kentucky Treatment Outcome Study (follow-up)
Effective communication
- Parenting
Anger management
- Time bomb tactics
Conflict Resolution
- Impulsivity control
- Stress management
Relationships
Mapping
Goal-setting
Journaling
Resume building
Job search training
Mock interviewing
12-step meetings
- 12-step work
- SMART Recovery meetings
- SMART Recovery work
Guest Speakers
Recovery-oriented challenges
Autobiography writing
Exercise
Nutritional counseling
Meditation



Core Curriculum

Hazelden: A New Direction

The Shepherd’s House Men'’s SAP Program at the Fayette County Detention Center will use
Hazelden’s o New Direction as our curriculum. A New Direction is a comprehensive cognitive-
behavioral therapy treatment program that trains chemically dependent offenders to challenge
their thinking in order to change their criminal and addictive behavior patterns, The curriculum
is divided into modules that address the following areas: (1) Intake and Qrientation; (2) Criminal
and Addictive Thinking; (3) Drug and Alcohol Education; (4) Socialization: (5) Relapse
Prevention; and (6) Release and Reintegration Preparation. With the exception of the Intake
and Orientation module, each module has a long-term and short-term version which can
accommodate different lengths of stay. {Attachment: 8.1)

The curriculum is evidence-based and integrates:

» criminal thinking;

« addictive thinking;

» concepts of the social-cognitive theory;

+ interpersonal communication skills training;

+ cognitive problem solving and restructuring; and
e reflective communication.

Attendant Curriculum

TCU Mapping Matrix

In addition to our core curriculum, the Shepherd’s House Men's SAP Program will use some
elements of the Texas Christian University Mapping Matrix. Mapping is a visual representation
counseling strategy for improving communication and decision-making that can enhance any
therapeutic or psycho-educational exercise, either in a group or individual settings. Evidence
shows it significantly improves treatment engagement and client progress indicators and helps
compensate for a variety of cognitive and social deficits common among drug users in
treatment.

Anger Management: Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Association

The SAMHSA Anger Management tool assists clinicians in teaching anger management
techniques in a group or individual setting to clients with substance abuse problems and/or
mental iliness. This methodology uses cognitive behavioral therapy to address the anger cycle,
conflict resolution, assertiveness skills, and anger-control plans. This workbook summarizes
core concepts for each session; includes worksheets and individualized homework assignments.



Relapse Prevention

A client’s aftercare plan begins before he is released from prison. The SAP program will feature
an emphasis on exceptional aftercare services. The key to an outstanding aftercare plan is the
incorporation of a relapse prevention action plan. Each client must develop a relapse
prevention action plan with his counselor and his Therapeutic Community (TC) before he
qualifies for graduation. In this plan a client must identify his relapse triggers and understand
the stages and types of relapse. Relapse is a process, it's not an event. There are three stages
to relapse.

The Three Stages of Relapse

1. Emotional Relapse
2. Mental Relapse
3. Physical Relapse

Emotional Relapse: in emotional relapse, you're not thinking about using. However, your
emotions and toxic behaviors are setting you up for a possible relapse in the future,

The signs of emotional relapse are:

Anxiety

Intolerance

Anger

Defensiveness

Mood swings

Isolation

Not asking for help

Not attending 12 step meetings
. Poor sleeping habits

10. Poor eating habits

© PN W s W e

Early Relapse Prevention

Relapse prevention, at the emotional relapse stage, requires a man to recognize he is in an
emotional relapse and that he must change his behavior. A man must learn to recognize he is
isolating himself from others and remind himself it is normal to ask for help. He must recognize
when he is becoming anxious and learn to practice relaxation techniques. He must recognize
his sleeping and eating habits are becoming unhealthy and begin to again practice self-care.

If he doesn't change his behavior, at this stage, and continues to live in this stage of emotional
relapse, he will become emotionally exhausted, and when he's exhausted, he will want to
escape, which will move him into the next stage of relapse: mental relapse.



Self-Care: The most important thing he can do to prevent relapse, at this stage, is to take better
care of himself. The man must reflect upon ‘why he uses’. He used drugs and/or alcohol to
escape, relax, or reward himself. He will relapse when he doesn't take care of himself, Ignoring
self-care creates situations that are mentally and emotionally draining which will make him
want and/or feel like he needs to escape.

Seif-care also includes letting go of his resentments and fears through some form of relaxation
and working the 12 steps. Working the 12 steps will build his self-worth to the point where he
will begin (once again) to feel comfortable in his own skin. If he doesn’t ask for help, he begins
to feel isolated. Failing to learn how to manage these relapse triggers for too long allows the
thought of using to become more pervasive. But by practicing self-care, he can prevent these
feelings and thoughts from increasing, thereby avoiding relapse.

Mental Relapse

In mental relapse there's a war going on in his mind. Part of him wants to use, but part of him
doesn't. In the early phase of mental relapse, a person is toying with the idea of using. But in
the later phase a person is seriously focusing and thinking about using,

The signs of mental relapse are:

Thinking about oid (toxic) peopie, places and things
Telling war stories, glamorizing using drugs or alcohol
Hanging out with old using friends

Lying, cheating and stealing

Fantasizing about relapsing

Thinking about relapsing

Making reservations for your next relapse

Nowvwswmnp

Techniques for Dealing with Mental Urges:

When thoughts of relapse begin occurring, the individual must learn to “play the tape all the
way through.” Before the actual relapse, he is thinking about using, he fantasizes this time will
be different, { will be able to control my use this time. For example, he tells himself "Vl just
have one drink” and then go home. But he must become proficient in “playing the tape all the
way through.” For an alcoholic, it’s the first drink that gets you drunk. One drink always leads
to another. He must be reminded he’ll wake up the next day feeling disappointed in himself (or
worse, perhaps back in jail). He must acknowledge he may not be able to stop the next day,
and soon returns to the same vicious and deadly cycle he was in before. When he becomes
proficient (through practice) in “playing the tape all the way through” -- to its only logical
conclusion -- using doesn't seem so appealing. A great reminder of our inability to “control”
our addiction is the popular recovery saying that “if you do what you always did, you'll get what
you always got.”
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Another common mental urge is that we can “get away with it” {using), “no one will know”.
Perhaps this is true for a short period of time, maybe his spouse is away for the weekend, or
he’s away on a business trip. These are only a few examples of times when his addiction will try
to convince him that he doesn't actually have a big problem. His addiction may tell him he’s
really only doing his recovery work to please his spouse or his employer. Addiction centers in
his mind. But, if he plays the tape all the way through, he’ll remind himelf of the negative
consequences he and his loved ones have already suffered. He will reflect upon the potential
consequences that lie around the corner if he relapses again. He will recall, for example, that if
he could control his use, he would not have been introduced to this program.

Clients must learn how to ask for help by telling someone that they’re having urges to use.

They must be trained to immediately call a friend, a support system member, or someone else
in recovery. They must be willing to share with a safe person what it is they’re going through.
The magic of sharing is that when we start talking about what we're thinking and feeling, in that
moment we take the power away from our disease. Our urges begin to disappear, they don't
seem quite so real or threatening and we don't feel alone.

Clients will be taught to use distractions and time management to manage mental relapse.
They're instructed that when they start to think about using, they must do something to occupy
and distract themselves. They learn to call a friend. Go to a meeting. Get up and go for a walk.
Things that are not intuitive to the alcoholic or addict. They learn that if they just sit there with
their urges and don't do anything, they’re giving their mental relapse room to grow.

We teach clients to wait for 30 minutes before taking any (negative) actions. It's proven that
most urges usually last for less than 30 minutes. When a client is having an urge, it feels like an
eternity. But if they can keep themselves busy and do the things they’re supposed to do; their
urges will disappear quickly.

It's a well-worn slogan, but it’s absolutely true that we can only do our recovery one day at a
time. Sometimes it's one hour at a time. We encourage our clients not to focus on whether
they can stay abstinent forever. The thought of forever can be paralyzing. Forever is even
overwhelming for people who've been in recovery for a long time. We consider early recovery
as being 5 years,

One day at a time means one must match his goals to his emotional strengths. When he feels
strong and is motivated to not use, then he must tell himself that he won't use for the next 24
hours, the next week or the next month. But when he is struggling and having repeated urges
to use -- and early on those times will happen often — he must tell himself he won't use for
maybe the next 30 minutes. If he can break down his recovery into “bite-sized chunks” he’ll be
less likely to sabotage himself by thinking too far ahead.

Relaxation is an important part of relapse prevention, because when we're tense, we tend to do
what’s familiar and wrong, instead of what's new and right. When we're tense, we tend to
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repeat the same mistakes made before. When we're relaxed, we are more open to acceptance
of the present situation and changing our behaviors.

Physical Relapse

Once you start thinking about relapse, if you don't use some of the recommended techniques in
your relapse prevention action plan, it doesn't take long to go from the mental relapse to the
actual physical relapse - that is, going to get a drink or calling your dealer for a fix.

It's hard to stop the process of relapse at that point. That's not where we must focus our efforts
in recovery, especlally in early recovery. Achieving abstinence, through brute force, may be
abstinence, but it’s not recovery. When someone recognizes the difference, early warning signs
of relapse, and understands the symptoms of post-acute withdrawal, they will be able to stop
themselves from relapse before it's too late.

Triggers:

Relapse triggers are social, environmental or emotional situations that remind people in
recovery of their past alcohol or drug use. These cues bring about urges and anxiety that may
lead to a relapse. There are certain triggers that are fairly common among those in recovery,

The Ten most common relapse triggers

HALT: Allowing yourself to be too Hungry, too Angry, too Lonely, or tao Tired
Emotions

Stress

Over-confidence

Mental or physical iliness

Social isolation

Sex and relationships

Getting a promotion or new job

Reminiscing about or glamorizing past drug use

. Social situations or places where drugs are available

LN AWNE
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Twelve Step and Alternative Support Programming:
Alcoholics Anonymous

The Shepherd’s House will use Alcoholics Anonymous as its 12-step support program in the
Fayette County Detention Center Men’s Substance Abuse Program. Alcoholics Anonymous is an
international fellowship of men and women who share their experience, strength, and hope
with each other that they may solve their common problem and help others to recover from
alcoholism. It is nonprofessional, self-supporting, multiracial, apolitical, and available almost
everywhere in the World. There are no age or education requirements and no dues or fees for
services. Membership is open to anyone who has the desire to stop drinking. Since the first
publication of Alcoholics Anonymous in 1939, it has helped millions of men and women recover
from the seemingly hopeless state of mind and body.

THE TWELVE STEPS OF ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS: AA’s Twelve Steps are a group of principles,
spiritual in nature, but not religious, which, if practiced as a way of life, can expel the obsession
to drink and enable the sufferer to become happily and usefully whole.

THE TWELVE TRADITIONS OF ALCOHOLICS ANONYMOUS: AA’s Twelve Traditions apply to the
life of the Fellowship itself. They outline the means by which AA maintains its unity and relates
itself to the world about it, the way it lives and grows.

SPONSOR: A sponsor in AA is someone who can help guide the individual trying to recovery
through the program of Alcoholics Anonymous, and more specifically, through the process of
working the 12 steps. This person is generally someone who has a good amount of sobriety
under their belt and feels comfortable guiding others through difficult times in their sobriety. A
sponsor is an understanding and sympathetic person whom you can trust and turn to when you
encounter problems associated with alcohol and sobriety. Sponsorship is a vital tool for the 12-
step pathway of recovery. Although there are no formal sponsorship rules, it’s recommended
that a sponsor have at least one to two years of sobriety and have worked the 12-steps
themselves before they begin to sponsor others. A sponsor can assist an individual from
relapsing.

HOME GROUP: Through the years, AA members have found it important to belong to one
group which they call their Home Group. This is the group where they create accountability for
themselves, accept their responsibilities, help others, and create strong friendships. All AA
members are welcome, at most groups, and feel at home at any of these meetings. The
concept of the Home Group remains the strongest bond between the AA member and the
Fellowship. The Home Group has been called the heartbeat of AA, where we are loved by
others until we can learn to love ourselves.
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Our immediate recovery family is the Shepherd’s House Staff. We introduce clients to
Alcoholics Anonymous by organizing 12 step meetings in the jail among the SAP community.
We introduce clients to the twelve steps and impress upon them the importance of
sponsorship. Clients begin working the 12 steps of AA while they are in the detention center's
Substance Abuse Program. Clients will be given a working knowledge of the 12-steps, the
importance of sponsorship, attending meetings, and joining a home group prior to release. As
part of their aftercare plan, a client will receive a list of meetings in the town to which they are
returning. Before they are released from the Fayette County Detention Center, the SAP Staff
will arrange for each man to meet a male AA member and this man will take them to their first
AA meeting after release and upon returning home.

SMART RECOVERY

In federal litigation, Alcoholics Anonymous has been labeled a religious program per federal
law. Although arguable, as a result of this litigation all jail and prison substance abuse programs
must provide clients with an alternative, “non-religious” form of recovery support if requested.
The Shepherd’s House will use SMART Recovery as its alternative recovery program in the
Fayette County Detention Center Men’s Substance Abuse Program. At the Shepherd’s House,
we believe in AA and we have seen the 12 steps produce miracuious resuits. However, because
we must offer an alternative, we have found that SMART Recovery is the best available option,
and it is approved by the Department of Corrections. Although not nearly so prevalent as AA,

SMART Recovery is becoming more available in communities.

SMART recovery stands for Self-Management and Recovery Training. It is not a 12-step group,
like Alcoholics Anonymous (AA) or Narcotics Anonymous (NA). SMART Recovery is a four Point
program that helps people recover from all types of addictive behaviors, including: alcoholism,
drug abuse, substance abuse, drug addiction, alcohol abuse, gambling addiction, cocaine
addiction, and addiction to other substances and activities.

The Four Points:

Point 1: Building and Maintaining Motivation

Point 2: Coping with Urges

Point 3: Managing Thoughts, Feelings and Behaviors
Point 4: Living a Balanced Life
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The SMART Recovery 4-Point Program employs a variety of toals and techniques to help
individuals gain independence from addiction and addictive behaviors. Participants are
encouraged to learn how to use each tool and to practice the tools and techniques as they
progress toward Point 4 of the program — achieving lifestyle balance and leading a fulfilling and
healthy life. These tools include:

~ Stages of Change

— Change Plan Worksheet

— Cost/Benefit Analysis (Decision Making Worksheet)

— ABCs of Rational Emotive Behavioral Therapy for Urge Coping

— ABCs of Rational Emotive Behavioral Therapy for Emotional Upsets

— DISARM (Destructive Images and Self-talk Awareness & Refusal Method)
— Hierarchy of Values

— Brainstorming

~ Role-playing and Rehearsing

— USA (Unconditional Self-Acceptance)

The Shepherd’s House Staff will introduce men, who elect to use SMART Recovery, to SMART
Recovery meetings which will be held in the jail among the SAP community. We will introduce
clients to SMART Recovery books, workbooks and work sheets. Clients will begin working the
SMART Recovery program while they are in the Fayette County Detention Center Men's
Substance Abuse Program. Clients will receive a working knowledge of the SMART 4-points
program and they will understand the importance of following the curriculum. As part of their
aftercare plan, a client will receive a list of SMART Recovery meetings in their hometown. If
none available, they will be introduced to daily online meetings. When possible, a connection
to 3 local SMART Recovery participant will be made prior to release.
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Staffing Pattern

The Shepherd’s House Men'’s Substance Abuse Program at the Fayette County Detention Center
will consist of 1.5 employees. There will be one Counselor and a part-time Program Director,
The full-time counselor will have up to twenty (20) clients to manage while serving as primary
counselor to each of these clients. The counselor will have a bachelor’s degree and, at a
minimum, be a Temporary Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor (TCADC). The part-time
program director will review assessments, treatment plans, confirm the appropriateness of
treatment, or modify treatment weekly. The Program Director will set the daily schedule and
verify that 35 hours of evidence-based treatment is being delivered weekly. The Program
Director will be a licensed Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor (CADC) and will be, ata
minimum, 2 years post certification. The Shepherd’s House will also provide a Clinical Director
who will supervise all clinical staff members of the Fayette County Detention Center Men's
Substance Abuse Program. The Clinical Director will audit client files, review referrals and
aftercare plans, and observe both group and individual therapy. Observations by the Clinical
Director will be done monthly, at a minimum, to assure best practices and a high quality of care
is being provided. The Clinical Director will be a Licensed Clinical Social Worker {LCSW).

Program Director: jerod Thomas M.Ed., CADC

Jerod Thomas, M.Ed., CADC began his treatment career as a drug and alcohol counselor at
WestCare Kentucky, a non-profit substance abuse program located in Ashcamp, KY. Jerod was
subsequently named as the Program Director for the Substance Abuse Program at the Boyle
County Detention Center. Under Jerod's direction and leadership, the Boyle County Detention
Center Substance Abuse Program became one of only a few licensed (through the Office of the
Inspector General) detention center SAP facilities in the Commonwealth of Kentucky. lerod
was ultimately promoted to Deputy Administrator at WestCare. Jerod supervised and managed
the day-to-day operations of all of the treatment facilities in the Commonwealth of Kentucky
where WestCare provided substance abuse services and programs. This included one inpatient
treatment center, two prison programs, two day-reporting programs, two transitional living
programs, two homeless shelters, and the Pikeville University student assistance program.
Jerod currently serves as the President/CEO for the Shepherd’s House, Inc., a 501-(c)(3) non-
profit, transitional living recovery program in Lexington KY., The Shepherd’s House manages
several programs: A Substance Abuse Prison Program, An IOP Day Reporting Program, and four
long- term residential and transitional living treatment centers for men.
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Clinical Director: Connie Milligan, LCSW

Connie P. Milligan, LCSW has 35 years of experience in the mental health field with expertise
working with people who are justice involved. For much of her career she worked in
Community Mental Health moving from direct services into executive leadership position As
Corporate Director over numerous regional and statewide programs, she provided program
development, management and training. She is responsible for the development of innovative
programs including the KY Mental Health Crisis Network for Jails, KY Suicide Prevention Board,
Bluegrass Crisis Line, KY Community Crisis Intervention Board, CIT training for the Bluegrass
Region, Bluegrass Re-entry Council, Fayette Co. Decriminalization Council and Fayette Co.
Mental Health Court. Currently she provides clinical expertise to the Fayette County Mental
Health Court and consultation and training for the SAMSHA GAINS Center, in addition to having
a private clinical practice.

She has co-authored seven articles about her work with Kentucky jails and has been honored
with numerous awards, Connie is a graduate of Transylvania University and earned a master’s
degree in Social Work at the University of Kentucky. She is a Licensed Clinical Social Worker.

Startup Team: Tanith Wilson, Boyle County Detention Center SAP Program Director

Tanith Wilson will lead the startup team. Tanith has a Bachelor of Science in Psychology, and a
Bachelor of Science in Human Services, with a minor in Criminal Justice. She received her
degrees from the University of the Cumberlands where she is currently enrolled to begin
graduate school pursuing a Dual Masters in Mental Health Counseling and Addiction
Counseling. She has 11 years of experience working with those who suffer from substance use
disorders. She is currently a licensed TCADC and is under clinical supervision, Tanith struggled
with her own addiction for many years. After finding her way to recovery, she began her career
at The Liberty Ranch. She started as the second shift monitor and eventually was promoted to
Program Director. Tanith dedicated eight years of her life serving the residents of this private
drug and alcohol recovery center. Tanith then became employed through the Kentucky Courts
of Justice where she served as a Recovery Coordinator for the Fayette County Drug Court. She
is currently employed by the Shepherd’s House as the Program Director at its Boyle County
Detention Center Substance Abuse Program. She is responsible for ensuring that OIG as well as
DOC regulations are adhered to. She is also responsible for evidence-based programming,
client individual and group counseling, psycho-educational classes, and family education.
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Job Descriptions

Program Director:

*Responsible for curriculum and treatment models; responsible for ensuring that OIG as well as
DOC regulations are adhered to.

*Acts as Liaison with Department of Corrections and all Fayette County officials;

*Manage staffing and personnel matters;

* Utilize counseling and psychotherapy to evaluate and treat each client’s emotional and
mental health problems and conditions, whether cognitive, behavioral, or affective;

* Assess each client’s needs and make decisions regarding delivery of the appropriate
individual, group, and family counseling;

* Conduct interviews and make assessments of clients to determine need and appropriateness
for program participation and referrals;

* Create Individual Treatment / Service Plans; and

* Supervise and direct the activity of counselors, interns, and office staff.

Counselor:

* Utilize counseling and psychotherapy Y
problems and conditions, whether cognitive or behavioral;

* Assess each client’s needs and make decisions regarding the delivery of the appropriate
individual, group, and family counseling;

* Conduct interviews and make assessments of clients to determine need and appropriateness
for program participation and referrals;

* Create individual Treatment / Service Plans/ Aftercare Plans/ Relapse Prevention Action Plans:
and

* Supervise and direct the activity of interns and office staff.
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Pricing and Billing

Pricing: This is a Department of Corrections program so pricing has been established. The
program supports twenty (20) beds at a rate of $9.00 dollars a day ($9.00 per diem), per client,
which will be paid by the Department of Corrections. This per diem is non-negotiable. The
Shepherd’s House will compile a billing roster each day of the month at the end of each month.
{Attachment: 19,1} The Shepherd’s House Program Director will check the roster with the
Administrative Captain in charge of billing at the Fayette County Detention Center to make sure
we have the same number of billable days. The Shepherd’s House will submit a billing invaice
and roster to Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government. (Attachment 19.2) The Lexington-
Fayette Urban County Government will receive this invoice by the fifth (5"%) day of the month
following the month for which services are billed. (e.g., July billing will be submitted no later
than August 5).

Uniforms: Clients participating in the Fayette County Detention Center Men’s Substance Abuse
Program will wear uniforms not the same attire as the general population inmates. We do this
for several reasons: 1) To foster pride in the program; 2} So that clients commit to waking up
each morning and dressing for their work day; and 3) to eliminate the “jailhouse” mentality and
to begin re-familiarizing clients with the idea of being back in society. The jail or prison is
responsible for the purchase of these uniforms. These are typically paid for with the prison’s
commissary money, but this is at the discretion of the individual jail. {Attachment 19.3)

Curriculum: The Shepherd’s House will be responsible for purchasing the curriculum for the
Fayette County Men’s Substance Abuse Program. Hazelden’s “A New Direction” will be the
curriculum. This is a six-part program with six separate workbooks. The six topics addressed
are: (1) Intake and Orientation; (2) Criminal and Addictive Thinking; (3) Drug and Alcohol
Education; (4) Socialization; (5) Relapse Prevention: and (6) Release and Reintegration
Preparation. These workbooks will be purchased by the Shepherd’s House.

Alcoholic Anonymous Books (Also known as the AA Big Book): Every client that enters the
Fayette County Men’s Substance Abuse Program will be given an Alcoholics Anonymous ‘Big
Book’ that is hers to keep. These will be purchased by the Shepherd’s House at the Alcoholics
Anonymous Bluegrass Central Office so that AA Worldwide Services will benefit from our
program’s use of the books.

SMART Recovery workbooks: Clients who do not wish to participate in the Alcohalics
Anonymous curriculum, for religious reasons, will be given a SMART Recovery Workbook. The
Shepherd’s House will purchase the books in the SMART Recovery Online Shop.

CEU staff training: Shepherd’s House will be responsible for assuring its staff remains well-
trained and current on education and methodology in the ever-changing world of addiction and
treatment. The Shepherd’s House will verify that all professional staff members obtain the
required number of Continuing Education Units (CEU) each year.
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Reports

Reporting is a significant piece of the operational puzzle for the Fayette County Detention
Center Substance Abuse Program. A number of reports are mandatory and must be completed
and submitted to the appropriate agencies in a timely fashion. There are several entities
involved in the operation of the Substance Abuse Program: Shepherd’s House, Fayette County
Detention Center, and Department of Corrections. It is critical that all are operating cohesively
and with shared understandings and goals.

Daily Report: The Daily Report is a roster of clients and the bed breakdown. This report is sent
to the Department of Corrections administrator (Marka Burns). It provides the Program census.
DOC is advised of number of openings in the program, and status of each client, each day. DOC
is also notified when clients are admitted; graduated; withdrawn; served out; or were
discharged. This Daily Report and census are essential to keep the program operating at
capacity, and in order to keep the program operating efficiently. There are extensive waiting
lists for all Detention Center Substance Abuse Programs in Kentucky. Therefore, it's critical that
the census be managed on a daily basis. (Attachment: 20.1)

Therapeutic Community Monthly Report: This is an overview of all of the happenings in the
Fayette County Detention Center Substance Abuse Program during the month. This report is
sent to Steve Haney, Director of Fayette County Community Corrections and to the governing
body for the Department of Corrections SAP Programs by the 5% day of the following month.
This report includes 1) Population; 2) Admissions; 3) Readmissions; 4) Drug screens
administered; 5) Number of positive drug screens; 6) Number of clients who graduated; 7)
Number of Graduates year to date; 8) Discharges; 9) Discharge summary; 10} Visitors; 11)
Visitors year to date; 12) Staff training; 13) Number of individuals paroled upon completion;
14) Number PSAP/SB4; and 15) YTD PSAP/SB4. {Attachment: 20.2)

Breakdown of Counties Served: This is simply a record of which counties our clientele
represents and informs us of which areas are being most severely impacted by drug addiction
and which areas are receiving the most assistance. It also allows us to identify the drug of
choice in each geographic area served, This information will drive our staff training so that they
are receiving the appropriate training and areas where the most training and assistance are
needed. Finally, it allows us to have a head start connecting our clients to members of
Alcoholics Anonymous in their geographic locations. This provides our clients with immediate
assistance and support before they even return home. {Attachment: 20.3)
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2

HOWSE

REFERENCES

Brian Wofford

Boyle County Detention Center Jailer
1860 South Danville Bypass

Danville, KY40422

Work: (859) 238-1127

Cell: (859) 516-8163

Barry Harmon

Former Boyle County Detention Center Jailer
410 Carrigan Drive

Danville, KY40422

Cell: (859) 239-8327

Howard Hunt

Boyle County Judge Executive
Boyle County Fiscal Court
321 West Main Street
Danville, KY40422

Work: (859) 238-1100

Milward Dedman

Mercer County Judge Executive
Mercer County Fiscal Court
207 West Lexington Street
Harrodsburg, KY 40330

Work: {859) 734-6300

Cell: (859) 613-3333
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Commonwealth of Kentucky
Cabinet for Health and Family Services

certifies that Shepherd's House, Inc.

is authorized to operate  Shepherd's House, Ine.

located at 635 Maxwelton Court
Lexington, KY 40508

License Number 800320

Pursuant to KRS Chapler 2168 and ihe regulations promulgaled theraunder, this
licenso Is etfectiva March 8, 2019 and valld untll February 29, 2020 unless sclion s
leken by the Cabinet ta deny, suspsnd or revoke the license for failure to mesl
applicable standards and requirements. This license is nol transferabla and Is limiled 1o
the above enlity and for the services Indicatad below,

Behavioral Health Services Organization

Screening, Assessment, Crisis Intervention, Peer Support, Intensive Outpatient Program
Services, Individual Outpatient Therapy, Group Outpatient Therapy, Family Outpatient
Therapy, and Targeted Case Management Services

:-Q«)m /{ e [ pa, -

Steven D. Davis Adam M. Meler
Inspector General Secretary

Keritudkyy™
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Commonwealth of Kentucky
Cabinet for Health and Family Services

certifies that Shepherd's House, Inc.
is authorized to operate Shepherd's House, inc.

located at 635 Maxwelton Court
Lexington, KY 40508

License Number 810066

Pursuant to KRS Chapter 222,231 and the regulations promulgated thersunder, this license is effective
March 1, 2019 and valid until February 29, 2020 unless action is taken by the Cabinst to deny, suspend
or revoke the ficense for fallure to meet applicable standards and requirements. This license is not
transferable and is limited to the above entity and for the services indicated below.

Aleohol and Other Drug Entity

Residential

Number of Beds = 12

BoQes Ader Pian

Steven D. Davis Adam M. Meier
Inspector General Secretary
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Commonwealth of Kentucky
Cabinet for Health and Family Services

certifies that Shepherd's House, inc.

is authorized to operate Shepherd's House, Inc.

located at 635 Maxwelton Court
Lexington, KY 40608
License Number 810681

Pursuenl to KRS Chepter 222.231 and the reguiations promulgated tharsunder, this licenss Is effectiva
March 8, 2018 and valid until February 28, 2020 unless actlon Is taken by the Cabinet to deny, suspend
or ravake the license for fallure to meet applicable standards and requirements. This license is nol
transferable and is limited 1o the above anllty and for the services Indicated below.

Alcohol and Other Drug Entity

Outpatient
Intensive Outpatient

IoQey e /o

Steven D. Davis
Inspector General

Adam M. Meler
Secretary

Kentudk™
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SAP DAILY SCHEDULE

Mon Tue Wed | Thu Fri | Sat | Sun
L - _— = — . = == —
700 | Wakeup = Wakeup | Wakeup Wakeup | Wakeup !
. | | B - |- B - |
~ "Moming Morning ' ~ Morning Marning Morning |
7:00-8:00 Gl/Personal Gl/Personal Gl/Personal Gl/Personal GlfPersanal
R _Hygiene | _ Hyglene |  Hygiene Hyglene | Hygiene .
| B00-820 1AM Meditation ‘ AM Meditation | AM Meditation | AM Meditation ' AM Meditation |
| B - |
8:30- 9:20 | 12 Step Class | Workbooks/ GI/GED/ Recovery Accountability
T Class Status Films Committee/Gl
-— | Promotions | (InDorms) -
0301045 | StePWork | Workbooks!/ GIGED/ Town Hall Progress
[ ™ T Class Status (In Dorms) Reviews (
S| | Reviews | | - ) B o
10:15-11:00 Lunch | Lunch Lunch Lunch ' Lunch | ,
[ ‘ R ' - - Chores | Chores
| T8 T Process Life Skills LE's/Free | Dorm Meetings | AA/SMART Complete | Complete
’ ’ Group/Role Time/GED Recovery
Play —_ | ~ meetings :
| —— —_—
12:00 -12:50 | Process ' Presentations Living Sober/ | Presentations Accountability
. | Group/Role GED (In Dorms) |
‘ | Play J;_ - |
[ | Process group/ 1
1:00 - 1:50 Workbooks/ | Critical Workbooks/ Workbooks/ | 12 Step Class
‘ ’ ' Class Thinking Class Class IJ
s . ) |
| | Process S
| 2:00-250 Workbooks/ Group/Critical Workbooks/ Workbooks/ Step Work
’ ' Class | Thinking Class Class
= = —_— =l s it
[ )
r‘ 3:00 - 3:30 Journaling Journaling Journaling Journaling Journaling
| S _I =L —_— S i = '
| |
330-400 | pM Meditation | PM Meditation | PM Meditation | PM Meditation | PM Meditation |
0 T Optional Faith - T B —_ ] l
I | Meeting | J
| AR (R BN e
TR0 AA Meeting | SMART AA Meeting SMART AASMART |
| . Recovery. N . Recovery  workbooks | | )
[ | | Lights
:00 Lights Qut/ Lights Out Lights Qut/ Lights Out/ Ouy |
’ Quiet Time Quiet Time Quiet Time Quiet Time Quiet
- | | Time
| |
[ feco TV Off TV Off TVOoH | TVOK | | TV Off
. e e 1 | !
l ' 1
- - e = | S
Midnight | !l TV Off TV Off |
ATTACHMENT 5.1
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Bill To: From:

DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS - SAP
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FRANKFORT, 40602

Phone: 5025647290

BOYLE COUNTY DETENTION CENTER

1860 SOUTH DANVILLT BYPASS

DANVILLE, KY 40422

(859) 238 - 1127 |

124-125 Brian Wofford ’
|
Billing Period
03/01/2019 To  03/31/2019

Booking#  Name SSN Cell SID DoB Fram Tu Days  Raie Bill
2011024969 ADAMS, KEVIN 400-96-0054 150 0BS367CD 1 12/16/1964  03/01720]19 03/3172019 k) $9.00 $279.00
2011025849 ARNOLD, JUSTIN 407-23-5563 153 279076 DE 2  03/06/1984 03/0172019  03/31/2019 31 $2.00 §279.00
2011025594 AUMILLER, MICHAEL 403.33-3949 150 260816CD 2  1023/1987 03/0172019  03/25/2019 25 $9.00 $225,00
2011025594 AUMILLER, MICHARL, 403-33-3949 150 260816 CD 2 1023N987 0312772019 03/31/2019 5 $9.00 S45.00
2011025502 BAKER, JERAMIE 403-13-7850 150 200619CC | 04/02/1979 030172019 03/31/2019 31 £9.00 3279.00
2011025593 BARNES, KLEVIN 403-37-2107 150 243555CC 1 09/01/1987 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3] 59.00 $279.00
2011024833 BROWN, LAREZ 303-13-0617 150 293094 CC1 05/31/1992 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011025297 BURNETT, WILLIE 400-98-0695 IS0 107430CD 1 12/10/1968 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 k)l $9.00 $279.00
2011024879 CAMPBELL,, JAMIE 401-29-1166 150 175800 CC 1 04/06/1978 03/0122019  03/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011024829 COORK, JAPETH 401-39-7032 150 244500CD 1 01/05/1990 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3l 39.00 §279.00
2011025519 CROLEY, JOSHUA 4D4-29-1187 180 23730 0C 1 nomasinog 5012615 0373972009 3 $9.00 £279.00
2011024828 CUNDIFF, CHRIS 405-19-2451 150 299272CD 1 05/25/1980 03/01/2019  03/3172019 31 £9.00 $279,00
2011025834 DAVIDSON, DILLION 403-31-7377 150 266829 CD2 06/20/1987  03/0172019 03/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279,00
2011025522 FARRIS, MICHATRL 400-02-1973 153 196788 CD 2 06116/1973 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3 $9.00 $279.00
2011025900 FELTNER, EDDIE 407-23-0277 153 233131 CC 1 11/02/1983 03/042019  03/31/2019 28 $9.00 $252,00
2011025589 FINLEY, ALEXANDER 406-53-7705 150 295541 CD2  10/01/1998 03/0172019 032172009 al $9.00 $279.00
2011025697 GAZZARA, KEITH 403-25-2905 150 264383 CC 1 04/10/1984 03/01/2019  03/3t/2019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011024832 GOMEZ, FERNANDG 403-43-9766 150 292590 CC 1 11£23/199] D3/01/201%  03/31/72019 3 $9.00 $279.00
2011024880 HARMON, JOSHUA - 153 263834CC1 107261990  03/01/2019 03/31/2019 31 $9,00 $273 00
2011025469 HEAD, TREVELL YN 489-84-3138 153 300272CD ) 09712/1980  03/01/2019 0313172019 3l $9.00 3279,00
2011025698 HELLARD, ADAM 401-27-2139 153 268290 CC1 08/23/1984 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3) $9.00 $279.00
2011024661 JOLLY, PAUL 405-94-2853 153 096449 CC | Ob31/1963 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3 $9.00 5279.00
2011025591 LUNSFORD, KAMERON 405-37-4719 153 301999CD | 0571171989 03/01/201Y 033112019 3] $59.00 $279.00
2031025703 MURRAY, STEVEN 400-25-6739 153 296496 DG 2 02/06/1984 030172019 03/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279,00
2011024834 NORTHINGTON, PRINCE 401-35-0486 153 23B157CC1  01/16/1985 03/0172019  03/31/2019 31 $9.00 §279.00
2011025446 PATRICK, WILLIAM 405-39-6247 150 240394 CC ) 08/29/1986  03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3t 59,00 §279.00
2011025445 PITMAN, ROBERT 401-94-8579 153 226032CPR 1 1141271965 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 31 $9.00 §279.00
2011023798 PRICLE, BENTON 400-45-3440 153 291408 C°C 1 (38/24/1992 03/01/2019  03/3142019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011025287 PRICE, JOSEPI! 405-39-1183 153 1§)304CC 1 05/19/1983 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3] $9.00 §279.00
2011029877 SCALF, JAMES 402.23-4727 153 156132 CC | 08021972 03/01/2019  (3/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011024878 SHULER, JEREMIAH 402-29-2030 150 263204 D):2 05/07/1986 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 3l $L.00 $279.00
2011025621 SMITH, WAYLON 407-37-3456 150 300765 CD | 0704198y GIO12019  DI/3122089 3 59,00 $279.00
2011024564 STEVENS, ROBERT 404-51-0989 153 283707 CC | 04/24/1997 03/01/2019  03/31/2019 M| 59.00 $279.00
2011025873 TAY{.OR, JASON 406-21-6024  }53 206270 CC Y

Billing Invoice
JailTracker ® Repont Prinied On 04/01/2019 1 1:34 by UscrlD 58610

ATTACHMENT

02/07/1980 030422019 0311720090 28 $9.00 §252.00

BOYLE COUNTY DETENTION CENTER
Page I of 2

19.1



Bill To:
DEPT. OF CORRECTIONS - SAP
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
FRANKFORT, 40602
Phone: 5025647290

From:

BOYLE COUNTY DETENTION CENTER
1860 SOUTI DANVILLE BYPASS
DANVILLE, KY 40422

(859)238 - 1127

124-125 Brian Wofford ‘
Billing Period
03/01/2019  To  03/31/201¢

Bosking #  Name SSN Cell s nos From Ta Pays  Rate Bilt

2011025506 THOMPSON, JOSEPH 504-19-1990 153 303019CC1 (0/12/1990  03/01/2019  03/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011024497  TRACY, MATTHEW 404-41-9330 25506 CC1 0210641991 03/0172019  03/03/2019 3 .00 §27.00
2011023665 WAITE, ANTONIO 404-99-9024 298426 CC | 1210/1995  03/01/2019  Q3/03/2019 3 $9.00 $27.00
2011025505 WHITE, KEVIN 405-29-3206 150 3001174 CC 1 0805/1986  0301/2019  03/31/2019 34 $9.00 $279.00
2011025295 WILLIAMS, BRADLEY 406-35:9G68 153 244504 CC | 0628/1988 030172019  03/31/2009 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011025552 WILLIAMS, MICHAEL, 400-86-5125 153 155089 CD | OB 281968 03/01/2001% 03312019 M $4.00 $279.00
2011024681 WOOD, ADAM 153 148698 CC 1 11/25/1997  03/0172019  03/31/2019 3} $9.00 $279.00
2011035833 \WOOD, DOUGLAS 400-31-7036 150 296703 CD2 02728/1987 030172019  03/3172019 31 $9.00 $279.00
2011025286 WRIGHT, TRACY 406-27-9769 150 259757CD2 12/28/1985  03/0)/2019  03/31/2019 31 $9.00 $279.00

Billing [nvoice
fail Tracker 8 Repont Printed On 04/01/2019 11:34 by Userl 58610

Total Bill;___sil15t00.
1,239

Total Days:

Total Inimates;

43

BOYLE COUNTY NDETENTION CENTER

Page 2 of 2



04.2.2019

P e —— —T——
To: Boyle County Fiscal
Count

321 West Main Street,
Room 111

Danville, Kentucky 40422
Phone: (859) 238-1100
Fax: (859) 238-1108

’ Quantity
-

|

1,239 total
days

Invoice No. 0019-03
e —————ee—ee e

——— S

Description Unit Price Total _
= | .
March 2019 Billing for The Boyle County | l
Substance Abuse Program | $9.00rate | $11,161.00 |
| \
— — —
|
| |
—_—
SRS CES. R
Subtotal | $11,151.00 |
Sales Tax 0
Shipping & Handling 0
Total Due $11,151.00 |

Shepherd’s House

Thank you for your business!

ATTACHMENT 19.2
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TC Monthly Report

MONTH: March

Therapeutic Community Monthly Report

YEAR: 2019

FACILITY: Boyle County Detention Center

1.

TC Client
_ Date

e o l L s — — = = 1 ~— il . 1
Discharge Type= A (Administrative) D= (Disciplinary) W= (Withdrew or quit) T= (Termination)

CONTRACTED NUMBER OF BEDS= 40

CURRENT POPULATION = 40

NEW ADMISSIONS = 2

READMISSIONS =0

TOTAL NUMBER OF DRUG SCREENS ADMINISTERED = 7
TOTAL NUMBER OF POSITIVE DRUG SCREENS = 0

NUMBER INMATES GRADUATED = 2
YTD GRADUATED: 17

TOTAL NUMBER (S DISCHARGES/DISMISSALS. (TO INCLUDED
ADMINISTRATIVE, WITHDRAWS, MRS AND SERVE OUT)

PLEASE DOCUMENT IN THE TABLE BELOW ALL DISCHARGES.

Reason Phase of TX

For discharge

Discharge type

ATTACHMENT 20.2

Parole upon
‘completion?

e —



TC Monthly Report 2

10. VISITORS =0 VISITORS YTD = 1

11. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS = Staff attended the local ASAP meeting. A new SAP
counselor was hired and started on March 1%, Staff attended supervision with
DOC Branch Manager.

12. STAFF TRAINING HOURS IN-HOUSE= 1

13. STAFF TRAINING HOURS OFF-SITE = 4

14. TRAINING HOURS PROVIDED BY STAFF = 4

15. NUMBER OF PAROLE UPON COMPLETION INMATES =6
16. NUMBER OF PSAP/SB4 INMATES = 0

17. NUMBER OF PSAP/SB4 INMATES TO GRADUATE: 0

18. YTD PSAP GRADUATES = 0

*DUE BY THE §™ OF THE FOLLOWING MONTH*
i. JAILER
ii. DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
KORT THOMPSON KORT.THOMPSON@KY.GOV

VONDA NAPIER VONDAK.NAPIER@KY.GOV

VERONICA HUNT VERONICA.HUNT@KY.GOV

JEANNIE WALDRIDGE JEANNIE.WALDRIDGE@KY.GOV

MYLEA MCFELEA MYLEA.MCFELEA@KY.GOV

HILLERY OHNEMUS HILLERY.OHNEMUS@KY.GOV

KATHY TAYLOR KATHYA.TAYLOR@KY.GOV




BREAKDOWN OF COUNTIES SERVED
Boyle County Jail SAP

March 2019
[ COUNTY # SERVED COUNTY # SERVED ___COUNTY | # SERVED |
L Adar |1 Graves — . Menifee |
| Alen | Grayson _ 1 _ Mercer 1 1
| Anderson | = Green = ~ Metcalfe |
. Ballard | - Greenup | | |_Monree |
| Bamen | 3 Hancock | | | Montgomery |
~ Bath | Hardin 1 _ Morgan
Bell - . Haran | o Muhlenberg
_ Boone B - | Harrison Nelson | 1
_Bourbon | 1 | Hart | 1 _Nicholas |
~Boyd | B | Henderson - ___ Ohio | . N
Boyle | | Henry | . Oldham | |
. Bracken | __ Hickman . Owen |
}_ Breathitt Hopkins T_—____ - ~ Owsley 1 B
. Breckinridge Jackson | Pendleton
| Bullitt I _ Jefferson | 1 __Perry | B -

. Butler | 1 Jessamine 4 _Pike — |
| Cadwell | Johnson 1 Powell 1
__ Calloway ) - Kenton 1 B Pulaski 2
__ Campbell - Knott |\ | _Robertson |
f____Godlisla H | _ Knox | __Rockcastle 1 |
| Carroll . Larue | _ Rowan ;
. Carter | . Laurel 3 Russell A
| Casey | Lawrence i Scott 1
__Christian | 1 Lee 1 | | __ Shelby -
~ Clark | ) Leslie | |__ Simpson ]

Clay 2 | | Letcher | | spencer j
____ Clinton ~ Lewis B ' Taylor 1 |
__Crittenden B S 7= S N S N A |
_ Cumberand |1 Livingston | _Trigg_ |
| Daviess_ N _Logan | Trimble | |

Edmonson . L kyon | = __ Union . -

Elliott S . McCracken | Warren | 1 __
Bt 1 _ McCreary | ] Washington | _ 1
Fayette 3 o Mclean | - _Wayne | ‘
Fleming | _ Madison | o Webster |
_Floyd | o Magoffin | _ Whitley 1 '
Frankiin | Marion _._Wolfe | _|
Futon | Marshall __Woodford | |
Gallatin | Martin _Ohio — | )
Garrard | . Mason | _Tennessee |

Gant |_ Meade ) 1 ] _West Virginia |

Total # of KY | 29
Counties
ATTACHMENT 20.3




Appendix
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e lerod Thomas
¢ Connie Milligan
¢ Tanith Wilson

In the News
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JEROD MITCHELL THOMAS

EXPERIENCE

Shepherd's House Lexington, KY

President and CEO

- Works with board in order to fulfill the organization mission.

- Works with board and staff to ensure that the mission is fulfilled through
programs, strategic planning and community outreach,

- Establishing employment and administrative policies and procedures
for all functions and for the day-to-day operations of the Shepherd's
House.

- Strategic planning and implementation.

- Oversee marketing and other communications efforts.

- Primary spokesperson to the organization constituents, the media and
the general public.

WestCare Foundation, Inc. Lexington, KY
Deputy Administrator

- Directly supervises all WestCare facilities in Kentucky.

-~ Manages staffing and personnel matters.

- Responsible for curriculum and treatment models.

- Responsible for cultivating new business opportunities.

- Public Relations Development and Implementation.

WestCare, Kentucky Danville, KY

Director, Substance Abuse Program

Boyle Counly Detention Center

Responsible for curriculum and treatment models.

Liaison with Department of Corrections and all Boyle County officials
Managed staffing and personnel matters.

Retained all duties of Substance Abuse Counselor (see below)



WestCare, Kentucky Ashcamp, KY
Substance Abuse Counselor

- Utilize counseling and psychotherapy to evaluate and treat
emotional and mental problems and conditions, whether cognitive,
behavioral, or affective.

- Assess need and make decisions regarding the delivery of the
appropriate individual, group and family counseling.

- Conduct interviews and make assessments of potential clients to
determine need and appropriateness for program participation and
referrals.

- Create Individual Treatment / Service Plans.

- Supervise and direct the activity of direct care staff.

CoacheslLocker Lexington, KY
National Sales Manager

* Responsible for sales force and national sales marketing.

*+ Responsible for operations and performance of sales force.

Spencerian College Lexington, KY

Admissions Counselor

* Responsible for new student recruitment and enroliment.

* Provided student assistance in financial aid and curriculum counseling.

SportsBlast, Inc. Lexington, KY
Corporate Sales Manager

* Responsible for sales force and sales force marketing.

* Responsible for cultivating and maintaining business accounts.



Shapes Fitness Center Lexington, KY
Sales and Marketing Director

* Responsible for daily operations.

* Responsible for sales force and sales marketing

Sequoyah High School Madisonville, TN

High School Teacher

* Taught History and Geography courses.

* Served as Assistant Head Football Coach and Defensive Coordinator.

Oneida High School Oneida, TN

High School Teacher

+ Taught History, Geography and Government Courses,

+ Served as Assistant Coach for the Boys Basketball Team.

Georgetown College Georgetown, KY
Football Coach

+ Linebacker Coach.

* Academic advisor to team members.

+ Coordinated Defensive Practices as well as annual Spring Clinic.



EDUCATION

1997-1998  University of Tennessee Knoxvilie, TN
Master of Science
* Awarded Academic Scholarship

1991-1993 Morehead State University Morehead, KY
Bachelor of University Studies
« Awarded Athletic Scholarship for Football

1987-1990 Marshall University Huntington, WV

Undergraduate Studies
+ Awarded Athletic Scholarship for Football

AWARDS RECEIVED

1987-1992

Dean’s List

Academic All-American

Letterman, Marshall University

All Southern Conference Player of the Week (3)

Team Captain, Morehead State University Football Team
All Ohio Valley Conference Football Team

Alternate, Biue-Gray College All Star Game

References Available Upon Request

CONTACT INFORMATION

Jerod M. Thomas

4628 Spring Creek Drive

Lexington, KY 40515

Telephone: 859-537-8680

Facsimile: 859-252-1935

Email: Jerod.thomas@shepherdshouseinc.com






s

»
v Connie P. Milligan, LCSW

Spectrum Transformation Services, LLC

121 Preston Ave. Lexington, KY 40502
Work Address: Centered 309 N. Ashland Av. Lexington KY 40502

859-806-8910 connie@conniemilligan.com
w tr
Education - _
University of Kentucky

Master of Social Work
Lexington, Kentucky
December 1979 with honors

Transylvania University
BA Education
Lexington, Kentucky
June 1974

Licensure

Licensed Clinical Social Worker
Kentucky License No. 379 since 1984

Transformational Coach
Certification in Core Curriculum and Mentor Coaching ~ June 2014

Employment

Spectrum Transformation Services, LLC
Founder and Principal
January 2015 to present

I provide individual and group services, training and consultation around personal and
professional development. In my individual and group work, | provide clinical therapy,
coaching and workshops that help people recognize the choices and opportunities they
have so they can obtain their full potential. In my consultation services | serve as the
Clinical Consultant for the Fayette County Mental Health Court and | provide training
and consultation for the SAMSHA GAINS Center. This work is focused on reducing the



incidence of incarceration among people who have mentalillness and are justice
involved. See details below. See list of workshops below.

Clinical Consultant, Fayette County Mental Health Court
NAMI Lexington

498 Georgetown Street

Lexington, KY 40506

January 2015 to present

Helped develop, implement and provide clinical consultation, assessment and
treatment direction and group services to Fayette County’s Mental Health Court. The
intent of this highly successful program is to divert people with mental iliness from jail
or prison by offering them treatment services.

Senior Consultant, Training and Technical Assistance
SAMSHA National GAINS Center

Policy Research Associates

345 Delaware Ave.

Delmar, NY 12054

January 2007 to present

Provide consultation and training to interested states, counties and stakeholders across
the country to reduce the incidence of people with mental illness being in the
corrections systems. Training includes “Sequential Intercept Cross Systems Mapping -
Partnership Building and Collaboration”” and “Trauma Informed Care” See list of
trainings below,

Corporate Director, Access and Crisls Services. 1996 to 2014

Executive Director, Mental Health Crisis Network for Jails, 2003 to 2014
Bluegrass Regional Mental Health-Mental Retardation Baard, Inc.

1351 Newtown Pike, Lexington, KY 40511

Corporate Director of Access and Crisis Services included developing and managing a
centralized intake assessment, referral and scheduling center, and emergency services
crisis line which provided services for 42 counties and a statewide service for WellCare.
This included developing and utilizing a sophisticated tailor-made software system.
Responsibilities include program development and supervision, implementation,
training, consultation, data collection and analysis and representation on relevant state-
wide emergency services initiatives.

Executive Director of Mental Health Crisis Network for Jails involved developing the
program as a pilot in 2003; obtaining legislation in 2004 and providing services
statewide with a dedicated funding stream of 2 million. Responsibilities included the
development and implementation of this mental health and suicide risk management



program for the jails of Kentucky, including program instrument and protocols
development, networking the service infrastructure for 86 jails and 14 Mental Health
Regions, training for all jail personnel along with mental health staff across the state,
staff supervision, software development, data collection and analysis.

Program Director

Bluegrass East Comprehensive Care Center
201 Mechanic Street, Lexington, KY 40507
January 1986 to May 1996

As Director of Growth Resources Employee Assistance Program, Gratz Park Adult
Outpatient Mental Health Services and Emergency Services, | provided program
development, fiscal management, personnel supervision and outpatient psychotherapy
to adults. Growth Resources responsibilities included marketing, contract maintenance,
training and consultation to twenty-four local and national contracts with
business/industry. city and county governments, and Universities.

Program Director

Bluegrass East CCC

12 East Broadway, Winchester, KY 40391
February 1982 - May 1986

As Manager and Director of four outpatient offices in Clark and Powell counties, |
supervised employees and oversaw the operation of two outpatient programs and two
partial hospitalization programs. Duties include staff supervision, program planning,
fiscal management and clinical work with children and families, outreach and
community organizing.

Mental Health Specialist, il

Bluegrass East CCC

12 East Broadway, Winchester, KY 40391
February 1980 - May 1982

Outpatient clinician for Clark and Powell counties, working primarily with children,
adolescents, and families utilizing family therapy, marital therapy and play therapy
techniques. Group work included parenting education classes, adolescent groups,
women’s group and an adult psychotherapy group in addition to conducting emergency
assessments.

Other Employment

Contract Therapist
Alfred B Chandler Medical Center
Outpatient Psychiatry, University of Kentucky

(S ]



June 1982- December 1990

Conducted outpatient group treatment for patients with eating disorders. Groups
provided long term therapy and education to resolve the presenting symptoms of
Bulimia and Anorexia.

Private Practice — outpatient psychotherapy to adults, adolescents and families
Doctor’s Park, 1517 Nicholasville Road

Lexington, KY 40508

1985 - 1999

Professional Affiliations

* Kentucky Society for Clinical Social Work - Current member, Executive Board
Member 1980-1991, and 1993-1994, President, 1983-1985

e National Association for Social Workers - Current member

* International Coaching Federation - Current member

e NAMI Lexington - Fayette County Decriminalization Committee — Co-Chair,
October 2012 - Present

¢ Good Shepherd Halfway House - Board of Directors - 1998 to present, Vice
President 2003-2006 and 1997-2000, Ciinicai Director 2012- present

* Central Kentucky Homelessness and Housing Initiative — Mental Health
representative, November 2012 to 2015

¢ Bluegrass Re-entry Council - Founding Executive Board, Executive Director, August
2009 to 2012

* Criminal Justice/Behavioral Health Work Group - as legislatively mandated by HB
843, Commonwealth of Kentucky - July 2002 to 2009

* Commonwealth of Kentucky Suicide Prevention Group - Founding Executive
Committee, March 2002 to 2007, Chair 2003-2005.

¢ Kentucky Community Crisis Response Team - Founding Executive Board Member
and Clinical Director, 1991-1998

* Fayette County School Crisis Response Team, Founder and member 1991-1995

Honors and Appointments

* NAMI Lexington — “Pioneer Award” Pioneering for the Future of Mental Health in
the Commonwealth - October 2013

¢ Council of State Government National “Innovative Program Award” 2006 - for the
Kentucky Jail Mental Health Crisis Network

* American Association of Suicidology, Co-chair of the Jail Suicide Workgroup, 2005

¢ Kentucky Mental Health Institute “ Trail Blazer In Best Practices” Award, for
Mental Health Training for Jailers, October 2003



Bluegrass Professional Staff Organization, President 1997-1999, Training Director
2000-2004, Member 1996 to 2004, Training Director, 2010 to 2014

Award from the Office of the Adjunct General, Commonwealth of Kentucky

For the development of the Statewide Community Crisis Response System

June 12, 1999

Hallie Shouse Award, for clinical excellence and leadership 1992

W, Van Meter Alford Award for clinical excellence 1981

Alpha Delta Mu Honor Society 1981

National Conference Presentations

“Finding Your Wisdom Perspective”, International Transformational Presence
Global Coaching and Leadership Gathering, Chester CN, June 15, 2016

“Training on Cognitive Behavioral Therapy -Bringing Wisdom Principals to Life” ~
International Transformational Presence Coaching Summit, Vught, Netherlands,
June 17, 2014

“Collaborating Across Multiple Systems of Care ~ Utilizing a Suicide Risk
Assessment Tool”, American Association of Suicidology, Baltimore, MD, April 17-19
2012

“Mental Health Services to Jails Using Innovative Technology and Best Practice
Protocols,” National Council's Mental Health and Addictions 41 Annual
Conference, San Diego, CA, May 2-4, 2011

“Video Mental Health Assessments and Services” — AJA’s 30'" Annual Training and
Conference & Jail Expo - Cincinnati, Ohio, May 15-19, 2011 with Ray Sabbatine
“Intake Screening: Preventing Suicide and Managing Mental Health Care in Rural

Jalls” — American Jail Association Annual Conference, Sacramento, CA. May 6, 2008.

with Ray Sabbatine

“Innovative Networking to Reduce In-Custody Suicide” — American Association for
Suicidology Annual Conference, Boston, MA, April 18, 2008

“From the Inside — Reducing Risk and Increasing Diversion” National Gains Center
Conference, Washington, DC, March 18, 2008

“Mental Health Risk Management for Rural Jails” — American Jail Association
Conference, Nashville, TN, May 22, 2007 with Ray Sabbatine

“Increasing Jail Treatment and Diversion”, National Alliance for Mental lliness,
Annual Convention, Washington, DC, July 7. 2006

“Risk Management Services for Jails: An Examination of the KY Jail Mental Health
Crisis Network”, National GAINS Center Conference, Boston, MA, April 7, 2006
“In-Custody Innovation -Kentucky’s MH Program for Jails” , NASMHPD

Annual Conference, Lake Tahoe, NV, September 13, 2005

“Innovation and Collaboration to Reduce Jail Suicide” — American Association of
Suicidology Annual Conference, Broomfield, CO, April 15, 2005, presented with Ray
Sabbatine

h



Innovative Risk Management Techniques for Jails” — National Alliance for the
Mentally Ill, Washington, DC, September 11, 2004, presented with Ray Sabbatine,
MA

“Innovation In Collaboration - Mental Health Risk Management & Treatment
Services For Jails” — Gaines Center National Conference, Las Vegas, NV, May 14,
2004, presented with Rita Ruggles

“From Mental Health Triage to Risk Management — A Resource for Local Jails”
American Association of Suicidology Conference, Santa Fe, NM. April 24, 2003
presented with Ray Sabbatine, MA

“Creative Techniques for Managing High Risk Behavior”, Crisis Intervention
Conference, Chicago IL April 2001 (presented by Kim Griswold, MA due to family
emergency)

Other Relevant Training/Workshop Presentations

“The Manifestation Course”, January - February 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015. A
6-week/12 hr course on the principles underpinning creating and manifesting goals.
“Relaunch ~ Starting Over” October 2018, 2017, 2016. 2015 - A 6-hour, 2 day
training on the principles of clearing out what doesn’t work & relaunching your life
“The Essential Elements of A Fruitful Meditation Practice” 2 hr. May and Nov. 2018
“Trauma Informed Care” for Justice Involved Individuals -SAMSHA GAINS Center
workshops for community stake holders: Henrico Co. VA 2018, Atlanta, GA 2018,
Concord, CT, 2017, Athens, GA 2017, Frankfort, KY 2017, Lake Co. IL, 2016. Laramie,
WY 2015, Roanoke, VA 2015, Denver CO 2015. Kannapolis NC 2014,

“Cross System Mapping - Partnership Building and Collaboration” — SAMSHA
GAINS Center Sequential Intercept Mapping workshops for Comm unity Partners
working with justice Involved people with mental Iliness— provided to professionals
in: Towando PA and Denton, TX 2018, Redding CA 2017, Craighead Co. AP 2016,
Pettis Co., MO, 2016, Santa Fe, NM 2015, Louisville, KY 2014, Metairie, LA 2011,
Chicago IL and Harrisburg, PA 2009 Denver, CO and Corpus Christie TX, 2008
“Ethics for Clinical Social Workers” — presented to Bluegrass Clinicians for 3 hrs.
CEUs 2-3 times a year from 2011-2014

“Bluegrass Suicide Risk Assessment and Intervention” - 30 trainings conducted for
all clinical staff at Bluegrass MH-MR Board between Sept. 2010 and Jan. 2011 and
regularly for new employees from 2011 - 2014.

“Suicide Prevention - Behind Bars” Wilson County Detention Center, TN, 2 day
training at the request of the Department of lustice , February 24-25, 2011
“Mental Health Training” (various topics)- Presented to the Kentucky Jailers
Association Annual Meetings, 2005, 2006, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2011

“Mental Health Assessment and Suicide Intervention Training for New Jailers” —
Kentucky Jail Association Annual Conference, December 10, 2010



“Suicide Risk and Intervention” and “Working with Personality Disorders” —
presented to the Crisis Intervention Team (CIT) training for Bluegrass Region Police
Departments, 2008, 2009, 2010

“Implementation Tralning ~ KY Jail Mental Health Crisis Network” — presented to
staff of 83 jails and 14 mental health regions across the state from 2004 to 2006, as
needed with Ray Sabbatine

“Program Overview — KY Jail Mental Health Crisis Network” Kentucky Department
of Protection and Advocacy Conference, Frankfort KY, March 21, 2006, presented
with Ray Sabbatine

“Innovation and Collaboration to Reduce Jail Suicide” Pretrial Release Services
Annual Conference, Lexington KY June 2005 and June 2006, presented with Ray
Sabbatine.

“Mental Health Intervention in Detention Facilities” District Court Judges College,
Louisville, KY June 2005

“Providing Mental Health Services to People in the Criminal Justice System”,
Kentucky Mental Health Institute, Louisville, KY September 27, 2005, presented with
Ray Sabbatine

“Mental Health Training and Consultation to Jails” Mandatory training for all jail
personnel presented to 14 jail jurisdictions and the KY Jail Association Annual
Meetings with Ray Sabbatine, MA — February through November 2003, June 2004,
October 2005

“Mental Health Risk Management Services for Jails” Public Defender Education
Conference, Lexington, KY June 23, 2004

Critical Incident Team Training— The Challenging Response - Suicide and
Personality Disorders” Training for Franklin County Police Critical Incident Response
Team, January 28, 2003

“Behavioral Health Needs in Local Jails — A Cross Training Program” Developed the
legislatively mandated mental health curriculum and “Train the Trainers” at
Kentucky Dam Village State Park November 7-8 2002, and Lexington Fayette-Urban
County Detention Center, November 21-22, 2002

“Crisis Assessment and Intervention - Suicide Prevention” — University of KY Social
Work Department, November 11, 2002, Bluegrass Crisis Line, Dec. 12, 2002 and
Crisis Stabilization Program, Feb 19, 2003.

“Centralized Services — Making Mental Health Resources More Accessible” - The
Kentucky Mental Health Institution, Louisville, KY October 8, 2002.

“Clinical Orientation” - A full day training developed and presented to new clinical
employees of BGRMH-MR Board - 2001 to 2004

“Suicide Assessment and Prevention” - Lexington Fayette-Urban County
Government Police Department’s annual training for police sergeants 1991-1999
“Responding to Emotional Crisis” - Annual training for Lexington-Fayette Urban
County Government Fire Department Paramedics — 1991-1999

“Suicide Assessment, Intervention and Risk Management” — Professional Staff
Training, Bluegrass Psychiatric Hospital , May 23, 1996



¢ “Suicide Assessment and Intervention -~ What You Do Can Make o Difference”
Kentucky Police Dispatchers Training, Eastern Kentucky Law Enforcement Program,
Richmond, Kentucky, February 18, 1996

¢ “Critical Incident Stress Debriefing — a training for counselors” Kentucky
Community Crisis Response Team Conference, Frankfort, KY March 1994

¢ “Decriminalizing the Mentally ll ~The New Civil Commitment Process”
Developed mandatory Kentucky State Police and local police department training
and trained-the-trainers on implementing new Kentucky Revised Statues for civil
commitment June-September 1992

s “Adjusting to College Life” — Transylvania University Freshmen Orientation
Weekend - Program for incoming parents and students, spring and fail 1991 - 1996

* Training Programs for EAP services included numerous courses on Substance Abuse
in the Workplace, Stress Management, Supervisory Training, Coping with Change,
and conducting Critical Incident Stress Debriefing. 1986-2000.

* “Drug Testing in the Workplace: Changes in the Workforce” EEO Conference,
Lexington Race Relations Commission, Lexington, KY January 9, 1991,

¢ “Stress Management for Emergency Responders: Blueprint for the 90s” Lexington
Fayette Urban County Government Environment and Emergency Management
Conference, August 22, 1990.

Publications

o Weekly Articles posted on my website, Spectrum Transformation Services, LLC
Facebook, LinkedIn and Instagram 2015- present
e Article written from interviews - Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R ; Kentucky Jail Trioge

Program Adds Video Conferencing to It’s Mix; Mental Health Weekly, Volume 21,
Number 42, October 31, 2011

» Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R;, “ From Public Crisis to Innovation - The Mental Health
Crisis Network” American Jails, January/February 2008

e Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R; “Calling for Help: A Kentucky Program Makes Mental
Heaith Consultants Available to Jails 24/7, Behavioral Healthcare, August 2006

= Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R. “Reducing Risk and Responding to Mental Health Needs:
Kentucky’s Need System of Care”, Corrections Today, February 2006

e Gaines Center Newsletter, Program Spotlight, “Mental Health Risk Assessment and
Intervention for Jails: Kentucky's Innovative Program” December, 2005,

e “Kentucky Develops Innovative Service Model for County Inmates”, Mental Health
Weekly, Vol. 16, Number 9, February 27, 2006

e Milligan, C. and Sabbatine, R. “Innovations to Reduce Jail Suicide — A Kentucky Initiative”

Jail Suicide/Mental Health Update, Volume 12, Number 4, spring 2004.

* Sabbatine, R. and Milligan, C., “Kentucky Correctional Prevention Program Offers Keys
to Reducing Inmate Sujcide”, Preventing Suicide, Volume two, Number four, September
2003,




Tanith Wilson

6 Sycamore Street
Junction City, KY 40440
859-319-2610
tanithwilson @yzhoo.cam

Education; University of the Cumberlands
Degree: Bachelor of Science in Psychology, Bachelor of Science in Human Services,
Minor in Criminal Justice

Qualifications: Licensed as a T-cADC
11 years of experience working in the field of drug and alcohol rehabilitation
Extensive knowledge of the program of Alcoholics Anonymous and the 12 steps
Extensive knowledge of evidence-based practices in the field of drug and alcohol
rehabilitation
8 years of experience in a supervisory role

Experience: Program Director: The Shepherds House/Boyle County Detention Center
Substance Abuse Program, Danville, KY
February 2017-Present

[ )

Develop and implement treatment plans for clients that are specific to
the individual's needs

Counse clients with issues relating to Drug Addiction and Alcoholism
Assist clients in overcoming dependencies and making life changes
Guide clients in developing life skills, coping skills, and strategies
Implement structure within the program

Maintain accurate and complete documentation example: weekly
progress notes, monthly treatment plan reviews, intakes, psychosocial
assessments, discharges, aftercare plans, etc.

Provide client and family education

Adapt treatment plans as necessary to best meet the client’s needs
Assist clients in adhering to treatment plans

Supervise staff members

Oversee the operation of the program example: ensure evidence-based
programming is being utilized, ensure OIG regulations are being
adhered to, ensure DOC regulations are being adhered to

Facilitate group counseling sessions

Facilitate family group sessions

Recovery Coordinator: KY Courts of Justice/Fayette County Drug Court
Lexington, Ky
August 2016-Feburary 2017



References:

Developed and implemented treatment plans for clients that were
specific to the individual's needs

Counseled clients with issues relating to Drug Addiction and Alcoholism
Performed Psychosocial assessments

Assisted clients in overcoming dependencies and life changes

Guided clients in developing life skills, coping skills, and strategies
Maintained accurate and complete documentation

Provided resident and family education

Adapted treatment plans as necessary to best meet the client’s needs
Assisted clients in adhering to treatment plans

Facilitated Psychoeducational Classes

Director: The Liberty Ranch Drug and Alcohol Recovery Center,

Kings Mountain, KY

December 2007- January 2016

Developed and implemented treatment plans for residents that were
specific to the individual's needs

Counseled residents with issues relating to Drug Addiction and
Alcoholism

Performed assessments

Assisted residents in overcoming dependencies and life changes

Guided residents in developing life skills, coping skills, and strategies

Implemented structure within the facility

Maintained accurate and complete documentation

Provided resident and family education

Adapted treatment plans as necessary to best meet the resident’s
needs

Assisted residents in adhering to treatment plans

Taught Recovery Dynamics

Taught parenting courses

Supervised multiple staff members

Oversaw the general functions of the facility

Balanced resident accounts and have extensive knowledge of
QuickBooks

Facilitated daily group sessions

Facilitated weekly family group sessions

Helped maintain company finances

Available upon request



own slory of baﬁling drug

Tanith Wilson, the director. IAP atthe Boyle _C.ounly Detention Center, uses her
addiclion to help pave the way for others fo heal. Photo by Bobbie Curd.

SAP director at jail open about
past, giving chances and why
laws should change

X

By Bobbie Curd

Email the author

Tanith Wilson says sure — you have to be loving and compassionate in her job, but you
have to be tough. Wilson is the director of SAP at the Boyle County Detention Center, which
is the substance abuse program administered through a contract with Shepherd’s House.

“For one, drug addicts are the most difficult population that any mental health professional
can deal with, so you have to be tough. And, of course, when you have them in this kind of
setting, it's even worse,” Wilson says from her office, just outside the SAP unit at the jail.



Here, when helping addicts work through their disease, she says you also have the criminal
code to deal with, and the inmate attitude can be hard to get past.

“They're great though — they've come a long way.”

A walk into the SAP unit shows just how far these guys have come. “Attention!” one of the
peer leaders yells as we enter. They all stand, until she telis them they can relax. There's an
upbeat vibe, but they are respectful and attentive to her.

SAP clients are all state inmates, determined through an application process at the
Department of Corrections level, which has a lengthy waiting list. Lisa Lamb,
communications director with the DOC, says there are 2,567 on that list, and they are
strategically placed in treatment “towards the end of their sentences so we can immediately
connect them to aftercare in the community for continuity of care.”

Wilson and her colleague, Alex Gardner, work with a class of 40 clients who start as
freshmen, graduating up to seniors, then some become mentors by the end of the program.

Inate Joey Price, a client wilh SAP, stands with Wilson in the hallway outside the unil. “I've learned more
aboul my own characteristics and issues. | had a bad altitlude when | was firsl here, and almost gol kicked
out,” Price said, but following the SAF pragram has helped him learn to be less aggressive. Photo by Bobbie
Curd.

Wilson has been with SAP for over two years, but in the field for 11. First, she was
employed by a private, self-pay rehab where she worked her way to director, After getting
her degree, she decided she needed more of a challenge and maybe something that fit her
own personal past better, where she could lead by example.

“I'm a recovering addict — 12 years sober,” she says, her smile beaming, and she's gotten
a second bachelor's degree and is currently working on her dual masters in addiction
counseling and mental health. But she says “recovering” because it's a continual process.

Wilson is still involved in AA as a sponsor, and still has a sponsor. She’s learned through
the 12-step process that once we stop believing it's a disease is “when we think we can
have a drink on the weekend like normal people, which can lead back to the serious drugs

Wilson got an eight-year sentence when she was 19 years old for manufacturing
methamphetamine, her drug of choice. She can identify with many of her clients’ life stories;



she began using when she was 13 with her parents, starting with pot, going to pills, cocaine
then meth.

She says like many of the guys in here, drugs were a natural progression in her life: to not
do drugs was abnormal. And it led to serious legal problems, after first being in the state's
custody because she was out of her parents’ ability to control, then on to making and
dealing drugs to support her own habit after the state gave up on her and returned her to
her mom's custody when she was 17.

The only difference between the guys in jail and the ones who can afford private rehab, she
says, is resources. In her former job, she treated district attorneys, deans of schools, sons
and daughters of doctors and lawyers, and doctors and lawyers themselves, all who could
afford the $5,000-$8,000 monthly price tag of private trealment, Addiction knows no
bounds, she says, but where it takes you in your life has a lot to do with what you've got at
your disposal.

And like Wilson does, the program encourages clients to tell their own stories and work
through them, but not to harp on the glorification of drugs; not even on the war stories. “We
are more focused on the solutions,” she says.

The SAP dhaiiy“;chedﬁle is a iighl one for the 40 clients in the program. They have eight hours of
programming a day, ranging from accountability and recovery training, lo journaling, AA meetings and group
herapy. Pholo by Bobbie Curd.

She leads psychoeducational classes, teaching clients how substances affect their brains,
their path of maturity and reasoning. They have parenting, job skills and communication
classes, to prepare them for reentry into society; relapse prevention courses, performing
skits on how to deal with being offered drugs; AA classes; group therapy ... Their schedules
are tight, as seen on the board of Wilson's office.



The guys are ranked into categories of freshman, sophomore, junior and seniors, and once
graduated to juniors, they get incentives, like more phone time or the ability to have coffee
in class.

‘I believe in accountability — it's what got me sober,” Wilson says, explaining that could be
one of the most successful parts of the program. These guys are all very attentive to one
another, giving each other “pufl-ups.”

“They pull up on each other, tell each other when they're doing something good or bad,”
and have the ability to write each other tickets they use for learning experiences — or LEs.

“LEs are very recovery oriented — an action LE may be we want you to go around and ask
10 different peers what your biggest character defect is,” Wilson says. She has them use
the phrase “Change | must or die ) will,” in their writings.

Client Joey Price, 35, is a junior. “It's good as a drug addict and a person who's been a
criminal for a long time, to learn about your character defects,” he says — when you have
39 other people pointing it out for you, it opens your eyes. Price says he's learned about
communication skills, too, like paying attention to what people say instead of thinking of
what his next statement will be, and feels the program has helped make him less
aggressive.

“They're writing about why they need to change, what needs to change, and what are the

L H " in in om B Ae Adaadle A2 [ S AR .
consequences,” Wilsen says. "This is a life-or-death disease — people are dying every day,

We want them to look at that, write about it, live it.”

Accountability is held Monday, Wednesday and Friday: Tuesday and Thursday they do a lot
of class work, or sometimes watch a documentary on recovery.

The system is broken, and Wilson knows that first hand. She didn’t get clean until she
relapsed while on parole, and was forced to turn to the Hope Center in Lexington for
treatment or go back to prison.

Muitiple boards in Tanith Wilson's office keep the class rosler siraight, showing each phase each SAP clienl
has compleled. Photo by Bobbie Curd.



"I get frustrated with the myth that forced treatment doesn't work. ‘If the addict doesn't want
it, don't bother’ is a bad way to think.” Sometimes a person needs to be forced into it and
made to stay there long enough for it to start to work, she says.

“Getting clean was absolutely the hardest thing | ever had to do. Way harder than being in
prison — it's not hard to find drugs in prison, not hard at all. Sometimes it's even easier in a
lot of cases,” Wilson says. She says this whole "lock addicts up” is not the solution: in fact,
it's created more problems, almost enhancing the cycle of addiction.

"We've tried it for the last 30 years, and all we've done is quadruple the incarceration rate,
increase spending to house inmates — $23 million this year spent on inmates in this
country? It's not working.”

Trafficking is a serious offense, but most who sell drugs do so to support their own habit,
she says. “But, the way the laws are — when are legislators going to wake up, and say
‘hey, we've made a mistake, this isn't working, let's back up off it some of this and make a
change.”

And it's nothing for an addict to buy two grams of something — the amount that designates
the trafficking charge — because everything is so cheap these days. “Now, you're bogging
down the system even more, giving these lengthy sentences to people with diseases,
instead of offering treatment.”

Wilson says the laws are getting worse instead of better. A few years back, it changed to
anyone charged with trafficking heroin must serve 50 percent of their sentence before being
able to seek parole, when it was 20 percent before.

“Someone who just left their dealer’s house, gets pulled over and caught and charged with
trafficking, then five years in prison, and they're just an addict. They're not even selling. It's
just insane,” Wilson says. “If you would treat the disease ... And it's not successful for
everyone — | wasn't successful the first time | tried to get sober either, or the second or the
third time. But we don't give up on people, we keep trying. Look what happened to me.”

Wilson says her worst days on the job are when they hear of a former client's passing, due
to overdosing when they relapsed after getting out. But her best days bring that smile back.

"Probably when you hear from an old client. Some will call and let us know how they're
doing. They may even say they relapsed when they left, but remembered what we taught
them and got through it, or that they've been great and wanted us to know we had an
impact on them,” Wilson says. “That's my goal. | want to change people’s lives, like mine
was changed.”
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- Letter of Transmittal
- Firm Submitting Proposal
- Affidavit (signed and notarized)
- Equal Opportunity Agreement (signed)
- Copy of Shepherd’s House Policy (Equal Opportunity and Affirmative Action)
- Workforce Analysis
- LFUCG MWDBE Participation Form
LFUCG MWDBE Substitution Form
MWDBE Quote Summary Form
- LFUCG Subcontractor Monthly Payment Report
LFUCG Statement of Good Faith Efforts (signed)
- General Provisions (signed)
- RISK Management
* Insurance: Certificate of Liability
¢ Shepherd's House Audit Fiscal Year 2018 and 2017
° Claim Loss Run Summary (previous 5 years)
- Letter of Commitment (performance bond $100,000)
501 C (3) IRS Letter
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HOUSE

Shepherds House, Inc.
635 Maxwelton Court
Lexington, KY 40508

April 26, 2019

Ms. Sondra Stone

200 East Main Street
Central Purchasing
Government Center Building
Room 338

Lexington, KY 40507

Dear Ms. Stone,

Thank you for allowing the Shepherds House to participate in this RFP. | submit herewith a proposal in
support of RFP-17-2019 “Substance Abuse Program (Male)”. The Shepherds House has thoroughly
reviewed your request and has the management experience and capability to perform to the
expectations presented in your RFP. Please review our proposal and if you have any questions you may
direct your inquiries to me at (859) 537-8680.

Your consideration of the Shepherds House proposal is greatly appreciated.

Sincerely,

Jerod M. Thomas
President/CEO



Firm Submitting Proposal: .S HEPHERD S HOUSE

Complete Address: (35 Maxwerton Coury LewnetoN  KY,

Street City Zip

Contact Name: JERSS Tiomas  Title: Presiden \ CEQ

Telephone Number: (§54) 252-1939 Fax Number: ($59) 252- {935
CerL:  (859) 5375690

Email address: :l)r:mg\;’c\mmm @ s\qt{s\\tc(islﬂnuse,'rnc.com

Ho508



AFFIDAVIT

Comes the Affiant, _SHE’PHERB 's House Inc- _, and after being first duly
sworn, states under penalty of perjury as follows:
-1 —
1. His/her name is «JERO[) IHOMAS ___and he/she is the individual
submitting the proposal or is the authorized representative
of__'[ﬁﬁ_f_\,_ﬁﬁtﬁﬂ&b '3 Houat—? . , the entity submitting

the proposal (hereinafter referred to as "Proposer”).

2. Proposer will pay all taxes and fees, which are owed to the Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government at the time the proposal is submitted, prior to award of the contract and will maintain a
“current” status in regard to those taxes and fees during the life of the contract.

3. Proposer will obtain a Lexington-Fayette Urban County Govemment business license, if applicable,
prior to award of the contract.

4. Proposer has authorized the Division of Central Purchasing to verify the above-mentioned
information with the Division of Revenue and to disclose to the Urban County Council that taxes and/or
fees are delinquent or that a business license has not been obtained.

5. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of the campaign finance laws of the
Commonwealth of Kentucky within the past five (5) years and the award of a contract to the Proposer

will not violate any provision of the campaign finance laws of the Commonwealth.

6. Proposer has not knowingly violated any provision of Chapter 25 of the
Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Code of Ordinances, known as "Ethics Act."

Continued on next page



7. Proposer acknowledges that "knowingly” for purposes of this Affidavit means, with respect to
conduct or to circumstances described by a statute or ordinance defining an offense, that a person is
aware or should have been aware that his conduct is of that natire or that the circumstance exists.

Further, Affiant sayeth naught.

STATE OF H ancls Y

COUNTY OF ﬁm{@tﬁ

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me

by ’jo.roc\ | V\ON\QS on this th

«

of AQ al 201

My Commission expires: OéO@ﬂ \6; 209

NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE AT LARGE




EQUAL OPPORTUNITY AGREEMENT

Standard Title VI Assurance

The Lexinglon Fayette-Urban County Government, (hereinafter referred to as the “Recipient”) hereby agrees that as a
condition to receiving any Federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, it will comply with Title
V1 of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 785tat.252, 42 U.S.C. 2000d-4 {hereinafter referred to as the “Act"), and all requirements
imposed by or pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations. U.S. Depariment of Transportation, Subtitie A, Office of
the Secretary, (49 CFR, Part 21) Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Program of the Department of Transportation —
Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (hereinafier referred to as the "Regulations”) and other pertinent
directives, no person in the United States shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age (over 40), religion,
sexual orientation, gender identity, veteran status, or disability be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of,
or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any program or activity for which the Recipient receives Federal financial
assistance from the U.S. Department of Transportation, including the Federai Highway Administration, and hereby gives
assurance that will promptly take any necessary measures lo effecluate this agreemeni. This assurance is required by
subsection 21.7(a) (1) of the Regulations.

The Law

Title VIl of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (amended 1972) stales that it is unlawful for an employer to discriminate in
employment because of race, color, refigion, sex, age (40-70 years) or national origin.

. Executive Order No. 11246 on Nondiscrimination under Federal contract prohibils employment discrimination by
contractor and sub-contractor doing business with the Federal Government or recipients of Federal funds. This
order was later amended by Executive Order No. 11375 to prohibit discrimination on the basis of sex.

. Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 states:

The Contractor wilf not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
because of physical or mental handicap.

. Section 2012 of the Vietnam Era Velerans Readjustment Act of 1973 requires Affirmative Action on behalf of
disabled veterans and veterans of the Vietnam Era by contractors having Federal contracls.

J Section 206(A) of Executive Order 12086, Consolidation of Contract Compliance Functions for Equal Employment
Opportunity, states:

The Secretary of Labor inay investigate the employment practices of any Government
contractor or sub-contractor to determine whether or not the contractual provisions
specified in Section 202 of this order have been violated.

Ltada o ot e ol ot P e Py e

The Lexinglon-Fayette Urban County Government practices Equal Opportunity in recruiling, hiring and promoting. Itis the
Government's intent lo affirmatively provide employment opportunilies for those individuals who have previously not been
allowed to enter into the mainstream of society. Because of its importance 1o the local Government, this policy carries the
full endorsement of the Mayor, Commissioners, Directors and all supervisory personnel. In fallowing this commitment to
Equal Employment Opportunity and because the Goverment is the benefactor of the Federal funds, it is both against the
Urban County Government policy and illegal for the Government to let contracts o companies which knowingly or
unknowingly practice discrimination in their employment praclices. Violation of the above mentioned ordinances may cause
a contract 10 be canceled and lhe contractors may be declared ineligible for future consideration.

Please sign Lhis stalement in the appropriate space acknowledging that you have read and understand the provisions
contained herein. Relurn this document as part of your application packet.



Bidders

IMWe agree to comply with the Civil Rights Laws listed above that govern employment rights of minorities, women, Vietnam
veterans, handicapped and aged persons.

Quaeat Adsoraean SHEPRERD 's  |House Inc.

% *

Sicfnature Name of Business
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¢ isincompatible with the proper discharge of the duties and responsibilities of employment with the
Shepherd's House or would impair independence of judgment or actions in such employment

*  involves such hours or work or physical effort that it would or could be reasonably be expected to
reduce the staff member’s quality or quantity of service to the Shepherd's House

Lmployment Disclosure

Any staff member who is engaged in or is planning 10 engage in outside employment shall request clearance
from the Executive Director as to whether such current and planned activities are prohibited. If they are not
prohibited, the staff member shall then complete an OQutside Employment Request form. The Executive
Director may require staff members to furnish such other information as may be appropriate in considering
the clearance request. The Executive Director may grant clearance only when he or she believes such
activities would be consistent with this regulation. If clearance is not granted, the employee shall not
commence or continue the outside employment or activity. If the Executive Director elects to grant a
clearance, it shall be issued in writing,

Staff members who are on medical or family leave are not eligible for outside employment during the time of
their leave.

Policy 1-14: Equal Employment Opportunity and Affirmative Action

Equal Employment Opportunity Policy
1. The Shepherd's House, through responsible managers, shall recruit, hire, train and promote in all job
titles without regard to race, color, national origin, religion, sex, physical disability, age, sexual

arientation or status as a disable veteran, excent where sex or age is 2 bona fide occupational
qualification,

Shepherd's House shall ensure that all other personnel actions such as compensation, benefits,
agency-sponsored training, transfer, demotion, termination, layoff, return from layoff, and social
recreation programs shall be administered without regard to race, color, natjonal origin, reli gion, sex,
physical disability, age, sexual orientation or status as a disabled veteran, except where sex or age is a
bona fide occupational qualification.

3. Shepherd's House shall base employment decisions on the principles of equal opportunity and with the
intent to  further the agency’s affirmative action program goals.

L)

Affirmative Action Statement

This agency provides equal employment opportunity to all persons without regard to race, color, religion,
disability, sex, age, sexual orientation or national origin, and promotes the full realization of this policy
through a positive, continuing program of affirmative action. Shepherd's House is committed to equal
opportunity for all applicants and staff in personnel matters including recruitment and hiring, benefits,
training, promotion, compensation, transfer, and layoff or termination,

Policy 1-15: Sexual Harassment
Shepherd's House will not tolerate harassment of its staff members. This means that the following behaviors
are grounds for disciplinary action, including termination:

. unwelcome sexual advances
. requests for sexual acts or favors

11



WORKFORCE ANALYSIS FORM

Name of Organization: Site PHERD S HQ UsE

Categories Total | White Hispani | Black or Native Asian America | Twoor | Tota
(Not cor African- | Hawaiian (Not n Indian more I
Hispani Latino America and Hispani or races
cor n (Not Other cor Alaskan (Not
; Hispanic | Pacific Latino Native : :
Latino) ; Hispani
or Latino | Islander {not A
(Not Hispanic | | stino
Hispanic or Latino
or Lalino
MIFIMIFIM|IF [MI|F|M|FIM|F | M|F||MF
Administrators A P
| Professionals 5 |14 B | B
Superintendents | | ) i L
_Supervisors 3 |2 14 L B
Foremen = i [ (—
Technicians . | &6 |6
Protective I S - [ I
. Para- B —
Office/Clerical { | B .
SkilledCraft | |
Service/Maintena
i Total: 17 w6 ! b ) o
Prepared by: )sm\ ﬂlm;w\g./] pate:_H /16, 2014

! (Name and Title) Revised 2015-Dec-15
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The MWDBE and/of veteran subcontractors listed have agreed to participate on this Bid/RFP/ Quotg If any
substitution is made o1 the total value of the work is changed prior to or after the job is in progress, it is '
understood that those substitutions must be submitted to Central Purchasing for approval immediately. Failure
to submit a completed form may cause rejection of the bid,

LFUCG MWDBE PARTICIPATION FORM
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference #__ REP « (T ~ 2019

MWDBE Company, Name, | MBE Work to be Performed | Total Dollar % Value of
Address, Phone, Email WBE or Value of the Total Contract
| | DBE Work

= J

* THERE ARZ ND |SURCONTRACTING [ SUR- CONSULYING o}pumm-nsf.
2 AT THIS TIME

|
I
| - i—

"The undersigned company representative submits the above list of MWDBE fiems to be used in accomplishing the work
contained in this Bid/RFP/Quote. Any misreptesentation may resalt in the termination of the conerace and/or be subject
to applicable Federal and State laws concerning false statemnents and false claims.

_SuErHERd's House Inc. _Jeron THomas
Company

Company Representative

91-[1@/_3211__ . _Pegsinenr \ CEQ

Date Title




S LFUCG MWDBE SUBSTITUTION FORM ‘
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference #__REP - 17« 2044

The substitured MWDBL and/or veteran subcontractors listed below have agreed to participate on this Bid/RF1?/Quote.
These substitutions were made prior to or after the job was in progress. ‘These substitutions were made for teasons :‘s'ratcd'
below and are now being submitted w Cential Purchasing for approval. By the authorized signature of a representative of
out company, we understand that this information will be entered into our file for this project,

B ?Uflgi‘[i"iJTED T _MW'_D—BE‘ i’?rmnﬁy " Work to e Renson for the Totul Dollar | % Value of Total
MWDBE Company | Conmncted/ Name, Perfosmed Substltution Value of the { Contraci
Name, Address, Phone, | Address, Phone, Work i
Emall Email o | — T e |

1.

| ¥ Tuepe ARE MO SUBCONYTR URk-Co TING
‘2 OPPURNUNITIES AT THIS Tim

o | N

The undersigned acknowledges that any iisrepresentation may result in termination of the contract and/or be subject to
applicable Federal and Srate laws coucerning false statements and false claims,

Sueenern's House Jue _Imubj'omas

Company Company Representative

el _Peesibent | CEO

Date Title




AREAK
§ 0 %,
)

S

s
MWDBE QUOTE SUMMARY FORM
Bid/RFP/Quote Reference # REP -~ 1120149

The undersigned acknowledges that the minority and/or veteran subcontractors listed on this form did
submit a quote to participate on this project. Failure to submit this form may cause rejection of the bid.

- Company Name Contact Person

| S U= ~~— = e
¢ Address/Phone/Email

Bid Package / Bid Date

MWDBE Conract | Contact | Date Servicey Method of Total dollars §8  MBE * | Vereran
, Company Addres Petson | Information | Contacted | to be Communication | Do Not Leave AA
(work phone, pecformed | (cmail, phone Blank HA
Email, cell) meeting, ad, (Auach AS
cvent etc) Documentation) | NA _
S (SR __ o | Female

| |
. (i T . §
IHERE ARE N0 SUBCONTRACTIN \o_uar CoNSULTING OPPURTUN LTI |
AT THIS TIME | \
4% { !

S == =l i

|
l
|

—i =

e e S —— - L

(MBE designation / AA=African American / HA= Hispanic American/AS = Asian American/Pacific Islander/

NA= Native American)

The undersigned acknowledges dhar all information is accurate. Any misrepresentation may result in eermination of the
contract and/or be subject to applicable Pederal and State laws concerning filse statements and claims,

_Sueperts House (we. Jeron Thomas

Company Comipany Representative o
Ylef2oma Presineny \ CEC

Dare Title



LFUCG SUBCONTRACTOR MONTHLY PAYMENT REPORT

The LEGCG has a 10% goal plan adupted by city council to inceease the pacticipation of minority and women owaed

businesses in the procurement process, The LIFUCG also has 4 3% goal plan adopted by cited council o inerease the
participation of veteean owned businesses in the procurement process. In order to measure that goal LEUCG will rack

spending with MWDBLE and Veteran contractors on a monthly basis. By the signature below of an authorized company
representative, you certify that the information is correet, and that cach of the representations set forth below is ue. Any
misrepresentaton may result in weemination of the contract and/or prosecution under applicable Federal and State laws
concerning false stacements and false clims. Please submit this form manthly to the Division of Cenrral Purchasing/ 200
LZast Main Street / Room 338 / Lexingon, IKY 40507,

Bid/RFP/Quote # RFP -|7- 2014

Total Contract Amount Awarded to Prime Contractor for this Project

Project Name/ Contract # Work Pc_riod/ From: To:
'_Con_1pnn_y Name: - Address: - :
Federal Tax ID: - | Contact Person: -
|
" Subcontractor Déscription - Total % of Towal Purchase Scheduled l Scheduled
Vendor [D of Warlk Subcontract | Total Amount Order number | Project Project I
(name, address, Amount Contract DPuid for for Start Date | End Date
phone, email Awarded this Period | subcontoctor
| 10 Prime work
for this (please artach
| - | Project _|PO) = Se—
I |
i | ' | ‘
/ L) .
IHERE_ARE Na SUBLONTRAL m&)‘h_su& CONSULT ING- OPPURTUR I TIES

AT THIS TIME

’ |
| |
|

|

By the signature below of an aurhorized company representative, you certify that the information is correet, and that each
of the representitions ser forth below is wue. Any nnsrepresentations may result in the weeminatgon of the conmract and/or
prosccution wnder applicable Federal and St laws concerning (alse seatements and False claims,

Sneruerh's Housg e,
Company

qlie]zol
Date

‘IERO h__THomﬂus

Company Representative

President \ CEQ

Title



¥ TTHERE ARE NO SUBCONTRACTING \ SUR~CONSULTING OPPURTUNITIES

AT THIS TImE . This PROJECT REQUIRES 1.5 STARE MEMBERS
WHo HAJE To BE CERYIFIED

LFUCG STATEMENT OF GOOD FAITH EFFORTS
Bid/RFP/Quote # RFP-17-2015 N
By the signature below of an authorized company representative, we certifv that we
have utilized the following Good Faith Efforts to obtain the masimum participation
by MWDBIE and Veteran-Owned business enterprises on the project and can supply
the appropriate documentation,

N lﬁ Advertised opportunities to participate in the contract in at least two (2)
publications of general circulation media; trade and professional association
publications; small und minority business or trade publications; and publications or
trades targeting minority, women and disadvantaged businesses not less than fifteen
(15) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow MWDBE firms and
Veteran-Owned businesses to participate,

Included documentation of advertising in the above publications with the
bidders good faith efforts package

N 1& Attended LFUCG Central Purchasing Economic Inclusion Quireach event

Nzﬁ Attended pre-bid meetings that were scheduled by LFUCG to inform
MWDBESs and/or Veteran-Owned Businesses of subcontracting opportunities
ll'l\ Qi Py o r e . .. "

DPUIIUTCU ELOSIOINIC HICTUS 10D evenl 10 provide networking opportunities
for prime contractors and MWDBE firms and Veteran-Owned businesses

Requested a list ot MWDBE and/or Veteran subcontractors or suppliers from
LFUCG and showed evidence of contacting the companies on the list(s).

N ‘ﬁ Contacted organizations that work with MWDBE companies for assistance
in finding certified MWBDE finms and Veteran-Owned businesses to work on this
project. Those contacted and their responses should be a part of the bidder’s good
faith efforts documentation.

Sent written notices, by certified mail, email or facsimile, to qualified,
certified MWDBES soliciting their participation in the contract not less than seven
(7) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids to allow them to participate
effectively.

Followed up initial solicitations by contacting MWDBEs and Veterun-
Owned businessces to determine their level of interest,

N Iﬂ Provided the interested MWBDE firm and/or Vetcran-Owned business with
adequate and timely information about the plans, specifications, and requirements
of the contract.

Selected portions of the work to be performed by MWDBE firms and/or
Veteran-Owned businesses in order to increase the likelibood of meeting the
contract goals. This includes, where appropriate, breaking out contract work items



mnto economically feasible units to facilitate MWDBE and Veteran participation,
even when the prime contractor may otherwise perform these work items with its
own workforce

N[A Negotiated in good faith with interested MWDBI: firms and Veteran-Owned
businesses not rejecting them as unqualified without sound reasons based on a
thorough investigation of their cupabilities.  Any rejection should be so noted in
writing with a description as to why an agreement could not be reached.

Nlﬁ Included documentation of quotations received from interested MWDBI
firms and Veteran-Owned businesses which were not used due to uncompetitive
pricing or were rejected as unacceptable andfor copies of responses from firms
indicating that they would not be submitting a bid.

ﬂ‘ﬁ Bidder has to submit sound reasons why the quotations were considered
unacceptable. The fact that the bidder has the ability and/or desire to perform the
contract work with its own forces will not be considered a sound reason for
rejecting a MWDBLE and/or Veteran-Owned business’s quote. Nothing in this
provision shall be construed to require the bidder to aceept unrcasonable quotes in
order to satisfy MWDBE and Veteran goals,

N!a Made an effort to offer assistance o or refer interested MWDBE firms and
Veteran-Owned businesses to obtain the necessary equipment, supplies. materials.
insurance and/or bonding to satisty the work requirements of the bid proposal

Nl&_Made efforts to expand the search for MWBL firms and Veteran-Owned
businesses beyond the usual geographic boundaries.

HIB Other--any other evidence that the bidder submits which may show that the
bidder has made reasonable good faith efforts to include MWDBE and Veteran
participation,

NOTE: Failure to submit any of the documentation requested in this section may be
cause for rejection of bid, Bidders may include any other documentation deemed
relevant to this requirement which is subject to approval by the MBE Liaison.
Documentation of Good Faith Efforts must be submitted with the Bid, if the
participation Goal is not met.

The undersigned acknowledges that all information is accurate. Any misrepresentations may result
in wrmination of the contract and/or be subject to applicable Federal and State laws concerning
false statements and claims.

Siﬂ:PHEKh\ﬁ HC\__\_,:{;:I; lNCH _\Sﬁ,(}(\} I]-}(}ﬁ' '\,f.\t.)
Company Company Representative
H\16{ 2014 FRes neny \ CED

Date

Title



GENERAL PROVISIONS

Each Respondent shall comply with all Federal, State & Local regulations
concerning this type of service or good.

The Respondent agrees to comply with all statutes, rules, and regulations
governing safe and healthful working conditions, including the Occupational Health
and Safety Act of 1970, 29 U.S.C. 650 el. seq., as amended, and KRS Chapter
338. The Respondent also agrees to notify the LFUCG in writing immediately upon
detection of any unsafe and/or unhealthful working conditions at the job site. The
Respondent agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the LFUCG harmless from all
penalties, fines or other expenses arising out of the alleged violation of said laws.

Failure to submit ALL forms and information required in this RFP may be grounds
for disqualification.

Addenda: All addenda and lonWave Q&A, if any, shall be considered in making
the proposal, and such addenda shall be made a part of this RFP. Before
submitting a proposal, it is incumbent upon each proposer ta be informed as to
whether any addenda have been issued, and the failure to cover in the bid any
sucn addenda may resuit in disquaiification of that proposai.

Proposal Reservations: LFUCG reserves the right to reject any or all proposals, to
award in whole or part, and to waive minor immaterial defects in proposals. LFUCG
may consider any alternative proposal that meets its basic needs.

Liability: LFUCG is not responsible for any cost incurred by a Respondent in the
preparation of proposals.

Changes/Alterations: Respondent may change or withdraw a proposal at any time
prior to the opening; however, no oral modifications will be allowed. Only letters, or
other formal written requests for modifications or corrections of a previously
submitted proposal which is addressed in the same manner as the proposal, and
received by LFUCG prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of proposals, will
be accepted. The proposal, when opened, will then be corrected in accordance
with such written request(s), provided that the written request is contained in a
sealed envelope which is plainly marked “modifications of proposal”.

Clarification of Submittal: LFUCG reserves the right to obtain clarification of any
point in a bid or to obtain additional information from a Respondent.

Bribery Clause: By his/her signature on the bid, Respondent certifies that no
employee of his/hers, any affiliate or Subcontractor, has bribed or attempted to
bribe an officer or employee of the LFUCG.



10.

11.

12.

Additional Information: While not necessary, the Respondent may include any
product brochures, software documentation, sample reports, or other
documentation that may assist LFUCG in better understanding and evaluating the
Respondent's response. Additional documentation shall not serve as a substitute
for other documentation which is required by this RFP to be submitted with the
proposal,

Ambiguity, Conflict or other Errors in RFP: If a Respondent discovers any
ambiguity, conflict, discrepancy, omission or other error in the RFP, it shall
immediately notify LFUCG of such error in writing and request modification or
clarification of the document if allowable by the LFUCG.

Agreement to Bid Terms: In submitting this proposal, the Respondent agrees that
it has carefully examined the specifications and all provisions relating to the work
to be done attached hereto and made part of this proposal. By acceptance of a
Contract under this RFP, proposer states that it understands the meaning, intent
and requirements of the RFP and agrees to the same. The successful Respondent
shall warrant that it is familiar with and understands all provisions herein and shall
warrant that it can comply with them. No additional compensation to Respondent
shall be authorized for services or expenses reasonably covered under these
provisions that the proposer omits from its Proposal.

Cancellation: If the services to be performed hereunder by the Respondent are not
performed in an acceptable manner to the LFUCG, the LFUCG may cancel this
contract for cause by providing written notice to the proposer, giving at least thirty
(30) days notice of the proposed cancellation and the reasons for same. During
that time period, the proposer may seek to bring the performance of services
hereunder to a level that is acceptable to the LFUCG, and the LFUCG may rescind
the cancellation if such action is in its best interest.

A. Termination for Cause

(1) LFUCG may terminate a contract because of the contractor’s failure
to perform its contractual duties

(2)  If a contractor is determined to be in default, LFUCG shall notify the
contractor of the determination in writing, and may include a specified
date by which the contractor shall cure the identified deficiencies.
LFUCG may proceed with termination if the contractor fails to cure the
deficiencies within the specified time.

(3)  Adefault in performance by a contractor for which a contract may be
terminated shall include, but shall not necessarily be limited to:
(a) Failure to perform the contract according to its terms, conditions
and specifications;
(b)  Failure to make delivery within the time specified or according



13.

14.

15.

to a delivery schedule fixed by the contract;

(c) Late payment or nonpayment of bills for labor, materials,
supplies, or equipment furnished in connection with a contract
for construction services as evidenced by mechanics’ liens filed
pursuant to the provisions of KRS Chapter 376, or letters of
indebtedness received from creditors by the purchasing
agency,

(d) Failure to diligently advance the work under a contract for
construction services;

(e) The filing of a bankruptcy petition by or against the contractor:
or

(f)  Actions that endanger the health, safely or welfare of the
LFUCG or its citizens.

B. At Will Termination

Notwithstanding the above provisions, the LFUCG may terminate this contract at
will in accordance with the law upon providing thirty (30) days written notice of that
intent, Payment for services or goods received prior to termination shall be made
by the LFUCG provided these goods or services were provided in a manner
acceptable to the LFUCG. Payment for those goods and services shall not be
unreasonably withheld.

Assignment of Contract: The contractor shall not assign or subcontract any portion
of the Contract without the express written consent of LFUCG. Any purported
assignment or subcontract in violation hereof shall be void. It is expressly
acknowledged that LFUCG shall never be required or obligated to consent to any
request for assignment or subcontract; and further that such refusal to consent can
be for any or no reason, fully within the sole discretion of LFUCG,

No Waiver: No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power
or privilege hereunder, nor any single or partial exercise thereof, nor the exercise
of any other right, remedy, power or privilege shall operate as a waiver hereof or
thereof. No failure or delay by LFUCG in exercising any right, remedy, power or
privilege under or in respect of this Contract shall affect the rights, remedies,
powers or privileges of LFUCG hereunder or shall operate as a waiver thereof.

Authority to do Business: The Respondent must be a duly organized and
authorized to do business under the laws of Kentucky. Respondent must be in
good standing and have full legal capacity to provide the services specified under
this Contract, The Respondent must have all necessary right and lawful authority
to enter into this Contract for the full term hereof and that proper corporate or other
action has been duly taken authorizing the Respondent to enter into this Contract.
The Respondent will provide LFUCG with a copy of a corporate resolution
authorizing this action and a letter from an attorney confirming that the proposer is
authorized to do business in the State of Kentucky if requested. All proposals must



18.

17.

18.

19.

20.

be signed by a duly authorized officer, agent or employee of the Respondent.

Governing Law: This Contract shall be governed by and construed in accordance
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. In the event of any proceedings
regarding this Contract, the Parties agree that the venue shall be the Fayette
County Circuit Court or the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Kentucky,
Lexington Division. All parties expressly consent to personal jurisdiction and venue
in such Court for the limited and sole purpose of proceedings relating to this
Contract or any rights or obligations arising thereunder. Service of process may be
accomplished by following the procedures prescribed by law.

Ability to Meet Obligations: Respondent affirmatively states that there are no
actions, suits or proceedings of any kind pending against Respondent or, to the
knowledge of the Respondent, threatened against the Respondent before or by
any court, governmental body or agency or other tribunal or authority which would,
if adversely determined, have a materially adverse effect on the authority or ability
of Respondent to perform its obligations under this Contract, or which question the
legality, validity or enforceability hereof or thereof.

Contractor understands and agrees that its employees, agents, or subcontractors
are not employees of LFUCG for any purpose whatsoever. Contractor is an
independent contractor at all times during the performance of the services
specified.

If any term or provision of this Contract shall be found to be illegal or unenforceable,
the remainder of the contract shall remain in full force and such term or provision
shall be deemed stricken.

Contractor [or Vendor or Vendor's Employees] will not appropriate or make use of
the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government (LFUCG) name or any of
its trade or service marks or property (including but not limited to any logo or seal),
in any promotion, endorsement, advertisement, testimonial or similar use without
the prior written consent of the government. If such consent is granted LFUCG
reserves the unilateral right, in its sole discretion, to immediately terminate and
revoke such use for any reason whatsoever. Contractor agrees that it shall cease
and desist from any unauthorized use immediately upon being notified by LFUCG.

%@A.Lm\w_ R H llblzm
Signature Date



RISK MANAGEMENT PROVISIONS
INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION

INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS PROVISION

(1)

)

(4)

(8)

(6)

It is understood and agreed by the parties that Consultant hereby assumes the entire
responsibility and liability for any and all damages to persons or property caused by or
resulting from or arising out of any act or omission on the part of Consultant or its
employees, agents, servants, owners, principals, licensees, assigns or subcontractors
of any tier (hereinafter "Consultant”) under or in connection with this agreement and/or
the provision of goods or services and the performance or failure to perform any work
required thereby.

Consultant shall indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend the Lexington-Fayette
Urban County Government and its elected and appointed officials, employees, agents,
volunteers, and successors in interest (hereinafter “LFUCG") from and against all
liability, damages, and losses, including but not limited to, demands, claims, obligations,
causes of action, judgments, penallies, fines, liens, costs, expenses, interest, defense
costs and reasonable attorney's fees that are in any way incidental to or connected with,
or that arise or are alleged to have arisen, directly or indirectly, from or by Consultant’s
performance or breach of the agreement andfor the provision of goods or services
provided that: (a) it is attributable to personal injury, bodily injury, sickness, or death, or
to injury to or destruction of property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom), or to
or from the negligent acts, errors or omissions or willful misconduct of the Consultant;
and (b) not caused solely by the active negligence or willful misconduct of LFUCG.

Noiwiihsianding, the foregoing, with respect 1o any professional services performed by
Consultant hereunder (and to the fullest extent permitled by law), Consultant shall
indemnify, save, hold harmiess and defend LFUCG from and ‘against any and all liability,
damages and losses, including but nol limited to, demands, claims, obligations, causes
of action, judgments, penalties, fines, liens, costs, expenses, interest, defense costs and
reasonable attorney's fees, for any damage due to death or injury to any person or injury
to any property (including the loss of use resulting therefrom) to the extent arising out of,
pertaining to or relating to the negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of
Consultant in the performance of this agreement.

In the event LFUCG is alleged to be liable based upon the above, Consultant shall
defend such allegations and shall bear all costs, fees and expenses of such defense,
including but not limited to, all reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses, court costs,
and expert witness fees and expenses, using attorneys approved in writing by LFUCG,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.

These provisions shall in no way be limited by any financial responsibility or insurance
requirements, and shall survive the termination of this agreement.

LFUCG is a political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. CONSULTANT
acknowledges and agrees that LFUCG is unable to provide indemnity or otherwise save,
hold harmless, or defend the CONSULTANT in any manner.

FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

CONSULTANT understands and agrees that it shall, prior to final acceptance of its proposal and
the commencement of any work or services, demonstrate the ability to assure compliance with the
above Indemnity provisions and these other risk management provisions,



INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

YOUR ATTENTION IS DIRECTED TO THE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS BELOW, AAND
YOU MAY NEED TO CONFER WITH YOUR INSURANCE AGENTS, BROKERS, OR
CARRIERS TO DETERMINE IN ADVANCE OF SUBMISSION OF A RESPONSE THE
AVAILABILITY OF THE INSURANCE COVERAGES AND ENDORSEMENTS REQUIRED
HEREIN. IF YOU FAIL TO COMPLY WITH THE INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS BELOW, YOU
MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FROM AWARD OF THE CONTRACT.

Required Insurance Coverage

CONSULTANT shalt procure and maintain for the duration of this contract the following or
equivalent insurance policies at no less than the limits shown below and cause its
subcontractors to maintain similar insurance with limits acceptable to LFUCG in order to protect
LFUCG against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in
connection with the performance of the work or services hereunder by CONSULTANT. The cost
of such insurance shall be included in any bid;

/ Coverage Limits
General Liability $1 million per occurrence, $2 million aggregate
(Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01) or $2 million combined singte limit
Commercial Automobile Liability combined single, $1 million per occurrence

(Insurance Services Office Form CA 0001)

Professional Liability $1 million per occurrence
Worker's Compensation Statutory
Employer’s Liability $100,000.00

The policies above shall contain the following conditions:

a. All Certificates of Insurance forms used by the insurance carrier shall be properly filed and
approved by the Department of Insurance for the Commonwealth of Kentucky. LFUCG shall
be named as an additional insured in the General Liability Policy and Commercial
Automobile Liability Policy using the Kentucky DOI approved forms.

b. The General Liability Policy shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance retained by
LFUCG.

c. The General Liabllity Pollcy shall include a Products and Completed Operations
endorsement or Premises and Operations Liability endorsement and a Products Liability
endorsement unless they are deemed not to apply by LFUCG.

d. The General Liability Policy shall have a Professional Liability endorsement (including Errors
and Omissions) for any services performed pursuant to the contract, and/or a separate
Professional Liability Policy shall be obtained unless il is deemed nol to apply by LFUCG.

e. The Professional Liability policy shall be maintained for a minimum of three years beyond
the completion date of the project, to the extent commercially available. If not commercially
available, CONSULTANT shall notify LFUCG and obtain similar insurance that is
commercially available and acceptable to LFUCG.

N



f.  LFUCG shall be provided at least 30 days advance written notice via certified mail, return
receipt requested, in the event any of the required policies are canceled or non-renewed.

g. Said coverage shall be written by insurers acceptable to LFUCG and shall be in a form
acceptable to LFUCG. Insurance placed with insurers with a rating classification of no less
than Excellent (A or A-) and a financial size category of no less than VIlI, as defined by the
mosl current Best's Key Rating Guide shall be deemed automatically acceptable.

Renewals

After insurance has been approved by LFUCG, evidence of renewal of an expiring policy must be
submitted to LFUCG, and may be submitted on a manually signed renewal endorsement form. If
the policy or carrier has changed, however, new evidence of coverage must be submitted in
accordance with these Insurance Requirements.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Programs

IF_ YOU INTEND TO SUBMIT A SELF-INSURANCE PLAN IT MUST BE FORWARDED TO
LEXINGTON-FAYETTE _URBAN _COUNTY GOVERNMENT, DIVISION OF RISK
MANAGEMENT, 200 EAST MAIN STREET, LEXINGTON, KENTUCKY 40507 NO LATER THAN
A MINIMUM OF FIVE (5) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO THE RESPONSE DATE. Self-insurance
programs, deductibles, and self-insured retentions in Insurance policies are subject to separate
approval by Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government's Division of Risk Management, upon
review of evidence of CONSULTANT's financial capacity to respond to claims. Any such
programs or retentions must provide LFUCG with at least the same protection from liability and
defense of suits as would be afforded by first-dollar insurance coverage. If CONSULTANT
satlisfies any poriion of ihe insurance requirements through deductibles, self-insurance programs,
or self-insured retentions, CONSULTANT agrees to provide Lexington-Fayette Urban County
Government, Division of Risk Management, the following data prior to the final acceptance of bid
and the commencement of any work;

\/ a. Latest audited financial statement, including auditor's notes.
NI b, Any records of any self-insured trust fund plan or policy and related accounting
statements.
iR c. Actuarial funding reports or retained losses.
N\h d. Risk Management Manual or a description of the self-insurance and risk
manpagement program.,
v e A claim loss run summary for the previous five (5) years.
N\P\ f. Self-Insured Associations will be considered.

Safety and Loss Control

CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local safety standards related to
the performance of its works or services under this Agreement and take necessary action to
protect the life, health and safety and property of all of its personnel on the job site, the public, and
LFUCG.

Verification of Coverage

w



CONSULTANT agrees to furnish LFUCG with all applicable Certificates of Insurance signed by a
person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage on its behalf prior to final award, and if
requested, shall provide LFUCG copies of all insurance policies, including all endorsements.

Right to Review, Audit and Inspect

CONSULANT understands and agrees that LFUCG may review, audit and inspect any and all of
its records and operations 1o insure compliance with these Insurance Requirements.

DEFAULT

CONSULTANT understands and agrees that the failure to comply with any of these insurance,
safety, or loss control provisions shall constitute default and that LFUCG may elect at its option
any single remedy or penalty or any combination of remedies and penalties, as available,
including but not limited to purchasing insurance and charging CONSULTANT for any such
insurance premiums purchased, or suspending or terminating the work.

00471865
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Shepherd's House, Ing,
Lexington, Kentucky

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shepherd's House, Inc. (u non-profit organization), which
comprise the statement of assets, liabilitics, and net assets - modified cash busis as of June 30,2018 and 2017, and the
related statements of suppor! und revenue, expenscs, and other changes in net assets — modified cash basis and cash flows
- madified cash basis for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the
modified cash basis of accounting as described in Note A; this includes determining that the modified cash basis of
accounting is an acceptable busis for the presentation of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management iy
also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparalion and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether duc to fraud or eror.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinion on thesc financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America. Those standurds require that we
pian and perform the audit Lo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial siaicments are frec of material
misstatement,

An audit invalves performing procedures (o abtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatemen! of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant (o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectivencss of the entity's intemal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statemems.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material respects, the assers, liabilities, und
net assets of Shepherd's House, Inc. as of June 30,2018 and 2017, and its support, revenue, expenses, and other changes
in net assets, functional expenscs and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the modified cash basis
of accounting as described in Note A,

Basis of Accounting

We draw atiention 1o Note A of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting.  ‘The linancial

statements are prepared on the modified cash basis o accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting
principies generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

183 Woion Avsnee

vexinglon, Rentuchy

8597211820
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Report on Supplementary Information

Qur gudit was conducted tor the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as 2 whole. 1he Statement of
Functional ¥Expenses - Modificd Cash Basis for the vears ended Jung 30,2018 and 2017 are presented for purposes of
addditivnial anatysis and is not o required part of the financiu) sttements. Such information is we responsibility of
managemeni and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying aceousiting snd vther records used to prepire the
financial staements. The information has been subjeeted to the auditing procedures applied in the sudit of the financial
statements and certain ather procedures, including comparing and reconciling sueh information direet)y to the underlying
accounting and other records used o prepare Lhe Gnancial statements or 1o the financial sutements themselves, and other
additivnal pracedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America In our
opinion. the information is fairly sisted in all material respects in relation 10 the financial statements as a whaole.

SKW (WAs o Advisors, PLLC
I exington, Kentucky

December 13, 2018



SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC,
STATEMENT OF ASSES, LIADILITIES, AND NET ASSETS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

JUNE 30,
ASSETS 2018 2017
CURRENT ASSLETS
Cush and cash equivelents S - 353,824 $ 285.142
TOTAL CLURRENT ASSETS 353,824 285,142
PROPERTY AND FQUIPMENT
Land 118,943 108.000
Building 1,649,077 1,190,335
Equipment and fumiwire 13,552 . 59,838
1,841,574 1,358,173
L.ess accumulated depreciation and amontizaiion (535,294) L (484.002)
. 1,306.280 ___R4ITY
OTHER ASSETS
Note receivable - Shepherd's Place. 1.1.C 326,000 326,000
Deposits L300 San
326,500
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,986,604 5 1,485813
LIABILITIES AND WET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payroll liabilities ) 5,426 5 4,520
Rent deposits 6,105 §.220
Notes payable - current poriion - 211,722 1,986
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 223,253 14,736
NOTES PAYABLE - LONG TERM 329,579 322,908
NET ASSETS
Unrestricted:
Undesignated 1,382,772 1,087,169
Designated 51,000 54,000
Temporarily restricted - .
1433.772 1138169
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 1986604 S 1,485,813

See Independent Audilors' Report and Notes to Financial Statements.
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SHLEPHERD'S HOUSL, INC,

STATEMENT OF SUPPORT AND REVENUE, EXPENSES AND OHER
CHANGES {N NET ASSETS - MODIFIED ¢CASIT BASIS

YEAR ENDIED JUNE 30, 2018

SUPPORT AND REVENLUT

Girants
Conlributions
Fees for services

Bluegrass Repionul Mental Health - Mental

Retardation Board

United Way of the Bluegrass

Run for Recovery

Boyle County jail income

Interest income
Miscellancous

Net assers relensed from restrictions:
Satisfaction of propram restrictivns

LXPENSIES
Program services

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

Munagement and peneral services

Furdraising

TOTAI EXPENSES

CHANGE INNE'T ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

ENRESTRIGTED

S SO0
373014
138,500

65,605
10,000
62.328
146,644
2.044
3,798

- 1,002,599

639,527
62,082
5,387
706,996
295,603

1138169

. i e

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Nows w Financial Statements,

EMPORARILY
RESTRICTED

S

T0TAL

500
373,014
138,566

65,605
10,000
62,328
346,644
2,044
3,798

1,002,599

8

i-'.l:

639,527
62.082
5,387

706,996

295,603

1,138,169

1433772



SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC.,

STATEMENT OF SUPPORT AND REVENU E, EXPENSLES AN OTHER
CHANGES IN NET ASSETS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNL 30, 2017

SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Kentueky Housing Authority grant
Coniributions
Fues for services
Bluegrass Regional Memal Health - Mentat
Retzrdation Board
United Way of the Bluegrass
Run for Recovery
RBoyle County jail income
Interest income
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of property
Nol ussets released from restriciions:

Satisfaction of prograin restrictions

TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENU)E
EXPENSES
Program services
Management and general services
Fundraising

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

Sce Independent Auditors' Repont and Notest 10 the Financial Statements
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UNREGSTRICTED

S

$ L1386y

57216
$2.280
127,206

65,525
14,652
57,775
178,397
204
605
190,507

684,367

502,780
63,905
5498

112,184
1,025,945

TEMPORARILY
_RESTRICTED

S .

8

TOTAI,

57,216
82,280
127,206

65,525
14,652
57,775
178,397
204
605

100,507

684,367

502,780
63,905
5,498

572,183

112,184
1,025,985

1,138,169



SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC.
STATEMENL QF CASH FLOWS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
YEAR ENDELD TGNE 30,
2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERAYING ACTIVTTIES
Change in net assets S 205,603
Adjustments 1o recencile net income 1w net
cash from operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 51,292
Ciatn on sale of property snd equipment -
{Increase) decrense in aperating assets
Increase tdecrease) i operating liabilitios:

Payroll liabilities 896
Rent deposits 883
NET CHANGE FROM OPERATING ACHIVITIES 348,670

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITILS
Purchase of fixed assets {183.401)
NET CHANGE FROM INVESTING AC VI HES _ (483,401)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procceds irom notes (net of payments) 203,407
NET CHANGE FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 203,407
NET CHANGE IN CASH 68,682
CASH, BEGINNING OF YEAR 285,142
CASH, END OF YEAR S 353824
INILRES S PAID $ . 1454

See lodependent Auditors' Report und Nutes W Financial Statements.
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2017
112,184

47,724
(100,507)

816
2,070

159,999
159,999

219.963
85,179

285,142

2,608



SHEPHERL’S HOUSE, INC,
NOTES TQ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTEA  NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business
Shepherd’s Housc, Inc. (the Agency) ix a privaie, nonprofit organization, licensed as an intermediate care
facility by the Commonwealth of Kentucky tha provides o piace of hope and recovery for alcoholic and
chemically dependent men. The Agency is a 12- 18-month transilional residentia) treatment program, which
promotus persanal responsibility and accountability for those seeking sustained abstinence from mood and
mind-altering substances.

Basis of Actounting

Theaccompanying Gnancial stmements ofthe Agency have been prepurc on the modified cash basis. They
include a provision lor depreciation of leusehold improvements, buildings and cquipment, deposits and
payroll wax liabilities. In preparation of the modified cash busis financial statements, cerain revenue and
the related assets are recognized when received rather than when the revenue is earned. In addition, certain
expenditures are recorded when paid rather than when the obligation is incurred. The significant
accounting policies followed are described below ta enhance the usefulness of the financial stalements 1o
the reader,

Financial Sialement Presentation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with standards for external financial reporting
by nol-for-profit organizations and require that resources be classified for accounting and reporling
purposes into the following three classes of net usscls;

Unrestricted Net dssets - Net agsets tha ara not sohiject Lo donor-impesed stisulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets that are subject 10 donor-imposed stipulations that may
or will be met, either by actions of the Agency and/or the passage of time, When 4 restriction expires,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified (o unrestricted net assets and reported inthe statement
of support, revenuc, and cxpenses ~ modified cash basis as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanenly Restricted Net Assets - Net assets that are subject 10 donor-imposed stipulations that
they be maintained permanenily by the Agency. Generally, the donors of these asscts pennit the
Agencey to use all or part of the income earned on any related investment for general or specific
PUIposes.

Property and Equipment

Propenty and equipnient are siated at cost, and depreciation is provided over the estimated uschul lives of
the property and equipment on either a siraighi-line basis or an accelerated method, Asset lives range from
seven to twenty-seven and one-hallyears. Assets with useful lives of morc than one year and a cost grealer
than $500 are capitalized and deprecisted over their usefu] life.

Cash and cash equivalents on the statement of cash flows include cash on hand und in bank accounts and
any highly liquid investments held for uperations.



SHEPTIERDY’S HOUSE. INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTEA NATUGREOF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTENG POLICIES - continued
Notes Receivable

Noles receivable are stated wt their outstanding principal. Interest income js 10 be received at the loan
maturity date, and has not been reflected in these financial statements as they vre prepared on the moditied
cash basis  The note and aceried interest thercon is due January 11, 2031.

he Agency loaned Shepherd’s Pluce Apanments, [1.C $275.000 1o be used for the development and
construction of an apartment complex of 40 units for chemically dependent fow-income households, The
loan bears interest at 6. 5%. ‘I'his loan was made with the intent 1o have Shepherd’s Place Apartments fulfill
the Agency's obligations outlined in the note payable to LFUCG (See Note D) of $275 000. Management
hus been in contact with LFUCG and belicves that the note payable due January 11,202 1 will be forgiven
by LEUCG upon maarity. 1f that happens, management helieves the Agency will forgive the note
reccivable with Shepherd's Place for $275,000.

The Agency has slso loaned Shepherd's Place Apariments, 11.C $51,000 10 be used tor this same purpose.
This loan biears interest at 3.75%. The unpaid principal and all accrued interest op bath notes are duc in
full no later than January 11, 2031, These notes may be prepaid in whole or in part atl any time. Any
partial payment shall be applicd first 10 the ucerued interest, with the bulance being applicd to principal,
These loans are secured by a mortgage on the apartment complex. Tmerest reccivable has not been accrued
on these loans because the (inancial statements are prepared on the modificd cash basis of accounting,

Contributions

Contributions received are recorded as unrestricted, temporarily restricted, or permanently restricted
support, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restriction. Contributions that are restricled
by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted netassets if the restrictions expire in the fiscal year in
which the contributions are recognized. Al other donor-restricted contributions are reponed as increases in
temporarily or permanently restricted net ussets depending on the nature of the resirictions. When o
restriction expires, temporarily restricied net assets are reclassificd 10 unrestricted net assets,

Income T'axes

Shepherd"s House, [nc. is a nonprofit organization exempt from income taxes under Internal Revenue
Code, paragraph 501(c)(3). Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has been included in the Agency’s
statement of assets, liabilitics, and net assets  modified cash busis.

Curremt accounting Mandards require the Agency 10 disclose the amount of potential benefit or obligation 1o
be realized as 4 result of an cxamination pesformed by it laxing asihority, Vor the year ended June 30,
2018, management has determined that the Agency docs not have any 1ax positions that result in any
uncertaintics regarding the possible impact on the Agency's financial statements. The Agency is no longe:
subject to examination by taxing authoritics for vears before 2015,

Fstimates
V'he preparation ol tinancial statements in confomnity with the medified cash basis of accounting require

management 10 make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A~ NATURE OF ACTIVITIES AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Subsequent Events

Events that oecur afler the balance sheet date but before the financial statements were available 10 be issued
must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure.  Subsequem events which provide evidence about
conditions that cxisted afler the balance sheet date require disclosure in the sccompanying noues,
Managemem cvaluated the activity of the emtity through December 13, 2018 (the date the financial
stalements were available 10 be issucd) and concluded that no subscquent cvents have occurred that would
require recognition in the financial statements or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.

NOTE B—CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK
The Agency's cash deposits are maintained with financial institutions located in central Kentucky. Cash
balances are insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposil Insurance Corporation. As of Junc 30, 2018,
and 2017, the Agency had uninsured balances 0[$35,878 and §0, respectively. The Agency belicves there
is no significant risk with respect to these deposits.

NOTE C-PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment at Junc 30, 2018 and 2017 consists of:

2018 2017

Land S 118,945 S 108,000
Buildings and improvements 1,649,077 1,190,335
Fumiture and equipment 13,552 39,838
1,841,374 1,358,113

Accumulated depreciation {535.294) (484,002)

¥ 1,306,280 S 874101
NOTE DD- NOTES PAYABLE

The Ageney has entered into a HOME loan agreement with the Lexington-Fayene Urban County
Government, Under this agreement, LFUCG loaned the Agency $275,000 1o be used in the development
and construction of an apartment complex of 40 units 1o provide housing for chemically dependent and
qualifying low-income persons. The Agency has entered into a separate loan agreement with Shepherd's
Place Apartments, LL.C, which is responsible for the development and construction of the apariment
complex (see Note A). The Agency’s loan with the LFUCG bears no interest and is not required 10 be
repaid until maturity, as long as the apartment complex provides housing 1o cligible chemically dependen
low-income houscholds for a period of 20 years, und the Agency remains in compliance with the loan
agreement, the mongage note, The 20-vear period is effective (hrough January 11,2021, at which timse the
loan is due and payable. Management has been in contact with LFUCG and believes that the note payabic
due January 11, 2021 will be forgiven by LFUCG at that time. 1fthat happens, management believes the
Agency will forgive the note receivable with Shepherd’s Place for $275,000.

In July 02003 the Agency entered into a loan sgreement with Building Resources in Central Kentucky
(BRICK) for $25,015. The loan bears interest on the unpaid principal balance at 1% per annum. The
funds are 1o be used for development and rehabilitation costs of housing units for low-income men in
recovery. Annual principal payments began July 1, 2005 with the final payment due July 1, 2024. This
Joun has now been assigned 10 Kentucky Mousing Corporation (KHC). Thenote balances at June 30,2018
and 2017 were 810,607 and $10,607.

The Agency obtained a variable rate, commercial morigage note with Central Bank & Trust Company for
5331,550 to provide for construction-rchab funds, “This loan was paid from the proceeds ofa $268,295
subsidy agrecment through the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati’s A fordable Housing Program and

11



NOTE D NOTES PAYABLE - continued

SHEPHERD™S HOUSL-. INC.

NULES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a peemanent oan of $63,235 Gom Central Bank & |rusi, Company. The permanent foan i3 payable in
monthly installinenis over 15 years at 4.75% with a maturity dute of Decenbuer 27, 2028, and is secyred by
the property on Foantaine Road. The balances un this note at June 30. 2018 und 2017 were 549,126 und

§52,287.

On September 6. 2017 the Agency vpened a twelve-month construction loan for $225,000 with Central
Bank and Trust Co. Interest is charged on outstanding halances at the bank’s index rate with the rate not
decreasing below 5,5%. On June 30, 2018. the credit line had a balance of $206,568, The Agency paid the
entire outstanding balance in the following fiscal year after receiving a grant from the Federal Home | oan
Bank of Cincinnatj.

The maturities ol the notes payable for subsequent years arc as follows:

YEAR
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

2324 and shereafer

CLENTRAL

1,518
1,515

1.515
3032
5 19,607

LEUCG
1,515 S
275,000
1.515 .
S 225,000

NOIL L~ NET ASSET CLASSIFICATIONS

In addition 10 unrestricted net asscis for current operations, these financial statemients include

asset clasyifications:

BANK
$ 1,639
3.816
4,001
4.196
4,399
29,074
$49,128

Unrestricted net assets have been Board designated for the follow ing purpose:

Reserve on note reccivable, due Januany 11, 203)

NOTEY CONTRIBUTED FACILITIES AND SERVICES

2018

$31.000

CONSTR
LOAN
S 206,568

S 206,368

20117

551,000

TOTAL
$211,722
5,331
280,516
5,711
5,914
32,07

$ 541,301

the [ollowing net

The Agency leased Facilities at 154 Bonnic Drae. The leass expired in December 2010, but provides the
Agencey an option (which has been exercised) to extend and renew the lease from year io year for a period not 1o
exceed a total of five years without further written agreement of the paniics. The anaval rent is one dollar. The
Roard hus estimted the approximate tair value of the aanual rem to be $1 4,400, This lease ended in 2018 and
the Agency began a new Jease to Jease facilities at 635 Maswelton Court. e lease expires December 31,2023
and provides the Agency an option to extend and renew the leise for 4 five-year period without further writlen
agreement of the parties. The annnal rent is one dolbar, ‘The Bourd has estimated the approximate fair value of

the annual rent 1o be $14.400.



SHEPLIERD'S HOUSE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTEG  KENTUCKY HOUSING CORPORATION CRANTS

The Agency entered into 4 grant sgreement (“Agreement™) with Kentucky Housing Corporation (K11C),
whereby the Agency reecived $51,000 to be used in the developrent and construction ol # 40-unit apartment
complex (o provide housing for chemically dependent and qualifying low-income persons, The Agreement
requires the apariment complex to be used for the intended purpose, and any misappropriation or fraudulent use
of the funds could require the Agency 1o repay all or a portion of the grant (scc Note G),

The Agency enteredd into # grant agreement with KRC in December 2004, whereby the Agency received
3150,000 to be used to renevate praperty known as Lyndhurst House. The agreement requires the property o
remain affordable 1o persons at or below 50% of (he asea’s median income purstant 1o the guidelines ofthe 1.8,
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) for a minimum of 30 years,

The Agency entered ino a 30-year Affordable Housing Trust Fund Construction Loan Agreement (“AHTE™)
with KHC in November 2012, whereby the Ageney is 1o receive $300,000 10 be used jn the development and
construction of 10-units of rental housing on Foraine Road of which nine (9 of the units shall be considered
ANTF assisted. The agreement requires the propeny to remain affordable Lo persons ai or below 50% of the
arca median income pursuant to the guidelines of ihe 1;.8. Department of ITUD for a minimum of 30 years.
Under the AHTF loan Agreement received in 2012, the Agency is required to establish a reserve for
replacement fund of $3,250 which shall be increased by 3% anmially cach year thereafter. The reserve deposit
shall be paid in monthly installments. n addition, an opersting deficit fund in the amount of §1 3,745 (required
mininium balance) is to be established. Additional deposit funds shall be made in the operating deficit fund any
time the amount in this account falls below the required minimum balance, As of June 30, 2018, the Agency
had received AIMTF funds totaling $300,000. The Agency does not anticipate that these funds will ever be
repaid under the terms of the agrecment which states that the note will be forgiven on the maturity date

(Nevamber 1, 2043} 56 Jong as no defiili under any of ihe joan agreements has gccurred.

NOTE H -~ EMPLOY 2E BENEFIT PLAN

Shepherd’s House, Inc. maintains @ 403(b) cmployee benefit plan, Employees can elect to have their
compensation reduced up to the maximum percentage allowed under Internal Revenue Code {403(b). The
Corporation makes matching contributions up to 3% of the cmployee’s compensation, Total expense incurred
under this plan dering the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 was $3,205 and $3,457



SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC,
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMA'TION
YEAR ENDED JUN) 30, 2018



STALEMENTOF FURNCTIONAL EXPENSES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

PERSONNEL
Salasies
Emplovee benefits
Payroll 1axes
Workmen's compensation

TOTVAL PERSONNEL EXPENSES
NON-PERSONNEI

Accounting fees

Alcohol, drug, snd background serecning
Aunp allowance

Continting education
Depreciation

Food and beverage

Interest

Laundry, linen and housekeeping
Miscellancous

QOffice supplics

Printing and postage

Professional fees

Program supplies

Property insurance

Repairs and maintenance
Teleplione

Utifides

TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES

TOTAL EXPENSES

SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INC,

MANAGEMENT
PROGRAM AND GENERAL
SERVICES SERVICES — PUNDRAISING
g 407,588 S 27822 8 -
35,796 -
33457 2,783
9%
486,575 30,605
- 16,225 :
2,616 - .
] 3,955
634 .
51,292 2
7,782 .
; 7,454
66 . :
4,768 , .
: 3,843 ;
1,860 :
13421 ; .
4.893 5,387
15,090 . .
10,674 < :
2943 -
36913 .
152,952 31473 5,387
s 639,527 S 62,082 § 5,387

See Tndependent Auditors' Report and Notes lo Financial Statements.

- TOTAL _

s 435410
35,796
36,240

9.734

517,180

16225
2,616
3,955

634

51,292
7,762
7454

66
4,768
3.843
1,860

13,421

10,280

15,090

10,674
2943

36913

__ 189,816

5 70899



SHEPHERD'S HOUSE, INQ
STATEMENT OF FUNUTIONAL EXPENSES - MODIFID ¢ ASH BASIS
YEAR LNDED JUNE 30, 2017

PROGRAM
SERVICES
PERSONNEL
Salarivs S 293039
Employee benefits 15,286
Payroll taxes 23.723
Workinen's compensastion I 6.183
TOTAL PERSONNEL FXPENSES 348,231
NON-PERSONA)-L
Accounting feey
Alcahol. drag, and backpround sereening 2,224
A aliowance
(Cosing costs .68k
Continuing education 598
Depraiation 17.724
Food aid beyverape 2793
Iaterest
Laundry, hnen and housckeeping 1,134
Miscellazeeus 3.2585
Oflize supplics .
Printing and postape 1736
Professional fees 12,275
Program supplics 7706
Property insurance 16.560
Repars and mainenance 12.230
Velephune 2,625
Uitilnies 37006
TOTAL NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSES L isgsay
TOTAL EXPENSES 3 502,780

Nee Independent Audiors Report and Notes to Financial Statenients

MANAGEMENT
AND GENTRAL

_ SERVICES _ HUNDRAISING

$ 30.000 $ 5
2417 -
2417 :
21,200 :
2.48"
2,608 .
4793 -

5498

31,488 5.498

S 63908 S SA98 S

v

0T AL

321,039
25286
26140

_ 683

I80.64%

21.200)
2224
2,887
6.686

595

47,724
2,793
2.608
1.134
3,258
4,793
1.736

12,274

13.204

16,560

12230
2,625

17,11)_0_6'
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5505 East Galbraith Road
- Suite 5000
= Cincinnali, OH 45236

(513} 333.0700

Assmedpal‘tners www.assuredpartners.com

Apni 23. 2019

Lexington-Fayette

Urban County Government

Division of Ceniral Purchasing. Room 338
Government Cenler

200 East Mains Street

Lexinglon, Kenhicky 40507

Re Substance Abuse Program {Male;
RFP #17-2019
Swrety Reference Leller

To Whom it May Concern:

Ohio Casualty Insurance Company is pleased lo be ihe surety for Shepherd's House, Ine The Dhio
Casually Insurance Company is currently rated A XV by Al Besl

\ve are aware of lhe bid proposal lo Lexinglon-Iayelte Urbian County governmznl lo b submitted on May
12019 It1s our intenlion lo issue the required performance bond if Shephoerd's House, Inc s the awarded
vendot of the Substance Abuse Program (Male) outhred i ihe REP documents

Nalurally. any arrangemient to release performance and paytient bonds 1s a maller between Shepherd's
House. Inc and The Ohio Casually Insurance Company. Release of any bond(sis subjecl lo lavitable
review of underwriting conditions at ihe lime of Ihe bond request  We assume no liability o any twrd parly
if for any reason we do not execule such bonds

Should you have any questions, please teel Iree (6 conlactme al (513) 475.3308

Sincerely,

The Ohio Casually nsurance Conpany

-~ ) "_l‘.h.-:ft_"-‘
o K1 T

Stelia Adas, Altorney-in-Fact RN 7Y
slella.adams Dassuredpariners.com NN -;'.l‘-f//
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Exhibit C
Compensation

In exchange for and in consideration for the services to be provided by Shepherd's House under

the terms of this Agreement, Facility agrees to pay the following amount upon monthly invoice
from Shepherd's House:

® $9.00 per Client per day.

Shepherd's House shall invoice the Lexington-Fayette Urban County Government Department
of Community Corrections on a monthly basis for all Clients served during the prior calendar
month. Such invoices shall be due and payable not less than quarterly. Shepherd’s House shall
cooperate and assist Facility in submitting monthly invoices to the Kentucky Department of
Corrections for services rendered by Shepherd's House.
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